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Forging a BRIGHT NEW FUTURE
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DESIGN CONCEPT  i&it+#E&
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This annual report’s concept focuses on the theme of building on past achievements and forging ahead for
the future.

The water droplet design represents Everbright Water’s business and also symbolises the Company’s vision
for a promising future with business progress.

This implies that while Everbright Water forges ahead for business development, it constantly bears in mind
and adheres to the doctrinal ideal of corporate sustainability.

RERUBET R | SiEBUERE,
Rt ELUKRBEZRAFRICAKSHNLS | MEKEEET  SEERFRRSARNS R REHENIR S,
BEAXNKSEHRERRUSHREN , T RSHESRAIRFER R AIES,




CONTENTS
Hx

03
04
03

12
14
3

20
2

37
36

=

o— ———_— —— —

; ——

CORPORATE PROFILE
NEJE T

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERKEEE

CEO’S STATEMENT
& BUSINESS REVIEW
SOHEEF Rl S5 B

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

CORPORATE OUTLOOK
NERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
W55 e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EFESNR

KEY MANAGEMENT
EEERR

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AR RERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT
NERERS

03
09

lfe
a4

&S
37

34
176
182

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EE 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
IRNTERTHITR S

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
M55 INITAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ZEeElmE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
LA AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
ZEMEnER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WA 55 e RbTiE

STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
G ER

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FRRRASEN

Annual Report 2016 01



Embracing a

Green Future
RS EARK




China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an
investment and operation company focusing on integrated
environmental water services. The Company is listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(stock code: U9E) with its controlling shareholder being China
Everbright International Limited (stock code: 00257.HK,
“Everbright International”). The Company is the sole water
business platform of China Everbright Group Ltd. (“Everbright
Group”).

The Company is principally engaged in integrated environmental
water services, sponge city construction, waste water treatment,
reusable water, waste water source heat pump, sludge treatment,
river-basin ecological restoration, research and development
of water technologies, and engineering and construction. The
Company’s geographical footprint spans across East, Central,
North, Northeast and Northwest China, including Beijing,
Jiangsu Province, Shandong Province, Shaanxi Province, Henan
Province, Hubei Province, Liaoning Province and Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region, etc. As at 31 December 2016, the Company
invested in and operated water treatment projects with a designed
daily water treatment capacity of approximately 5 million ms.

With the experienced management team and strong support from
Everbright Group and Everbright International, the Company will
seize opportunities and strive to emerge as a leader in China’s
integrated environmental water services sector.

CORPORATE
PROFILE
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Dear valued shareholders,

As we look back on 2016, global economic development was hampered
by many uncertainties and clashes. Recovery was hence slow and uneven.
However, with the Paris Agreement entering into force, we saw countries
all over the world transcend their differences to reach consensus and
work together to improve the earth’s ecological environment. In China, the
year 2016 marked the start of China’s 13th Five-Year Plan. While focusing
on leading the transformation to a “New Normal” economy, the plan
also incorporated “green development” as one of its five development
principles. In addition, the country’s environmental protection industry also
saw the introduction of many important policies such as the 13th Five-
Year Plan for Eco-Environmental Protection, Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law (Draft Amendment) and 13th Five-Year Plan for the
Development of Emerging Sectors of Strategic Importance. These policies
have elevated the development of ecological conservation, environmental
management and sustainable development to an unprecedented level of
importance. This demonstrates that the concerns related to environmental
management and protection have become urgent issues that need to be
addressed by China and the world, and this translates to immense growth
opportunities for the environmental protection industry.

Despite the uncertainties in the domestic and international economic
environment, the Group benefits from favorable environmental protection
policies and embraced a new round of development in this pivotal year
under review. Following the integration of a series of acquisitions in 2015,
the Group’s operational and management scales were boosted to a new
level in 2016, and the acquired projects were successfully restructured.
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The Group will continue to seize opportunities to capitalise on our
strengths in investment and construction, operation and management,
and technology R&D in order to reinforce its market position, expand into
new business areas and enhance its core competitiveness.

RERGIMEINS | BREF LA ERRIR.
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In light of intense industry competition and ever-changing market
environment, the Group pursued organic growth through a “prudent, active
and practical” development approach, and steadily pushed forward its
sustainable development strategy featured with “business diversification,
technology-driven development and structural optimisation for efficiency
enhancement”. During the year under review, the Group enhanced its
market development model, which is based on the locations of existing
projects. On this basis, the Group expanded into new business areas
such as river basin ecological restoration and sponge city construction,
thereby creating new growth drivers through a multi-pronged strategy.
In addition, the Group established a water environment technology
research platform that mainly focuses on application-based technology
research. The research platform not only strengthens the Group’s core
technical competitiveness, but also facilitates the Group to seek out new
business opportunities in the field of integrated environmental water
services. Furthermore, the Group also focused on implementing a regional
management model in order to optimise finance cost and financing
structure. This complements the Group’s long-term business development
strategy to realise long-term enhancements to scale and efficiency.

Over the past year, the public-private partnership (“PPP”) model has
gained significant traction and was progressing at a rapid rate. The
central and local government departments have introduced a number
of policies to encourage the development of the PPP model, including
the establishment of PPP project catalogs, and thus sent positive
signals to the environmental water services industry. Amidst accelerating
implementation of various PPP projects, the Group, has developed several
quality PPP flagship projects based on its exploration and execution of
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PPP models. In particular, the Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project was
selected as one of the 12 successful PPP case studies worldwide and
showcased during the “2016 International United Nations Economic
Commission for Europe PPP Forum”. More significantly, it is the only
shortlisted project from China among the 12 case studies. This does not
only reflect the Group’s successful execution of PPP projects, but also
underscores the recognition of the development progress of China’s PPP
model by the international community.

Following the inclusion into the FTSE ST Mid-Cap Index in 2015, the
Company was also included as a constituent stock of the MSCI China Small
Cap Index, one of the most commonly followed indexes by institutional
investors, during the year under review. The latest inclusion is yet another
endorsement of the Group’s growth potential, which is well-recognised by
the investment community and industry players. This further reinforces the
Group’s confidence in its next level of growth.

As an environmental protection enterprise and corporate citizen, the Group
proactively takes the responsibility of protecting the environment while
being concerned about the public welfare. During the year under review,
the Group participated in various charitable activities in communities
where its existing projects are located and opened project sites for public
visits. The Group received approximately 800 batches of visitors around
the world in the year, totaling more than 17,000 visitors. The Group tapped
these visits as a platform to promote and exchange information about
environmental technology and to raise public awareness on environmental
protection.
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Looking ahead, the environmental water protection still faces immense
pressure, with more opportunities in the field of public-private partnerships.
The Group believes that the environmental water services industry will
maintain its rapid pace of growth, with huge developmental potential. The
Group will continue to seize opportunities to capitalise on its strengths in
investment and construction, operation and management, and technology
R&D in order to reinforce its market position, expand into new business
areas and enhance our core competitiveness.

In view of the Group’s stable operational performance and financial
position over the year under review, and in line with our belief of sharing the
Company’s fruitful results with shareholders, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) has recommended a final dividend of S$0.0037
per share to shareholders for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
(final dividend for 2015: S$0.0035 per share).

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to the Company’s shareholders, the Board members, the management
team and employees, peers and all our business partners. | firmly believe
that with the backing of Everbright Group, and the strong support
from Everbright International, the Group is well-poised to overcome all
challenges, stride ahead to keep pace with the market and achieve more
breakthroughs to deliver sustainable returns to our shareholders. The
Group will continue to work towards becoming a leading player in China’s
water industry, and actively push forward the sustainable development of
the environmental water industry.

Wang Tianyi
Non-Executive Director and Chairman
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Dear valued shareholders,

Over the past year, we endured a challenging and complex macro
environment, with persistent weakness in the global economy. China’s
economy continued to face downward pressures and underwent profound
structural adjustments. Simultaneously, the increasingly pressing needs
for the improvement of ecological environment could no longer be ignored
by countries around the world, and that had to be addressed collectively.
Under these circumstances, China, during the beginning year of the 13"
Five-Year Plan, continued to step up the push for a sound ecological
environment, and intensively introduced many environmental protection
policy measures, calling out to people from all walks of life to join hands
and fight the long-term battle for eco-environmental pollution prevention
and treatment. After China issued the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Plan to fight the battle pushing for water pollution prevention and
treatment, the government, in 2016, continued to progressively issued
a series of policy measures that focus on specific areas in the water
environment restoration sector, such as the 73th Five-Year Plan on National
Urban Waste Water Treatment and Recycling Facilities Construction. These
policies not only demonstrate the positive attitude and determination that
the Chinese government has towards managing the water environment
problems, but also opened up broader development opportunities for the
entire environmental water services sector.

As an investment and operation company specialised in integrated
environmental water services, the Group adhered closely to the national
policies and set its business objectives around them in 2016. At the same
time, the Group adopted its “prudent, active and practical” development
approach to push forward organic growth as well as M&A integration,
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to further enhance its project operation and management skills, and to
achieve stable business growth. During the year under review, led by
higher construction revenue, operation services revenue and finance
income, the Group’s revenue rose from HK$1.82 billion in 2015 to HK$2.49
billion, representing an increase of 37%. Gross profit of HK$905.65 million
represents a 10% increase from the preceding year. Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$349.34 million, basic/
diluted earnings per share was HK$0.134. The Group’s gearing level
remained stable and healthy, with a gearing ratio of 49%, which was
similar to that of 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 60 projects in operation, 4
projects completing construction, 5 projects under construction and 1
project in preparatory stage in the area of waste water treatment, with
a total designed daily waste water treatment capacity of 3,940,000 m3;
1 sponge city construction project under construction, which involves
a series of ecological restoration works and waste water treatment
projects with a daily waste water treatment capacity of 275,000 m3; 1
river training project under construction; 4 projects in operation and
1 project completing construction in the area of reusable water, with a
total designed daily reusable water supply capacity of 81,600 m3; 2 waste
water source heat pump projects; 59 kilometers of pipeline network and
10 pump stations; and 1 Build-Transfer surface water project. During the
year under review, the Group treated an aggregate of 1,148,279,000 m?3
waste water, representing an increase of 28% over the previous year.

During the year under review, to accommodate the evolving market
conditions of environmental water industry, the Group transformed from
a centralised management model into a regional management model,
and further optimised its management structure. It set up four regional
management centres, namely East Shandong, West Shandong, Jiangsu
and Liaoning, resulting in economies of scale and facilitating resource
integration and synergy within the regions. While improving operation and
management efficiency, the Group further enhanced the implementation
of the Enviromental, Safety, Health and Social Responsibility (“ESHS”)
management system and risk management system, to improve its
management skills and optimise management approach.

During the year under review, the Group continued to consolidate its leading
position in its existing markets, such as Jiangsu and Shandong provinces.
As the business expanded steadily, the Group secured 12 new projects
during the year, including the Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction
PPP Project, Jiangsu Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment
Project Phase [, Jiangsu Nanjing Municipal Water PPP Project, Jiangsu
Xinyi City Waste Water Treatment Project and Upgrading Project, Jiangsu
Xinyi Economic Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase
| and Expansion Project, Shandong Zhangqgiu Waste Water Treatment
Project (Plant 1), Shandong Zhangqgiu Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant
2), Shandong Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Maidao Plant)
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CEO’'S STATEMENT

& BUSINESS REVIEW
SEEEE R M S5 ENER

Upgrading, Shandong Ju County Shudong Waste Water Treatment Project
and Henan Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading.
In addition, the Group also extended its business reach to industrial
waste water treatment, sponge city construction, river-basin ecological
restoration and other new business areas. This fully demonstrates the
pro-activeness of the Group’s business team in seeking breakthroughs,
which will create a good momentum to strengthen the Group’s market
position in the future and enhance its business diversification. In addition,
the Group secured multiple PPP projects during the year under review and
accumulated a wealth of experience that will help the Group better capture
project opportunities brought about by the growth of the PPP model.

In terms of project construction, the Group remained focused on its
philosophy of “developing quality projects, establishing a quality brand”
to steadily push forward the project construction. During the year under
review, 8 projects completed construction. Among them, Shandong Ji’nan
Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) Expansion, Shandong Ji’'nan
Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4) Phase I, Jiangsu Wuzhong
Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading have
already commenced operations; Liaoning Dalian Liangjiadian Waste
Water Treatment Project Phase | completed construction; Beijing Daxing
Tiantanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading,
Liaoning Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Expansion
and Henan Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading
completed construction and are now running in compliance with discharge
standards; Jiangsu Nanjing Pukou Reusable Water Project Phase | also
completed construction and is now undergoing a trial run. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had a total of 7 projects under construction,
creating a sound basis for its stable development going forward. During
the year under review, multiple projects of the Group effected water tariff
hike, including an increase of tariff by 55.8% for Nanjing Liuhe Waste Water
Treatment Project, an increase of tariff by 39.5% for Suzhou Wuzhong
Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project, and an increase of tariff by 9%
for Yangihou Jiangdu Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project.
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The year 2016 marked the first complete year after the Group’s acquisition
of Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. The Group increased waste water
treatment capacity and profitability of the acquired projects through
internal integration and upgrading works. It also enhanced efforts in
water tariff collection and tariff adjustment. As a result, the acquired
projects were restructured successfully. In the meantime, the Group also
incorporated its business ethos and corporate culture into those projects,
which facilitated the smooth restructuring and upgrading of the projects,
and thereby strengthened the Group’s market position in the local markets.

The Group remains committed to technology-driven development and has
positioned it as the core growth driver for the next round of development. The
Group’s Water Environment Technology Research Centre was established
as a technology R&D institute and technological innovation platform. The
centre focuses on application-based technology research. Through in-
house R&D, technology import and academic-industry collaborations, the
Group will continuously enhance its core competitiveness in river-basin
ecological restoration, sponge city construction, waste water treatment
and other fields in the environmental water services industry.

The Group has also been actively exploring flexible and diversified
financing channels, to optimise its finance structure and lower its finance
costs. During the year under review, the Company proactively pushed
forward multiple financing channels, such as “Panda Bond” issuance
and asset securitisation. The funds raised will be used to supplement
the Group’s working capital and support the Group for its next phase of
business planning and development.

Thanks to our employees’ hard work and contributions, as well as the
support and recognition from the market and the society, the Group
achieved a steady performance over the past year. On behalf of the Group,
| would like to take this chance to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
management and staff, as well as people from all social circles who have
been supportive of the Group’s development. In the upcoming year, the
Group’s management team will work hand in hand with all employees to
continue seeking development opportunities, actively respond to changes
in the marketplace, look for breakthroughs in technology and business
expansion and strive to further step up in the integrated environmental
water services sector.

An Xuesong
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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HEAD OFFICE
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SINGAPORE OFFICE
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HONG KONG OFFICE
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Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Given the macro-level guidelines on eco-environment restoration and
sustainable development, the Chinese government has recently introduced
a number of important policies to continually emphasise the national
strategic importance of a sound ecological environment, bringing many
benefits to the environmental protection industry. The launch of the 73th
Five-Year Plan for Eco-Environmental Protection at the end of 2016 clearly
indicates that the eco-environmental protection field will face significant
strategic opportunities during the five-year plan period. The task at hand
is arduous, and therefore needs proper management of various risks and
challenges; at the same time, we have to fully capitalise on new business
opportunities and conditions, and strive to improve the overall quality of
eco-environment by 2020. Under the guidance and encouragement by
the central government’s policies, local governments in the country have
also started to introduce environmental protection policies and measures
aimed at meeting local ecological needs. This demonstrates the strong
level of convening power and call for action from authorities at all levels,
which will provide an important force for the future development of the
environmental protection industry.

Benefiting from the overall positive momentum of the industry, the
environmental water services sector will continue its strong growth in the
next phase. In the 13th Five-Year Plan for Eco-Environmental Protection,
the government focuses on targeted efforts to raise water environment
quality. With that being the core task, the government targets integrated
management of water resources, water environment and water eco-
systems, and aims to achieve a substantial improvement in the quality
of surface water, groundwater, and water in the functional areas of major
rivers and lakes by 2020. Moreover, the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law (Draft Amendment), which is currently being reviewed by the
National People’s Congress of the PRC, with improving water environment
quality as its core objective, aims to fully promote water pollution
prevention and control, water ecological environment protection and to
guarantee drinking water safety. Based on the overall planning policy, the
country also launched its 73th Five-Year Plan on National Urban Waste
Water Treatment and Recycling Facilities Construction and the Opinions
on Comprehensive Adoption of River Chief Mechanism, along with many
other policies, to have a more tailored approach in addressing different

14  China Everbright Water Limited FEXEKKSERAT

17 RIRE

EMAESNZRENE. BETRFEARA
EMEREMZ E, PERMIEEESIE
KREER | AHEREES AR IRAIE R AT
i, BIMRITWHEREENE, —F—7"FF
&, (“T=ER"ESHREERPHL) HE . 88
HREHESAERPE T =R HEaEIREE
RIEKERHLE | ESRE , FZEMXI SN
ki, ERNERSFIBFIE. HRMG, NF
EET_FFLNNELESMERE. PR
BERRIESIFISBZT , SHBRTHHHE
XS ST RIIMRBUEREIE | RIS
RBFRBEASBDMITINS  ARFIMRT
WHYA RIRMEERHES.

B TIMRMTIWERNRIF RS | KRR
BT IR SE R MR, 7 (“t
=RESIMERIPALD) &, BFEERHA
BERIRANMNEERE | BHRLSEXAERE
FRERZD  WKER, KRE, KESHT
Zalte  BRE—TERF , SHRKE.

KR, EELAAINEERKERFYSTI
KIERT. LEoh , EEAXBRIEERNA (
KERBhiaE (BITER) ) | LIGNERE
MEZLD , SEEHKSREE. KESK
BRIPAIRAK R 2RE. ETRRMERLIE
R, BxR7MER (‘=R ERESKEE
RBEFBREZRAL) . (XTeEm#E
TAREINEL) FEMBER BRI
RIS AEIELE, AREZEBAIKIARERR , J97K
MBI T T T RIS, B4R
BRFESHARETE , TFA#HZ T



types of water environment problems in different locations. These policies
open up room for the future development of the environmental water
services sector, such as in the areas of rural waste water treatment and
sponge city construction, and outline a major trend that the environmental
water services industry chain will continue to extend upstream and
downstream, and go through integrations. Those policies have injected
more vibrancy and huge potential to the industry. In addition, with clearer
government policies and guidelines, the environmental water services
sector will see higher levels of professionalism and industry standards,
therefore the weak market participants will be eliminated while the capable
ones will stay, boosting the long-term growth of the industry.

As a public service sector, the environmental water services sector has
introduced the PPP model in recent years. The PPP model has been
widely used in the waste water treatment field. This has driven interest
in the exploration and adoption of this model by other fields within the
sector, thereby furthering the development trend of the PPP model. With
the introduction of a series of polices by the government to encourage and
support the social capital to get involved in the investment, construction
and operation in the public service and the infrastructure areas, the level
of marketisation of the environmental water services sector is expected to
continue to improve. In addition, the social capital will, through the PPP
model, be able to participate in the investment, construction and operation
of larger scale and more integrated environmental water services projects,
thereby continuously strengthening the comprehensive capabilities of
industry players. This will further direct the entire industry towards the
trend of providing integrated treatment services.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

While the macro environment remains unpredictable, the environmental
protection sector, as a defensive industry, will continuously benefit from
the country’s persistent concerns over eco-environmental issues, the
growing public demand for environmental improvement, as well as the
environmental protection policies, and thus it will maintain rapid growth
momentum.
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From the policy perspective, the environmental protection industry will
see the intensive implementation of related policies in 2017. With the
environmental protection policies being further tested and developed,
the regulations and related standards for the industry will become more
stringent. It will in turn enable well-established companies, which have a
long track record and are focused on long-term sustainable development,
to stand out from their peers in the sector, thereby allowing the entire
industry to move towards a more stable development path. In addition,
the country’s “One Belt, One Road” initiative has laid the path for the
environmental protection industry to explore overseas markets, and by
leveraging on the technology and experience from these markets, to
further enhance the overall standards of the domestic environmental water
services sector.

As an investment and operation enterprise focused on integrated
environmental water services, the Group will remain focused on
technology-driven developments and will continuously enhance its core
technology competitiveness to establish its brand in the environmental
water services technology field. The Group will also continue to strengthen
its well-regarded brand name, rich operating experience and its constant
strive towards excellence. This will allow the Group to capture business
opportunities in various fields, expand its value chain and broaden its space
for development. In addition, the Group will further optimise its regional
management model through synergies and integration methods, as well
as effective risk control, to improve business operation efficiency. Looking
to the future, the Group’s management and staff at all levels will overcome
all challenges and strive ahead, and based on the “prudent, active and
practical” development approach, seek stable and groundbreaking
developments and remain committed to becoming the leader in China’s
environmental water services sector.
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Mr. Wang Tianyi
Non-Executive Director
and Chairman

FERNFTE
IFHTESRESK

Mr. Wang is the Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company
as well as a member of the Nominating Committee. Mr. Wang is also the
Executive Director and General Manager of China Everbright International
Limited.

Mr. Wang was formerly the President of Shandong Academy of Science
and the Deputy Mayor of Ji’'nan City, Shandong Province. Mr. Wang had
been the Vice President of Yantai University in Shandong Province, and
the Dean and Professor of Economic Management Faculty of Yantai
University.

Mr. Wang is currently a part-time professor and a doctoral tutor of
Shandong University and a member of Advisory Committee of China
Business Research Center of National University of Singapore. He is also
a member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council Mainland Business
Advisory Committee, a member of PPP Business Advisory Board and the
Chief Representative of China in PPP Center of United Nations Economic
Commission for Europe.

Mr. Wang holds a Doctorate degree in Economics, a Master’s degree
in Management and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronics from Tsinghua
University. He had pursued advanced studies at Harvard University and
University of California in the United States.
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Mr. An Xuesong
Executive Director
and CEO

BEIRFTE
PITESROH

Mr. An is the Executive Director and CEO of the Company. He joined
the Company as the Executive Director and Standing Vice President in
December 2014 and was re-designated as Executive Director and CEO
on 14 August 2015. Mr. An is also the Deputy General Manager of China
Everbright International Limited.

Mr. An has comprehensive experience and knowledge in mergers
and acquisitions, project investment and management, accounting
management and risk management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
An worked at The Municipal General Office of Jingzhou, Hubei Province,
China Everbright Bank Ltd. and Guangdong Technology Venture Capital
Group Ltd.

Mr. An holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Jinan
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC and also a
Certified International Internal Auditor.
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Mr. Cai Shuguang

Executive Director

EIESKTE
HITES

Mr. Cai is the Executive Director of the Company. He is also the Executive
Director and the Deputy General Manager of China Everbright International
Limited.

Mr. Cai was formerly the Deputy General Manager of Shenzhen Kingway
Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of Computer Science
of Fudan University and holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Ballarat in Australia. He holds the title of
Senior Engineer. Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge in
corporate management and project planning.
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Ms. Xu Nailing

Executive Director

- L} 44
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Ms. Xu is the Executive Director of the Company. She is also the Deputy
Chief Financial Officer of China Everbright International Limited.

Ms. Xu was formerly the Deputy General Manager of Operational Risk
Management Department of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd (Head Office) and the
Assistant Governor of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou Branch). She
also worked in China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou Branch) as
the General Manager of Operation Planning Management Department,
Legal and Compliance Department and Operational Risk Management
Department.
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, China. She holds the

Ms. Xu graduated from the Department of Finance,

Master of Business Administration degree from Xiamen University. Ms. Xu
holds the title of Economist in China.
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Mr. Zhai Haitao
Independent Director

EigiFkE
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Mr. Zhai is the Independent Director of the Company, the Chairman of the
Nominating Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zhai is also the Independent Non-Executive
Director of China Everbright International Limited and the President and
Partner of Primavera Capital Group.

Mr. Zhai has extensive experience and knowledge in banking, capital
market and management. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman
Sachs Asia LLC and Chief Representative of Goldman Sachs Beijing
Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at the International
Department of the People’s Bank of China in Beijing, and was Deputy
Representative of the People’s Bank of China Representative Office for the
Americas based in New York.

Mr. Zhai holds a Master’s degree in International Relations from Columbia
University, a Master of Business Administration degree from New York
University and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Peking
University.
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Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul
Independent Director

iilaeE
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Mr. Lim is the Independent Director of the Company, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and also a member of the Nominating Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lim was the Independent Director from
July 2007 to June 2010, and was appointed as the Executive Director and
Interim Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company from June 2010
to May 2011. He was then re-designated as the Non-Executive Director
of the Company from May 2011 to February 2013 and subsequently was
appointed as Lead Independent Director of the Company from February
2013 to December 2014.

Mr. Lim has over 25 years of banking experience with international
investment banks including Morgan Stanley, Deutsche Bank, Solomon
Smith Barney and Bankers Trust. He is currently the Managing Director and
Head of Private Equity of SBI Ven Capital Pte Ltd., and the Independent
Director of Golden Energy and Resources Limited (listed on SGX) and
Nippecraft Limited (listed on SGX).

Mr. Lim obtained his Master of Business Administration in Finance and
Bachelor of Science in Computer Science from the University of Wisconsin,
Madison, USA. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA).
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Ms. Cheng Fong Yee
Independent Director
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Ms. Cheng is the Independent Director of the Company. She joined
the Company since July 2007. Ms. Cheng is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Ms. Cheng has more than 20 years of experience in the insurance industry
and is an Associate of the Australian Insurance Institute. She has been
involved in major overseas insurance projects, particularly in the Asia
Pacific, and is actively involved in utilising insurance as a financial tool
for project development in Asia Pacific. Ms. Cheng is the head of the
Insurance Division of AsiaOne Insurance Agency Pte. Ltd. in Singapore
and Executive Director (Principal Representative) of the Cambodia Branch
of AsiaOne Insurance Agency Pte. Lid.

She also headed the Business Development Department of Aon Insurance
Brokers, the biggest broking house in Asia and managed the insurance
division of the Singapore Technologies Group.

Ms. Cheng completed her insurance study at the Australian Insurance
Institute.
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Mr. Luo Junling

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Luo is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr. Luo has rich experience in accounting management and operation
management. Mr. Luo was formerly the Vice President of the Company.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Luo worked with China Construction
Bank (Fujian Branch), Fujian Guang Min Road Bridge Construction Co.,
Ltd., and Fujian Min Xing Accounting Firm.

Mr. Luo holds a Bachelor’s degree in International Accounting from Shaanxi
Institute of Finance and Economics. He is a Certified Public Accountant
and also a Certified Tax Agent in the PRC.

Mr. Yu Yiping
Vice President

Mr. Yu is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Yu has rich experience in project management and team development.
Mr. Yu was formerly the Vice President of Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Limited, the General Manager of Sichuan Everbright
Environmental Investment Company Limited and the General Manager of
Everbright Environmental Energy (Ji'nan) Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu also worked with
the People’s Bank of China (Zigong Branch) and Huaxi Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yu graduated from the Department of Ideological and Political
Education of Henan Normal University, China.
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Mr. Tao Junjie
Vice President

Mr. Tao is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Tao has rich experience in engineering construction and operation
management.
Everbright Water Investments Limited and the Plant Manager of Ji’nan
Mr. Tao also worked with

Mr. Tao was formerly the General Manager of China

Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2).
Shandong University of Architecture and Engineering.

Mr. Tao holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering from
Wuhan University of Technology and a Master’s degree in Architecture
and Civil Engineering from Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology.
He also holds the certificate of Certified Supervision Engineer and the title
of Engineering Technology Researcher.

Mr. Wang Yuexing

Engineering Director

Mr. Wang is the Engineering Director of the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in engineering construction and operation
management. Mr. Wang was formerly the Deputy General Manager of
Everbright Environmental Protection Technology Development (Beijing)
Limited and Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Limited and the Plant Manager of Ji’nan Waste Water Treatment Project
(Plant 1).

Mr. Wang holds a Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering from
Tsinghua University, Master of Business Administration degree from
Shandong University and a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from
South China University of Technology. He also holds the titles of Certified
Cost Engineer and also Certified Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Wang Guanping
Technical Director

Mr. Wang is the Technical Director of the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in technology management and research
and development. He was granted several invention patents and utility
model patents. Mr. Wang was formerly the Assistant Dean of Everbright
Environmental Research Institute, Chief Technology Officer of China
Environmental Protection Science & Technology Holdings Limited, Vice
Chief Engineer of Shenzhen Liyuan Water Design & Consultant Limited
and Chief Engineer of Operation Branch of Wuhan Kaidi Water Service
Co., Limited.

Mr. Wang holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering from
Tsinghua University, a Master’s degree in Municipal Engineering from
Tongiji University and a Bachelor’s degree in Water Supply and Sewerage
Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology. He
holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer.

Mr. Zhang Guofeng
CEOQO Assistant

Mr. Zhang is the CEO Assistant of the Company.

Mr. Zhang hasrich experience in project investment, operation management
and mergers and acquisitions. He was formerly the General Manager of
the Investment Development Department at Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Limited, the Deputy General Manager of Everbright
Water (Zibo) Limited and the Supervisor of Everbright Environmental
Energy (Xintai) Ltd.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Qingdao University of Science & Technology. He
is a Certified Management Accountant and a member of the Association of
International Accountants.
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Mr. Sun Linbo
CEO Assistant

Mr. Sun is the CEO Assistant of the Company.

Mr. Sun has rich experience in infrastructure construction and project
operation management in the environmental protection industry. He is also
the General Manager of Everbright Water (Ji’'nan) Limited.

Mr. Sun holds a Master’'s degree in Environmental Engineering from
Shandong University. He holds the titles of Certified Cost Engineer in
China and also Engineering Technology Application Researcher.

Ms. Peng Pei

Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
Ms. Peng is the Legal Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Peng was a practising lawyer at the
Singapore office of Allen & Gledhill LLP. Her areas of practice included
mergers and acquisitions and derivatives. She participated, as a core
member, in a major research project of the Supreme People’s Court of
the PRC on disregarding the corporate entity to propose the relevant
judicial interpretations. Report of the research project became a book
entitled Rules, Theories and Practices of Disregarding the Corporate Entity
published by People’s Court Press in April 2009.

Ms. Peng holds Master of Laws degrees from New York University, National
University of Singapore and Tsinghua University and a Bachelor of Laws
degree from Tianjin University. She is called to the PRC Bar and the State
Bar of California, United States. Ms. Peng is also an associate member of
Chartered Secretaries Institute of Singapore and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.
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Everbright Water is committed to maintaining “stable operations,
compliance with discharge standards”, to ensure a harmonious coexistence
of its environmental water projects and the neighbouring communities as
well as the sustainable development of our society, through technological
and operational advancements, assurance of emission compliance and

environmental performance.

China’s emphasis on green development, ecological management and
ecological civilisation construction created tremendous development
opportunities for enterprises in the environmental protection industry.
Through innovative business strategies, Everbright Water corresponds to
the national policies and regulations on environmental protection such as
the 13th Five-Year Plan for Eco-environmental Protection and the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law (Draft Amendment), striving to grasp
the policy direction in time and seize for development opportunities.
During the year, the government strongly promoted the PPP model,
providing positive signals to the environmental water services industry in
areas including waste water treatment, river basin ecological restoration,
sponge city construction, etc.

The Group has implemented the ESHS Management System and Risk
Management System in 2016. The two-pronged approaches, oriented
to disclose information, have strengthened management capabilities
during day-to-day operations and controlled risks at source by setting
up a complete system that integrates pre-identification and assessment
processes with inspections and reviews, as well as post-appraisals and
evaluation, providing a healthy platform for the sustainable development
of Everbright Water.

We believe that the voices of our stakeholders provide valuable insights for
our business developments, which support us in making ongoing and long-
term strategic decisions. Therefore, we pursue effective engagement and
ongoing dialogue with our stakeholders through collaborative, transparent
and responsive processes. From our stakeholder participation plan which
involves all project companies, the views of stakeholders are actively
listened throughout the project lifecycle from the initial planning stage to
the operation stage, which helps us to identify high priority issues within
all our project operations and the associated sustainability concerns. The
effectiveness of our stakeholder engagement activities is also evaluated
throughout different project stages to ensure higher operation efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL P-ERFOF?MANCE_.-

As an environmental protection enterprise, we adopt advanced
technologies and maintain high industry standards to improve the
efficiency in resource utilisation and environmental performance, also to

pioneer in green production process and lifestyle.
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We have been continuously striving to conserve and recycle water
resources to ensure that the recycled water can meet the Reuse of Urban
Recycling Water — Water Quality Standard for Industrial Uses (GB/T19923-
2005) and the Reuse of Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality Standard
for Landscape Uses (GB/T18921-2002) or relevant standards.

As for the Group, a great emphasis is laid upon proper treatment of sludge
arising from the operation of waste water treatment plants. We treat our
sludge in accordance with International Finance Corporation’s General
Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines and other applicable laws,
regulations and guidelines. In 2016, more than 81% of the total sludge
generated from our projects was recycled. For sludge which eventually
needs to be disposed of at the landfill, we will reduce its water content
and volume by dewatering to alleviate burden to landfills and mitigate the
associated environmental impacts.
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We actively explore in turning waste water into useful resources such as
developing the advanced waste water source heat pump technology,
which extracts abundant low grade thermal energy sources from waste
water to supply heat and air conditioning for buildings.

The Group has proactively upgraded its management standard on several
occasions, applying “quality, environment and occupational health
and safety” management system certification for all operating project
companies and ensuring its treatments of all waste categories would
not lead to secondary pollution. We are confident that we will continue
to uphold a strong sense of social and environmental responsibility and
strengthen our market leadership position in the environmental water
services industry by ensuring high standard construction, safe and stable
operations and the compliance with environmental discharge standards,

to bring greater contributions to ecological environmental protection.

We uphold the principle that occupational health and safety is not only one
of our core corporate cultures, but also our solemn commitment to every
employee. During the year, we officially launched and implemented the
ESHS Management System, setting an important milestone for the Group
in promoting health and safety. This system allows us to manage health
and safety related issues in a structured manner, extending our culture of
valuing safety to our supply chain by incorporating environmental, social,
health and safety considerations into our selection criteria for contractors
and suppliers.

Furthermore, we have ingrained safety management beliefs in our operation
through setting up clear production safety guidelines for our employees,
providing up-to-standard tools and personal protective equipment, and
conducting regular safety inspections. To increase the awareness on
production safety from our employees, we offer regular health and safety
training such as video training on Production Safety Law and the new
Environmental Protection Law, as well as lectures and competitions during
the “Production Safety Month” in each year.
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EVERERIGHT WATER(ZIBO)LIMITED

All project companies have formed a safety management team comprising
the general manager and other management officers, to supervise and
manage all health and safety issues arising from various stages of the
project. The team is also responsible for organising emergency drills
and exercises to enhance their crisis management skills. In addition, we
provide annual medical check-ups and occupational disease checks to
safeguard our employees’ health conditions.

BNSMEATIRBEREEER , BEL
SFEMEMGERREEE RENEEREE
FrENEFEIETENSBENRERES TS
. FATTRSARZSSEMHRS , BURT
ROBHLRIZERE ). oh , BIBFARTRM
2Rt EFBRPRIRE | (REEMEIIAVERER.

We firmly uphold our people-oriented development strategy and pay

high attention to our employee’s training and development. In terms of
talent retention, we have established the “future executive database” in
Everbright Water, created a tiered talent development framework with a
replacement mechanism. Innovative training methods and approaches
wereimplemented, such as the exploration of apprenticeship system, where
“masters” can pass knowledge and provide guidance to “apprentices”.

We firmly believe that providing diversified and practical training
opportunities for our employees is the cornerstone of our business
development, as well as an important element in improving job satisfaction
and ensuring fair opportunities among employees. Therefore, we tailored
our training content based on staff positions, skills and management
requirement. We also actively promote overseas exchange events with
industry peers, allowing our employees to grasp the latest developments
of the industry. “Seminar on Everbright Water's Waste Water Treatment
Technology” and “Training on General Health and Safety Standards” were
held during the year, where external professional parties were invited to
conduct training sessions for senior management of our projects and
the technical staff, nurturing our staff into competitive and high quality
professional teams.
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PHILANTHRO

We always encourage and support our employees to participate in
charitable activities in fulfilling our corporate social responsibility. Our staff
actively support activities organised by community groups, for example,
employees of our Suzhou Project Company participated in “The Walking
Sims Azalea” during the year, a charitable activity which supports students
from poor regions in Qinghai and Tibet to broaden their horizons by walking
out of their hometown; the Ji’nan Project Company has been volunteering
in the “Love the City, Drive in a Civilised Way” initiative, regulating the city’s
traffic and persuading drivers to drive responsibly. Also, our employees
from Shaanxi Xianyang Project Company has cooperated with a local
special child rehabilitation centre and organised “Filling Childhood with
Love and Warmth”, spreading laughter and warmth to the children in the
rehabilitation centre. The staff from Shenzhen and Hong Kong volunteered
as helpers to participate in weeding and assisting to protect the eco-
environment of Mai Po Nature Reserve in Hong Kong.

In addition, our employees have always been enthusiastic in organising
charitable activities such as donations, visits, and campaigns in promoting
environmental protection. For instance, in order to support the annual Earth
Hour event organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature, many project
companies of Everbright Water participated by riding bicycles instead
of driving, switching off non-essential office equipment and maintaining
greeneries surrounding the plants, implementing and promoting the
concept of low carbon and energy saving lifestyle. Local visits during
holidays were arranged as well, sending festival greetings and providing
financial supports to the poor families. In our “Holding Hands with Care
and Love” activity, our staff from Ji’nan Project Company donated daily
necessities, books, and offered tuition subsidies to the children in need,
improving their living and learning environment; our employees from Zibo
Project Company supported blood donation which pay respects toward
life; our employees from Shaanxi Project Company organised book
exchange activities with themes such as “Safeguarding the Environment
through Green Lifestyle” and “Enlighten your Life through Reading” in
local primary schools, encouraging the students to experience the joy of
reading, to explore the world and widen their horizons.
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GARING FOR THE COMMUNI'I;\E

We persist in utilising our resources, talents, and technologies to educate
the public on environmental protection issues. During the year under
review, our project companies in various provinces such as Liaoning and
Shandong participated in different national environmental science and
technology activities, for example, the National Science Popularisation Day
and the World Water Day. Some project companies even sent technical
experts to conduct lectures on waste water treatment process to students
and teachers, aiming to promote advanced environmental technology and
enhance public awareness on environmental protection. During the year
under review, we supported the IAS Summit HongKong - Inventing Today
Imagining Tomorrow for Water Pollution Control, organised by Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology Jockey Club Institute for Advanced
Study, which attracted industrial experts around the world to discuss and
share ideas in depth on water industry topics such as water pollution
prevention and control.

Our project companies also serve as the National Base for Science
Popularisation and Education and National Social Practice Base for
Environmental Education in Secondary and Primary Schools. We welcome
visitors from the overseas, teachers and students of various educational
institutions as well as the general public to conduct site visit tours, and to
share our professional skills and experiences with them in every year.

We wish these activities can serve as a bridge of communication between
us and the society. Not only in fostering communication, but we hope to
nurture the new generation’s sense of responsibility towards environmental
conservation. For example, our Shandong Zibo Project Waste Water
Treatment Project organised “The Purification Journey of One Drop of
Water” during the year under review, welcoming local charity organisations
in visiting the project, introducing them the waste water purification process
in details, and promoting the awareness of water conservation. Many of
our project companies located in Liaoning also regularly receive visiting
tours comprising teachers and students from local tertiary, secondary
and primary educational institutions. Through classes on environmental
protection and visits on waste water treatment process, we wish to promote
waste water treatment knowledge and to encourage students to develop
water conservation habits since their youth; our Shaanxi Xianyang Project
Company welcomed special children from local rehabilitation centres. To
allow the children to have a better understanding on the concepts of waste
water treatment, our project company’s staff explained the concepts
with patience and in laymen terms, and also distributed specific reading
materials to the children for free, so as to allow these young visitors to
understand the concepts of waste water treatment with interest and to
implement water saving measures. In 2016 alone, there were over 17,000
visitors visiting our environmental water projects.
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to ensure investor confidence in the
Company as a trusted business enterprise. The Board and the
Management will continue to uphold good corporate governance
practices to enhance long-term value and returns for shareholders
and protect shareholders’ interests.

This report outlines the Company’s corporate governance
practices for FY2016 with specific reference made to the principles
and guidelines of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the
“Code”), which forms part of the continuing obligations of the
Listing Rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST").

(A) BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s conduct of its affairs

The Board’s key responsibilities include providing leadership
and supervision to the Management of the Group with a view
to protecting shareholders’ interests and enhancing long-term
shareholders’ value.

The Board’s principal functions include the following:

(1)  providing entrepreneurial leadership, setting strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the necessary financial and
human resources are in place for the Group to meet its
objectives;

(2) reviewing and approving corporate strategies, financial
objectives and direction of the Group;

(3)  establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls
which enables risks to be assessed and managed, including
safeguarding of shareholders’ interests and the Group’s
assets;

(4) establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of these goals;

(5) ensuring management
effectiveness and integrity;

leadership of high quality,

(6) reviewing management performance;

(7)  approving annual budgets and investment and divestment
proposals;

(8) reviewing the internal controls, risk management, financial
performance and reporting compliance;

(9) identifying the key stakeholder group and recognising that
their perceptions affect the Company’s reputation;
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setting the Group’s value and standards (including ethical
standards), and ensure that obligations to shareholders and
other stakeholders are understood and met;

considering the sustainability issues, such as environmental
and social factors, as part of its strategic formulation; and
(12) assuming responsibility for corporate governance.

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment,

and are obliged to act in good faith and consider at all times the
interest of the Company.

To execute its responsibilities, the Board has delegated specific
functions to various sub-committees, namely, the Nominating
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee. These sub-committees function within written terms
of reference and operating procedures, which are reviewed on
a regular basis. Each of these committees reports its activities
regularly to the Board.

The Board meets regularly, at least on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are held at such times, as and when required, to address
any specific significant matters that may arise. At meetings of the
Board, the Directors are free to discuss and openly challenge the
views presented by the Management and other Directors. The
decision-making process is an objective one.

The number of meetings and the Directors’ attendance at the
Board meetings and Board Committees meetings, held during the
year, are as follows:
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Board Audit Remuneration Nominating

EE 3T HItZERS FHERE REERS
Directors/ Board Members Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
E5/E5aRR SWOREL | HERE | SRS | HERE | SWORE | WRIRE | WK% | HEIRE
Mr. Wang Tianyi® FRNSEAED 7 7 NA. N.A. NA. NA. 2 2
Mr. An Xuesong RENGE 7 7 NA. N.A. NA. NA. NA. NA.
Mr. Cai Shuguang® R = = NA. NA. NA. NA. N.A. N.A.
Ms. Xu Nailing® ®BIBLE Lo "~ - NA. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Mr. Zhai Haitao BilEERLE 7 6 5 5 2 2 2 2
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul ~ #iEIBE5E4E 7 7 5 5 2 2 2 2
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee RVt 7 7 5 5 2 2 NA. N.A.
Mr. Chen Tao® PRAEREY 7 4 N.A. N.A. N.A. NA. NA. NA.
Mr. Yang Zhigiang®  #7asRsEE® 7 6 NA. N.A. NA. NA. NA. NA.

Note: i

N.A. — Not a Member of the Committee

*~ Meeting was held prior to appointment and therefore not in attendance
(1) Mr. Wang Tianyi was the Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, and has been re-designated as Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company with effect from 23 February 2017.
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(2)  Mr. Cai Shuguang was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 23 February 2017.

(3)  Ms. Xu Nailing was appointed as Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 23 February 2017.

(4)  Mr. Chen Tao resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 23 February 2017.

(5)  Mr. Yang Zhigiang resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 23 February 2017.

In lieu of physical meetings, written resolutions were also
circulated for approval by members of the Board. The Company’s
Bye-laws also provide for meetings by way of telephone, electronic
or other communication facilities.

Matters specifically reserved to the full Board for decision is
via a structured Board Authority Matrix which is reviewed on a
regular basis and accordingly revised when necessary, involving
a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or financial
restructuring, share issuance and dividends, financial results,
annual budget and corporate strategies. The Board will provide
directions to the management team of the Group’s business
divisions through presentations at Board and Board Committee
meetings.

There were two incoming Executive Directors, who are Mr. Cai
Shuguang and Ms. Xu Nailing, being appointed at the Board
meeting held on 23 February 2017.

The new Directors received relevant trainings on the roles and
responsibilities of a director of a listed company on the SGX-
ST prior to their appointment to help them familiarise with the
business and governance practices of the Company.

The current members of the Board are familiar with the Group’s
business operations and corporate governance practices. The
Nominating Committee (“NC”) ensures that new Board appointees
are provided with information to familiarise themselves with the
Group’s business, strategic goals and directions and corporate
governance practices.

The Company provides ongoing education on Board processes,
corporate governance practices and industry developments to
all Directors. The Management further provides regular updates
on changes in the relevant laws, regulations and changing
commercial risks to enable the Directors to make well-informed
decisions and to ensure that the Directors are competent in
carrying out their expected roles and responsibilities. At the same
time, the Directors are encouraged to keep themselves abreast of
the latest developments relevant to the business of the Group.

Besides that, the Directors also have the opportunity to visit the
Group’s operational facilities and meet with the Management to
gain a better understanding of the Group’s business operations.
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Board Composition and Balance

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, three of whom are
Independent Directors. The Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are:

(i Mr. Wang Tianyi (Non-Executive Director & Chairman)
(ii) Mr. An Xuesong (Executive Director & CEO)

(i) Mr. Cai Shuguang (Executive Director)

(iv)  Ms. Xu Nailing (Executive Director)

(v Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director)

(vi)  Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director)

(vii)  Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Director)

The independence of each Director is assessed and reviewed
annually by the NC. The NC adopts the Code’s definition of
what constitutes an independent director in its review. The Board
considers an independent director as one who has no relationship
with the Group, its related companies, its 10% shareholders
or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to
interfere, with the exercise of the director’s independent business
judgment with a view to the best interest of the Company and the
Group’s affairs.

Each Independent Director is required to complete a Director’s
Independence Checklist annually to confirm his/her independence
based on the guidelines as set out in the Code. For FY2016, the
NC has determined that all the three Independent Directors are
independent. In particular, Mr. Zhai Haitao is also an independent
director of the Company’s controlling shareholder Everbright
International, but he is not involved in the daily management and
operation of Everbright International. The NC determined that Mr.
Zhai Haitao is independent in character and judgment and his
role as independent director of Everbright International will not
affect his judgment as Independent Director of the Company. Mr.
Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee were appointed as
Independent Directors of the Company in July 2007. Since then,
the Company experienced changes in controlling shareholders and
the management teams twice. The current controlling shareholder,
Everbright International, only gained control of the Company in
December 2014 and the current Management team and executive
officers joined the Company following that change. Thus, although
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee served the Board
beyond nine years from the date of their appointment, both the NC
and the Board held the view that they remain independent in both
character and judgement. The Board has determined that it is of
an appropriate size to facilitate effective decision making, and to
meet the objective of having a balance of skills and experience,
taking into account the size and scope of Company’s operations.
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The current Board comprises business leaders and professionals
with industry, accounting, financial, business and management
backgrounds. This composition enables the Management to
benefit from a diverse and objective external perspective, on
issues raised before the Board. Each Director has been appointed
based on the strength of his/her caliber, experience and his/her
potential to contribute to the Group and its businesses. Profiles of
the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 26 of this Annual Report.

The Board is able to exercise objective judgment on corporate
affairs independently from the Management. No individual or group
of individuals is allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
The Board is of the view that, given its current structure, there is
sufficiently strong independent element on the Board to enable
independent exercise of objective judgment on corporate affairs of
the Group by members of the Board, taking into account factors
such as the number of Independent Directors on the Board, as
well as the size and scope of the affairs and operations of the
Group.

Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge and assist
develop proposals on strategy, and review the performance of the
Management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor
the reporting of performance.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The Board recognises the Code’s recommendation that the
Chairman and CEO should be separate persons to ensure that
there is an appropriate balance of power and authority within the
Company.

The Non-Executive Chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang
Tianyi and the CEO is Mr. An Xuesong. The Chairman bears the
responsibility for the effective conduct of the Board whilst the CEO
bears the executive responsibility for the operation of the Group’s
business. The Chairman and the CEO are not related to each
other.

The Chairman is responsible for exercising control over the quality
and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management
and the Board and ensuring compliance with the Group’s
guidelines on corporate governance. The Chairman ensures that
Board meetings are held regularly in accordance with the agreed
schedule of meetings and sets the agenda of the Board meetings.

The Chairman also builds constructive relations within the Board
and between the Board and the Management, and facilitates the
effective participation of Non-Executive Directors by promoting
a culture of openness and debate of the Board. The Chairman
further ensures effective communication with shareholders and
promotes high standards of corporate governance.
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The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group and work with the Board for strategic planning, business
development and charting the growth of the Group.

The Board is of the view that there are sufficient safeguards
and checks to ensure that the process of decision-making by
the Board is independent and based on collective decisions
without any individual exercising any considerable concentration
of power or influence. Furthermore, the Audit Committee (“AC”),
the Remuneration Committee (“RC”) and the NC are chaired by
Independent Directors.

All the Board Committees are chaired by Independent Directors
and at least one-third of the Board consist of Independent
Directors. There is no appointed Lead Independent Director after
the change of Board members on 12 December 2014. Considering
the Company’s current business operations and Board size of
seven members with three being Independent Directors, the
appointment of a Lead Independent Director for the year under
review is not necessary. Nevertheless, the Board will annually
examine the need for such appointment.

Board Membership
The NC comprises:

(i) Mr. Zhai Haitao (NC Chairman & Independent Director):
(ii) Mr. Wang Tianyi (Non-Executive Director & Chairman);
(i)~ Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director).

Majority of the NC, including the Chairman are Independent
Directors.

The key terms of references of the NC are as follows:

(1)  establishing procedures and making recommendations to
the Board on all Board appointments and re-nominations
with regards to each Director’'s contribution and
performance, his/her attendance at meetings of the Board
or the Board Committees (where applicable), participation,
candour and any special contributions;

(2) reviewing and determining annually whether a Director is
independent, bearing in mind the considerations set out in
the Code;

(3) deciding whether or not each Director is able to and
has adequately carried out his duties as a Director of the
Company, taking into consideration the Director’'s number
of listed company board representations and other principal
commitments;

(4)  developing a process for evaluation of the performance of
the Board, the Board Committees and the Directors; and

(5) reviewing of training and professional development
programmes for the Board.
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Where a vacancy arises under any circumstances, or where it is
considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a
new Director with particular skills, the NC, in consultation with the
Board, determines the selection criteria and selects candidates
with the appropriate expertise and experience for the position.
Besides the qualification and experience of each candidate, the
NC takes into consideration the candidate’s ability to increase the
effectiveness of the Board and to add value to the Company’s
business in line with its strategic objectives.

In considering the re-appointment of a Director, the NC evaluates
such Director’s contribution and performance, such as his/her
attendance at meetings of the Board or the Board Committees,
where applicable, participation, candour and any special
contributions.

All Directors are subject to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-
laws whereby:

(a) each Director shall retire at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election. For FY2016,
Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. An Xuesong are subject to
retirement pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 86(1) at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”). The NC
recommended that all of them be nominated for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM; and

(b) any Directors appointed by the Board shall retire at the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election. Mr. Cai Shuguang and Ms. Xu
Nailing were appointed by the Board in February 2017 and
therefore, they will retire pursuant to the Company’s Bye-
law 85(6) at the forthcoming AGM. The NC recommended
that all of them be nominated for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The NC conducts an annual review of the Directors’ independence
and is of the view that Mr. Zhai Haitao, Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee are independent and that, no individual or
small group of individual dominates the Board’s decision-making
process.

All Directors are required to declare their board representations.
When a Director has multiple board representation, the NC will
consider whether the Director is able to adequately carry out his/
her duties as a Director of the Company, taking into consideration
the Director’s number of listed company board representations and
other principal commitments.

The NC has reviewed and is satisfied that all Directors, who sit
on multiple boards, have been able to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company to adequately discharge
their duties as Directors of the Company, notwithstanding their
multiple board appointments. The NC did not recommend setting
of limit as to the number of listed board representative that every
Director can hold. The Board will determine the maximum number
of listed company board representations which any Director may
hold as and when required.
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There is no Alternate Director on the Board.

The dates of initial appointment, last re-election/re-appointment
and other directorship of each of the Directors of the current Board
are set out below:

~EaEiRS
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BIMEERHIVIRBE. £
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Director Position Date of Initial | Date of Last | Membership Directorship/ Chairmanship
EE A2 Appointment | Re-Election | of Board both present and those
MiRESEEE | E—RiEEF Committee held over the preceding
B EEAEIIERS | three years in other listed
F2 company
BEMR=FBEEES/ESR
Hith LA =
Mr. Wang Tianyi Non-Executive 12 Dec 2014 N.A. NC Member Present:
FRNGeHE Director and —E—E NERA REEREER China Everbright International
Chairman +—B+=H Limited (listed on HKSE)
IFHTES WE:
REEK HENKERERAT(EEBEK
32ffr k)
Mr. An Xuesong Executive 12 Dec 2014 N.A. - None
TEWRE Director and —EUE TNER I
CEO +=B+=H
WIES
REH
Mr. Cai Shuguang | Executive 23 Feb 2017 N.A. - Present:
=Bt Director —E—+F NEH China Everbright International
WTES “BZ+=H Limited (listed on HKSE)
WE:
PESEAERERAR (EEBEK
L)
Ms. Xu Nailing Executive 23 Feb 2017 N.A. - None
Gkl en Director —F—tF NeEH 7
WIES —A=+=H
Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent 14 Aug 2015 25 Apr 2016 | NC Chairman Present:
BEEERE Director —EF-hE “ENE AC Member China Everbright International
IR J\B+1H MB—+HH | RC Member Limited (listed on HKSE)
REZRSER WE:
EF"L—I_KJ\EKU_‘\ HENKERERAT(EEBEK
FHERERR 37 ilnly )
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Director Position Date of Initial | Date of Last | Membership Directorship/ Chairmanship
53 BAs% Appointment | Re-Election | of Board both present and those
MREBEEE | E—REE Committee held over the preceding
BEA EEAEIIERSE | three years in other listed
ZR company
BRiflRI=FEEEE/EFKN
Hith Eh A=
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Independent 31 July 2007 25 Apr 2016 | AC Chairman Present:
Paul Director “FFtE —F—NEF NC Member 1. Golden Energy and
MEREsTE WITES tB=1+—H ME—+HA | RC Member Resources Limited (listed
ﬁi‘f%i%fﬁ on SGX)
TE%;( J\Kgy—'\ 2. Nippercraft Limited (listed
FERSER on SGX)
IE -
1. &XERERFERARTE
EA Bz )
2. FEBRAR(FERRAT L)
Qver the preceding 3 years:
Intrepid Mines Limited (listed
on ASX)
BI=SEH(FER -
Intrepid Mlnes Limited (7B
RXZALh)
Ms. Cheng Fong Independent 31 July 2007 25 Apr 2016 | RC Chairman None
Yee Director “EEFHE —“E—NE AC Member ¥
BRI £ 7 EE tB=+—H WE—+hH | FMERSERE
HIIERSER
Board Performance EFRIET
The NC has adopted a formal process for the evaluation of the BEE2EZERESXAFANERERELESESEARN
performance of the Board as a whole and the contribution by  FEREEEENEESERENTE. TG
each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board. The EEALFENWIRNETEGIE | NTRESFUPET

performance criteria include, amongst others, an evaluation
of the size and composition of the Board, the Board’s access
to information, accountability, Board processes and Board
performance in relation to discharging its principal responsibilities
in terms of the financial indicators as set out in the Code. The
findings were analysed and discussed with a view to implementing
certain recommendations to further enhance the effectiveness of
the Board. No external facilitator was used in FY2016.

During the financial year, all Directors are requested to complete
a Board Evaluation Questionnaire and Individual Director Self
Appraisal Form designed to seek their view on the various
aspects of the Board performance and the contribution by
individual Directors respectively so as to assess the overall
effectiveness of the Board. The assessment process involves
and includes input from the Board members before submitting to
the Board for discussing and determining areas for improvement
and enhancement of the Board’s effectiveness as well as its
implementation.

Following the review, the NC assessed the Board’s performance
as a whole and the contribution by individual Directors in FY2016
and is of the view that the Board’s performance as a whole and
the contribution by individual directors are satisfactory.
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Access to Information

To enable the Board to function effectively and to fulfill its
responsibilities, the Management strives to provide the Board
members with adequate information for Board meetings and on an
ongoing basis.

The Board is furnished with Board papers prior to any Board
meeting. These papers are issued in sufficient time to enable the
Directors to obtain additional information or explanations from the
Management, if necessary.

The Board is also informed of any significant developments or
events relating to the Company timely.

The Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Management team to address any enquiries and also have
separate and independent access to the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and ensures
that they are conducted in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company and the applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. When necessary, the Directors can seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

(B) REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
The RC comprises:

(i) Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (RC Chairman & Independent
Director);

(ii) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director); and

(i)~ Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director).

The key terms of references of the RC are as follows:

(1) recommending to the Board, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Board, for endorsement, a remuneration
policy framework and guidelines for remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

(2) recommending specific remuneration packages for each of
the Directors and the senior management (including, but
not limited to, Directors’ and senior management’s fees,
salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits-in-kind);

(3)  reviewing the obligations of the Group arising in the event of
termination of the service contracts of the Directors and key
management personnel; and

(4)  administering the share incentive plans of the Group, if any.
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The RC is responsible for ensuring that a formal and transparent
procedure is in place for developing an appropriate executive
remuneration policy and a competitive framework for determining
the remuneration packages of individual Directors and key
executives. The RC recommends for the Board’s endorsement, a
framework of remuneration, including but not limited to, Director’s
fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind
for each Director and key executives. No Director shall be involved
in any decision-making in respect of any compensation to be
offered or granted to him/her.

No remuneration consultants were engaged by the Company in
FY2016.

The RC reviews the Company’s obligations arising in the event of
termination of Executive Directors and key executives’ contracts of
services to ensure that such contracts of service contain fair and
reasonable termination clause.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Under the framework developed by the RC, the RC uses the
following factors to determine the Directors’ remuneration:

(1)  qualifications and experience of the Directors required by
the Company;

(2)  for Independent Directors, the general level of fees earned
by each Director in his/her professional capacity or billed by
professionals in their industry;

(3)  time spent in preparing for meetings and actual attendance;
(4) indirect costs and expenses incurred by the Directors;

(6) such remuneration as may be considered fair and
reasonable having regard to the nature and size of the
business of the Company;

(6) level of remuneration to vary in direct proportion to the
extent of involvement and participation in and contribution to
the business of the Company;

(7)  the level of commitment and the ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to the business of the Company; and

(8) where special circumstances justify, the payment of
additional remuneration.

Annual reviews are carried out by the RC to ensure that key
executives are appropriately rewarded, giving due regard to the
financial health and business needs of the Group without being
excessive and thereby maximise shareholders’ value.
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The Executive Directors have entered into service agreements
with the Company. Their compensation consists of salary, fixed
fee and incentive bonus that are dependent on the Group’s
performance.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation
packages appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the Directors
and the key executives.

The Independent Directors receive directors’ fees in accordance
with their level of contributions, taking into account factors such
as effort and time spent for serving on the Board and the Board
Committees, as well as the responsibilities and obligations of the
Directors. The Company recognises the need to pay competitive
fees to attract, motivate and retain the Directors without being
excessive to the extent that their independence might be
compromised.

Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval by the
shareholders at the AGMs of the Company.

Disclosure on Remuneration
A breakdown of the remuneration of the Directors and the top five
key executives (who are not Directors) for the financial year ended

31 December 2016 is set out below:

a) The level and mix of each Director’s remuneration are as

~EaEiRS
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ROAE,

FrNaIHE
HE_ZF—F+_A=1t—HINVBFERN
EEMROREEEEAR (KBEES ) 19F
EMBRARZRANT

a) EREEMFMKTHASUT

follows:
Remuneration Band and Directors’ Salary Bonus Benefits Total
Name of Director Fee% % % in kind % %
FREFERES EEHE% T8%  ¥e% TUERN% Bit%
S$$500,000 to below S$750,000
500,0008F 1118 7TE750,0005F I TLL T
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRNAE - 51 48 1 100
Mr. An Xuesong TEMSE — 48 49 3 100
S$$250,000 to below S$500,000
250,000 313% 7T E500,0005F 1T T
Below S$250,000
250, 0005818 TIA T
Mr. Cai Shuguang* i vy vy - - - - -
Ms. Xu Nailing* Rt - - - - -
Mr. Chen Tao* [ e - - _ _ _
Mr. Yang Zhigiang* A v = — - — 100 100
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEEEkE 94 - - 6 100
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul MERESRE 88 - - 12 100
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee BRI £ 85 - — 15 100

* Appointed as Executive Director with effect from 23 February 2017.
# Resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect with from 23 February
2017.

Y R tE AT ERERE N TER.
’ B _E—tF B +=AEFHETESE.
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The Board believes that it is not in the best interest of the
Company to fully disclose precise remuneration given the highly
competitive industry conditions for the environmental water sectors
particularly in the Peoples’ Republic of China.

b) The level and mix of each key executive’s (who is not a
Director) remuneration in bands are as follows:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BEREE  £ETIMRIKSTL , TEREFE
AERMRK ST AR SIER . ROWERR
HOFEN AT AR R EIRIR AR,

b) HBEEEEAR (KREESZHRM) K95
BXKFANASHIBERELT

Benefits

Salary Bonus in kind Total
Remuneration Band and Name of Key Executive % % % %
FENEEEEEEAR SR I&E% RE% SEHEFI% Bit%
Below S$250,000
250,0005F 3% TIA T
Mr. Luo Junling® BRIS AN 51 40 9 100
Mr. Tao Junjie PRI 54 38 8 100
Mr. Wang Yuexing BT viras 56 35 9 100
Mr. Wang Guangping  E&¥5c&E 55 32 13 100
Mr. Cheung Lap Kei®  3k375&5c4®@ 98 - 2 100

(1) Appointed as Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) with effect from 23
February 2017, and prior to that, he was a Vice President.
(2)  Resigned as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 3 January 2017.

The aggregate amount of the total remuneration paid to the
abovementioned top key executive is $$1,000,000.

There are no employees of the Group who are immediate
family members of a Director and whose remuneration exceeds
S$$50,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

The China Everbright Water Limited Employee Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders at the
Company’s special general meeting (“SGM”) held on 27 October
2011. The Group has granted options to the Directors and the
key executives under the Scheme on 15 November 2013 and the
options granted have been fully exercised by the employees of the
Company and the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Scheme will continue to be in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of adoption till 27 October 2021.

As at 31 December 2016, there is no outstanding share option
granted under the Scheme.
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(C) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
value and returns for shareholders. In the discharge of its duties
to shareholders, the Board, when reporting the Group’s financial
performance via SGXNET announcements and the Annual Report,
has a responsibility to present a fair assessment of the Group’s
financial performance, position and prospects. The Management
currently provides the Board with detailed management accounts
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects on a quarterly
basis and/or when requested. Such reports provide highlight of
key business indicators and major issues relevant to the Group’s
performance, position and prospects. Directors have access to the
Management at all times.

In line with the Listing Rules of the SGX-ST, the Board provides a
negative assurance statement to the shareholders in its quarterly
financial statements announcements, confirming to the best of its
knowledge that nothing had come to the attention of the Board
which might render the financial statements false or misleading in
any material aspect.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Group’s internal controls and systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance to the integrity
and reliability of the financial information and to safeguard and
maintain the accountability of the assets. While no cost effective
internal control system can provide absolute assurance against
loss or misstatement, the AC, with the participation of the Board,
has reviewed the adequacy of the Group’s internal controls and
systems to ensure that they are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, operational controls are
in place, business risks are suitably managed, proper accounting
records are maintained and the integrity of financial information
used for business and publication are preserved.

The internal auditors conduct annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s key internal controls including financial, operational,
compliance, information technology and sustainability risks
management. The external auditors during the conduct of their
normal audit procedures may also report on matters relating to
internal control. Any material non-compliance and recommendation
for improvements are reported to the AC. The AC also reviews and
continues to monitor the effectiveness of the actions taken by the
Management on the recommendations made by the internal and
external auditors in this respect.
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Based on the work performed by the internal and external
auditors, the AC reviews the findings from the internal and external
auditors on the Group’s internal controls and the Management’s
responses to the auditors’ recommendations for improvement to
the Group’s internal controls and discussions with the auditors
and Management. The Board, with the concurrence of the AC,
is satisfied with the adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, addressing financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls and sustainability
risks as at 31 December 2016 and that Management has taken
efforts to minimise the risk of recurrence of such lapses.

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO
that the financial records of the Company have been properly
maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the Company’s operations and finances; and regarding the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The risk management is subject to the AC and no other dedicated
committee is set up. The risk management department is
responsible for summarising the risk management results of each
department and assessing the potential material risks confronting
the Group according to the risk management program of the
Group, formulating and implementing the risk management plan
for the next year.

Audit Committee
The AC comprises:

(i) Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (AC Chairman & Independent Director);
(i) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director); and
(i)  Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Director).

The Board considers Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul, who has extensive
and practical financial management knowledge and experience, is
well qualified to chair the AC.

The members of the AC, collectively, have recent and relevant
accounting or related financial management expertise or
experience to discharge the AC’s responsibilities.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its
terms of reference. It has full access to, and the co-operation
of the Management and full discretion to invite any Director or
any key executive to attend its meetings. The AC has adequate
resources, including access to external auditors, to enable it to
discharge its responsibilities properly.

The AC met five times in the financial year ended 31 December
2016 and relevant Directors and Management members were
invited to attend the meetings.
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The functions of the AC include:

(@)

reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and
judgements so as to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any announcements relating to
the Group’s financial performance;

reviewing and reporting to the Board the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls, comprising
financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls, including procedures for entering
into hedging transactions (such review can be carried out
internally or with the assistance of any competent third
parties);

reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function;

reviewing the scope and results of the external audit, and
the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

making recommendations to the Board on the proposals
to the shareholders on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors;

reviewing any interested person transactions as defined in
the SGX-ST Listing Rules;

reviewing potential conflicts of interest, if any, including
reviewing and considering transactions in which there may
be potential conflicts of interests between the Group and
interested persons and recommending whether those who
are in a position of conflict should abstain from participating
in any discussions or deliberations of the Board or voting
on resolutions of the Board of the Shareholders in relation
to such transactions as well as to ensure that proper
measures to mitigate such conflicts of interest have been
put in place;

reviewing the rectification measures and internal control
measures relating to regulatory issues involving the Group’s
licences, permits or certificates etc;

reviewing the investments in our customers, suppliers and
competitors made by the Directors, controlling shareholders
and their respective associates who are involved in
management of the Group or have shareholding interests
in similar or related business of the Group and making
assessments on whether there are any potential conflicts
of interests and ensuring that proper measures to mitigate
such conflicts of interests have been put in place;
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() reviewing the statements to be included in the annual report
concerning the adequacy of internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems;

(k) monitoring the implementation of outstanding internal
control recommendations and/or observations highlighted
by the external auditors in the course of their audit of the
statutory financial statements;

h reviewing whistle-blowing investigations within the Group
and ensuring appropriate follow-up action, if required;

(m) planning and overseeing the implementation of the
measures in respect of the legal representatives of the PRC
subsidiaries;

(n)  undertaking such other reviews and projects as may be
requested by the Board, and report to the Board its findings
from time to time on matters arising and requiring the
attention of the AC; and

(o)  generally undertaking such other functions and duties as
may be required by statute or the SGX-ST Listing Rules, or
by such amendments as may be made thereto from time to
time on a quarterly basis.

The AC meets with the internal auditors and external auditors
separately, at least once a year, without the presence of the
Management to review any matter that might be raised.

The AC and the external auditor have discussed the significant
issues in financial reporting throughout the year at the AC
meetings. As set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages
69 to 74, the following significant issues were discussed with the
management and the external auditors and were reviewed by the
AC:
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Significant issues

BEASEIR

How the issue was addressed by the AC

HiIIERSERXFERLBRT

Revenue recognition — service
concession arrangements

WA —IRSFTEENEHE

The key area reviewed by the AC on revenue recognition was the service
concession arrangements of water treatment plants under IFRIC 12. The
AC received confirmation from the management that consistent accounting
policy was applied throughout the year for recognising revenue under
IFRIC 12. The AC assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the Group’s independent financial model consultant. The AC also
considered the approach, methodology and key assumptions applied to
the financial model for the determination of the fair value of construction
services. The AC is satisfied with the appropriateness of the methodology
applied and the reasonableness of the key assumptions used.
HItERASREEMYS RS IEEEZERRIEES 1 2SHNEHASRNEE R
7SR RIRSBEATEENTHE. FIHERSCREEEWA , HETHAT
FERTFEREEMYSREIEEZRRIERR 1 2SHHARERA—SN=
ITBER, BIERSEITHE T AEERZVSEEMENEE. 8ehREMML,
HITRERSEE R THERERSHIATNERRBNAR. FEREERIR.
HItRERESWATRAL EZ A EEERAEFHERERIZZ SEEERNHR.

Recoverability of trade and other
receivables

JO7 TR R LAt ST LR TR A =T Wiz [E172
E

The AC and the Board receive regular updates from the Management on
the progress of debt collection and repayment negotiation with customers
in the year. The AC is satisfied with the attention and effort taken by the
Management on the outstanding debt issues. Besides taking into account
the opinion and findings from the Management and the external auditors,
the AC also considered the appropriateness of the provision held against
the carrying values of trade and other receivables in relation to the
creditworthiness of customers. The AC is satisfied that no provision for
doubtful debts was considered necessary as at 31 December 2016.
HiItERENEECEEEECIREA XA ERARSBRNER N AERSE
F#HTIENOHE. FitERSHEEEENERERRSEIRIR TR ATH
550, BRERTEEERINMEHITITNENR RIS , FitERRSRERF
S FRRREE R 7 R R Bt S R B M E AT EIR BRI RIS, Bt
ERSINATAH T —F—7"NF+ B =1+—HZ MBI HRIRE.

Following the review and discussions, the AC recommended to the ~ Z2EZRITISE , Bt ERSENESESHET
Board to approve the full year financial statements for FY2016. F—\VUBEENEEUSIRE.

During the financial year under review, the AC has reviewed and HEAMBEE , FitERESLHERIEBING
noted that there were no non-audit services provided to the Group  EFiHIKPMG LLPREAEFZEFAIEE TR
by the external auditors, KPMG LLP, and thus is satisfied that the — $5 , EItLIASIZSMNERERIHIBAIRSZ RN IER
independence and objectivity of the external auditors will not be  S{HIEIMA,

prejudiced.

The fees paid or payable to the external auditors is set out on  [EIFNEBERIHITE I ERRTHIZE RIS IENAFEER

page 151 of this Annual Report.
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As part of ongoing good corporate governance initiatives, the AC
is of the view that it would be timely to effect a change of external
auditors with effect from the financial year commencing 1 January
2017. KPMG LLP, the retiring external auditors, will accordingly not
be seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. The AC has
recommended the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as external
auditors in place of the retiring auditors KPMG LLP.

Further details about the proposed appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as the external auditors are set out in the Company’s letter to
shareholders dated 6 April 2017.

The AC is satisfied that the Company has complied with Rules
712, 715 and 716 of the SGX-ST Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of its external auditors for FY2016 and in making the
above-mentioned appointment recommendation.

The Company has put in place a whistle blowing policy (the
“Policy”) to provide an avenue to all Directors and employees to
report any concern or complaint regarding financial reporting and
questionable accounting practices; criminal offences, unlawful and/
or unethical acts, fraud, corruption, bribery and blackmail; failure to
comply with legal or regulatory obligations and concealment of any
of the abovementioned issues.

During the financial year, there was no material whistle blowing
report received by the AC regarding the above-mentioned
concerns.

An e-mail address and a special telephone number are
established to allow whistle blowers to contact of the AC Chairman
directly. All concerns or irregularities raised will be treated
with confidence and every effort will be made to ensure that
confidentiality is maintained throughout the process.

The AC is guided by the terms of reference which stipulate its
principal functions.

The AC meets regularly with the Management and the external
auditors to review auditing and risk management matters and
discuss accounting implication of any major transactions including
significant financial reporting issues. It also reviews the internal
audit functions to ensure the adequacy and an effective system of
control is maintained in the Group.

On a quarterly basis, the AC also reviews the interested person
transactions and the financial results announcements before their
submission to the Board for approval.

The AC is kept abreast by the Management and the external
auditors of change to accounting standards, the SGX-ST Listing
Rules and other regulations which could have an impact on the
Group’s business and financial statements.

No former partners or director of the Company’s existing audit firm

or audit corporation is a member of the AC.

56  China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

ERBENRFATEEENN—ES , FitE
RSNARHERBE -F—tF—B—BHFEN
W EEZREINERE TP, AMGEIRAISMNERE T
JIKPMG LLPEIIEABIREEEFRIFE
BEAS FiEE. FIFERSEFB{EEmst &
Young LLPE(EARLTIRIIMNEBERIHD , LAAE
BPEERAIINRERITHIFKPMG LLP,

BIBBTEmSt & Young LLPIE(TANBERIHTIE
SR EES IS —CENAAAARBRERN
.

HIFZERESWA , ZAARE_F—7\UBFEH
RAEH DA HERRSIE ST T AT LSS
7125, SB7155F05 71655 XIEEINEBEHITHIT
BIRE.

AREHETEIRBER( "BR" ) , AAEES
RRTRHERE , SREMEFXIER AR
BXRMSREMTESIHTH. MELFE. IF
EF/EARERIT . BGF. &5, BIBHEER
BRBEE TIATE XS AR S I RIA RIRRA ST

EAMBFE  FitERSIFEREIEX LiXSE
TRRIEERZ R,

AR T U EHRAVEE FHPEFI T LIS |
ERATLEZRKRFRITERSER. ARt
AR RIESIEGEN T A BN R RS
B, AREIBR—ISHHRENBRIEBE
REZRT,

HITERSIRHIMCEEEITIRE.

HitZERSEHNEEEMINEHEITD , FE
HIFINE SRS, TNeENEARZ(BE
BEAMSHREFRHSIIE. CERENEREH
THEREE | IRAEERIFFR D BRAIEHIH.

HitZEREREREESHFMLRSTHERESD
FENRBRALIRZIMS LS AE.

EEEMIMBEREIHIRFE T ZERERABRATEE
SXAREFRIN SIS IRERT LRI
N, FHraZAT EiAATEE AR N3 E.,

AR EBRREREIHIESAEE T ARREIE
BRAREEIFEFHERSIER.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Internal Audit

The objective of the internal audit function is to provide an
independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls and provide reasonable assurance to the AC and the
Management that the Group’s risk management, controls and
governance processes are adequate and effective.

evaluation and

The AC approves the hiring, removal,

compensation of the internal auditors.

The Company has its internal audit team (“IA”) to strengthen
the internal audit function and promote sound risk management,
including financial, operational, compliance, information technology
controls, sustainability and good corporate governance.

The A reports primarily to the AC Chairman and has full access to
the documents, records properties and personnel of the Company
and of the Group.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a
system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s businesses and assets, while the Management is
responsible for establishing and implementing the internal control
procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.

IAs main scope of work covers the review and evaluation
of processes and areas of concerns identified. |A assists
Management in enhancing existing risk management initiatives
and carry out regular independent monitoring of key controls and
procedures. The findings and recommendations in relation to
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and process
improvements will be presented to the AC and the Management.

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function has adequate
resources to perform its functions effectively.

Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted
during reviews are reported together with recommended corrective
actions to the AC on a regular basis. In particular, the Company
had certain outstanding licenses and/or permits in relation to its
business and operations as at November 2014 (“Licenses and/
or Permits”) as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
12 November 2014. The IA followed up on the status of such
Licenses and/or Permits and noted that the Company obtained the
following Licenses and/or Permits during the year under review:
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Project Company (plant/project)
W28 (I /mB)

Licenses and/or Permits obtained

BR{SRYVFRIIER/skitbitE

Everbright Water (Zibo Zhoucun) Water Purification Limited
(Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water Treatment Project)

FEAKSS (EIERN ) FKERAE

(EEENISKGEE )

Construction Project Planning Certificate,
Construction Work Permit and Construction
Completion Acceptance Filing

I TIEMANVFRNE. IR TREMETIF oI,
B TIEZR

Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited (formerly known as Nanjing
Golden Idea Water Development Co., Ltd.)

(Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |
Upgrading)

FAKSS (R ) BRAE (EHAE  BRSEKSEEERAT )

( FAmA OISR H —HBRARUE )

Construction Project Planning Certificate
and Construction Work Permit
I TEMIFRNE, SR TR TIFaNIE

Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited (formerly known as Nanjing
Golden Idea Water Development Co., Ltd.)

(Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase II)
FHAKS (R ) BRAE (EHE  mRSBKSEESRAT )

(FATE SRR — 8 )

Construction Project Planning Certificate
EIR TFERFEIE

Sanmenxia Everbright Water Limited (formerly known as
Sanmenxia HanKore Co., Ltd.)

(Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase 1)
ZNRSEAKSBIRAT ( BAE | =JBXEVKSERAT )

( =S KAERE—E )

Construction Project Planning Certificate
IR TR RNE

Everbright Water (Boxing) Limited

(Binzhou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il Expansion)
FEAKSS (18X ) BIRAF

(GENSAMETE "B 2 THE )

Construction Completion Acceptance Filing
RTINS

Everbright Water (Ji'nan Licheng) Limited

(Ji'nan Licheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |
and Phase |l Expansion)

FERIKS (FFEalhtEk ) BIRAT

(FFRammGsKEIE (=) —H8. (=) B #TIRE)

Construction Completion Acceptance Filing
B TIoER

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited

(Ji'nan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4))
FEAIKSS (FFE8 ) BIRAE

(FRafaES/KEEINE (1) )

Construction Completion Acceptance Filing
R TIGNEREE

Everbright Water (Lianyungang) Limited
(Xugou Waste Water Treatment Project)
KRG (E=E ) BIRAE
(E=BIEESKGIEIE )

Pollutant Discharge Permit
HESVFANIE

The results of the internal audit findings are also shared with the
external auditors to assist them in their audit planning and also for
them to perform further checks on the weak areas identified.
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(D) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholder Rights

To facilitate shareholders’ ownership rights, the Company ensures
that all material information is disclosed on a comprehensive,
accurate and timely basis via SGXNET, especially information
pertaining to the Group’s business development and financial
performance which could have a material impact on the share
price of the Company, so as to enable shareholders to make
informed decisions in respect of their investment in the Company.

The Management supported the Code’s principle to encourage
shareholder participation. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the shareholders’ meeting to ensure a high level of accountability
and to stay informed of the Company’s strategy and goals. Notices
are despatched to shareholders, published in the Business
Times as well as posted onto the SGXNET. The Board welcomes
questions from shareholders who have an opportunity to raise
issues either informally or formally before or at the shareholders’
meeting.

The Company will be conducting poll voting for all resolutions to
be passed in this forthcoming AGM. The rules, including voting
procedures will be explained by the scrutineers in this meeting.
If any shareholder is unable to attend general meetings, the
Company’s Bye-laws allow each shareholder to appoint up to
two proxies to attend and vote at all general meetings on his/her
behalf.

In line with continuous disclosure obligations of the Company,
and pursuant to the SGX-ST Listing Rules and the Bermuda
Companies Act, the Board ensures that shareholders are fully
informed of all major developments that impact the Group on a
timely and equally basis.

Information is disseminated to the shareholders on a timely basis
through:

(i) SGXNET announcements and press releases;

(ii) Annual Reports prepared and issued to all shareholders;
and

(i) Company’s website at www.ebwater.com at which
shareholders can access information on the Group.

The Company does not practise selective disclosure of material
information. All materials on the quarterly, half-yearly and full
year results briefing for media and analysts are available on the
Company’s website — www.ebwater.com.

The respective Chairman of the Board Committees will be
available at the forthcoming AGM to answer questions relating
to the work of those sub-committees. The external auditors and
the Legal Counsel and Company Secretary will also be present to
assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries from the
shareholders.
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Our Management acknowledges that effective communication
with investors is of paramount importance to the Group. In order
to reinforce mutual understanding between shareholders and the
Company, we have established and maintained a number of ways
to strengthen our communication with investors.

Measures that the Company has taken are as follows:

(a)  organising analyst briefings to explain our latest published
financial information as well as to provide our business
update when necessary;

(b)  attending meetings or telephone conferences requested by
investors, or shareholders or analysts on an ongoing basis
throughout the year to assist them in understanding the
latest updates relating to the Company;

(c) organising road shows for our investors or potential
investors. This may be done solely by ourselves or
coordinated with investment bankers;

(d)  organising plant visits by investors or potential investors to
our facilities; and

(e) ensuring important information of the Group will be
announced in a timely manner without delay.

The Group does not have a policy on payment of dividends
at present. However, the Company has proposed to distribute
final dividend for FY2016 subject to shareholders’ approval. The
shareholders may elect to receive dividends in the form of scrip
in lieu of cash for the final dividend for FY2016. Details of such
dividend payments would be disclosed via SGXNET when
available.

(E) CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS

Shareholders are informed of shareholders’ meetings through
notices contained in annual reports or circulars sent to all
shareholders. These notices are also published in the Business
Times and posted onto the SGXNET.

If shareholders are unable to attend the meetings, the Bye-laws
allow a shareholder of the Company to appoint not more than two
proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

Resolutions at general meetings are on each substantially
separate issue. All the resolutions at the general meetings are
single item resolutions.

The respective Chairman of the Board Committees are in
attendance at the Company’s AGM to address shareholders’
questions relating to the work of these Committees.
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The Company’s external auditors are also invited to attend the
AGM and are available to assist the Directors in addressing any
relevant queries by the shareholders relating to the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report.

The Board views the AGMs as the principal forum for dialogue with
shareholders, being an opportunity for shareholders to raise issues
pertaining to the resolutions tabled for approval and/or ask the
Directors or the Management questions regarding the Company
and its operations.

To have greater transparency in the voting process, with effect
from the 2014 AGM, the Company has conducted the voting of
all its resolutions by poll at all its AGMs and SGMs. The detailed
voting results of each of the resolutions tabled are announced
immediately at the meeting. The total numbers of votes cast for or
against the resolutions are also announced after the meeting via
SGXNET.

(F) DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

In line with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Rules, the
Group prohibits its Directors and employees from trading in the
Company’s securities on short-term considerations. In addition,
the Group prohibits its Directors and employees from dealing in
the Company’s securities during the periods commencing two
weeks before the announcement of the Group’s first three quarters
results and one month before the announcement of the Group’s
full year results and ending on the date of the announcement of
such results; and when they are in possession of price-sensitive
and confidential information relating to the Group.

In addition, Directors, employees and connected persons are
expected to observe insider trading laws at all times even when
dealing in securities within the permitted trading period.

(G) MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts of the Group involving the
interests of any Directors or controlling shareholders subsisting at
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2016, or entered
into since the end of the previous financial year.

(H) INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all
transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely
manner to the AC and that transactions are conducted on
arm’s length basis and not prejudicial to the interests of the
shareholders.

~EaEiRS

ARERSMBFEITHTEAESINFEEREAS |
FinEEFRIERFRHIEXH IR, &
THREAREIRER S ST EANE.

EERNN  FERFASESKRFNENEER
Fa | RRRNERHENAISTURINR A
M/ AR B REZREREENEEERD
BIS.

AERRIREMER | T —EFRRIR
ReiE , ARENIEFEERFASHERIRE
REBFTERMIIRARRIREHIRIRRT .
BRRRIBURNAIRRERFBIIES L
BEM., BHESRTRYNEEMEAEREEY
SGXNETAE.

(F) EFRB

TRIBF AT EAAINIEE 1207 (19)SRAT8IE | A&
AZEILHESNERIEERZ A ATRIES. L
o AERBRIEHESEMEREAEAE =
FENSEEHRINA N ZEHERNEER2F
W RHRBIN—BRRiZF ISR BiXR
R B A AT ; FRERESFTEREX
BN EERERMREEE R ERBE AT
AYIEss.

s BE. BREKEKSRERERITRS
RYHARIB N 4R &8 TIESFRIR B R % 75 EAYE
=

(G) EXER

FEHE_F—AF+B=T—HINMEEE
B, AEFAFRFES R IEF SRR
@mNEREE ;| B LM MREERIEALSRAE
AR ESHURATERTS R EETIERRER
NmHEAER.

(H  XERALZS
RABHET KREXA LR ZRIER |, BRSKEX

ATHITRIPME R ZEH M CIREITRR AT
RZEXZER AT 2 RIRBIRERF NS,

ZE—RFEIRE  Annual Report 2016 61



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

~ERERS

The Company does not have a general shareholders’ mandate for
recurrent interested person transactions. The aggregate value of
the interested person transactions entered into during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 in excess of S$100,000 is set out

as follows:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

RABFRINEEEAIRKA TR ZEBUSRE
M—RHEN, BBREZF—"FT+"A=1—
B LR S E R EEEIE 100,0005 I03KTHY
KEALRZRZHNRITRZBINMEN TR

Name of interested person

KEAALRBR

Aggregate value of all interested
person transactions during
the financial year under review
(excluding transactions less
than S$100,000 and transactions
conducted under shareholders’
mandate pursuant to Rule 920) (S$)

EORYHEERREXBEALIRS
RZEitE£&H (£WMAPF100,000F700
B RELHRUNEI20RIT TR
HF—RUEENMETHREZR)
( FhbnigTT )

Aggregate value of all interested
person transactions conducted
under shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 (excluding
transactions less than $$100,000
(S$)

1RIE LTS5 92052 I FAR G — AR
TSI EETRIXEAA TR SRRt
£ ({E£FHF100,000FMNiET
B9ERSM ) (FRONLRETT )

PENAIMEERBIRAT

Everbright Environmental 1,728,911 N.A.
Protection (China) Limited &
HARIMR (FE ) BIRAE

China Everbright Protection 555,899 N.A.
Holdings Limited RNEH
FECRIMAIZIRBIR AT

China Everbright Bank 443,717 N.A.
FEEAIRTT NER
China Everbright Environmental 392,674 N.A.
Group Limited NER
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We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of
the Company together with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 75 to 175 are
drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at
31 December 2016 and the financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
on that date in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards; and

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds
to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement,

authorised these financial statements for issue.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Wang Tianyi
An Xuesong
Cai Shuguang (appointed on 23 February 2017)
Xu Nailing (appointed on 23 February 2017)
Zhai Haitao

Lim Yu Neng Paul
Cheng Fong Yee

HARARARADRFRERFR  EREET
B NFt+-A=t—HIMBEEZLHIY
BiRE.
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Directors’ interests

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the
directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any
interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related
corporations, except as follows:

EEN
RIEESRNEICH | TYBEELSREN , 7%

HEIREETARNBRHEBXADZROERES
BEEANRE , EATER

Holdings in which

Holdings registered
in the name of directors

directors are deemed
to have an interest

AR N EHCZIRR ESEUPEENEZIRN

As at As at

As at 31/12/2016 As at 31/12/2016

Name of director and 1/1/2016 HE_—F—\ 1/1/2016 HEZS—

corporation in which FENEZESNE BE—S—X S+-B= #@E"FT—N Ft+-BA=

interests are held BATIEM $—B—H +—HB &—B—H +—H
The Company b /N |
Ordinary shares ZiER

Lim Yu Neng Paul MfEIRE - - 1,558,400 1,608,909

Cheng Fong Yee FBRUK 622,266 622,266 - -

Chen Dawei iy N 49,524,955 N.A. - N.A.

(resigned with effect from (BZE—EF
1 February 2016) —B—Hi2iE) &R AEA

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office
at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, share
options, warrants or debentures of the Company or of related
corporations, either at the beginning or at the end of the financial
year.

PRAFEBARTINEEE S . TGRS RAITEER
EEMATMRFERSER T A AESE
RAFIZBD. B INBRAUIES AR5 AR

EO

Holdings registered in the
name of directors

LAEESE 23 MECZBE
As at 1/1/2016 As at 31/12/2016
FE—RF—H FE—RF+"H
—H =+—H
Medium Term Note-Corporate = HEAZEE—/\ElFSE
Bond
Chen Dawei FRAH - N.A.
(resigned with effect (BZF—F NEH

from 1 February 2016) —B—BiEEHT)

There were no changes in any of the above-mentioned interests
in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21
January 2017.
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Share options
Employee share option scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company established an employee
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) that entitles key
management personnel and controlling shareholders to purchase
shares in the Company at an exercise price determined by the
committee established to administer this share option programme
(‘ESOS Committee”), comprising of independent directors
and two other directors (may be nominated by the board) of the
Company.

Other information regarding the Scheme is as follows:

Options granted on 15 November 2013

° The exercise price of each option after shares consolidation
is fixed at SGDO0.64.
° The share option shall be exercised, in whole or in part,

from 16 November 2014 to 15 November 2023.

° All options are settled by physical delivery of shares.
The options expire after 10 years.

At the end of the financial year, details of the options granted
under the Scheme on unissued ordinary shares of the Company
are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EE Rl

HAfY
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PP HARUILASER RS BRI S
T+ IEZIE.

FUMBERELERE , BXRREHIMALTRE
ITEERATRHERZIFIRINT

Options Options
outstanding outstanding
Exercise at 1/1/2016 at 31/12/2016
Date of grant price per FoB—REF Options Options F-F—F
of options share —B—HiEkRT granted exercised +=-B=+—H
{SHE B EA SaRTRUN fEZHAR CIEHEI S1T{ERIN ERITEEZHRN
15/11/2013 SGDO0.64 - - - -
—F=F 0.64FT Nk TT
+—B+H&H

Details of options granted to the directors of the Company and key
management personnel are as follows:

There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries
under options granted by the Company or its subsidiaries as at the
end of the financial year.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of
the options, by virtue of such holding, to any rights to participate in
any share issue of any other company.
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Warrants TABZAGIE
At the end of the financial year, details of the unissued ordinary FUBEELRE , BXRIARBUER FALQE]
shares of the Company under warrants are as follows: REITEERZIFEBUOT :
Warrants Warrants
outstanding outstanding
at 1/1/2016 at 31/12/2016
Exercise F-B—F Warrants Warrants F_FB—F
Date of issue price —B—Hi#EkT exercised expired +=-B=+—H
RiTEHA 17 EZINRRGE = CTEARGE  SEHBARSGE  BRIFEZIARSGE
26/4/2010 SGD0.25 - - - -
“F-FFMNA 025 KT
—t7"H

Each warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. The warrants do not entitle the
holders of the warrants, by virtue of such holdings, to any rights to
participate in any share issue of any other company.

As at the end of the financial year, except as reported above, no
other warrants to take up unissued shares of the Company were
granted and no shares were issued by virtue of the exercise of
warrants to take up unissued shares of the Company.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this statement
are as follows:

Lim Yu Neng Paul (Chairman)
Zhai Haitao (Member)
Cheng Fong Yee (Member)

All members of the Audit Committee are independent and non-
executive directors. The Audit Committee carried out its functions
as required by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Manual and the Code of Corporate
Governance.

Based on the internal control established and maintained by the
Group, the work performed by the internal and external auditors
(to the extent as required by them to form an opinion on the
financial statements), and the reviews conducted by management,
the Audit Committee and the Board, with the concurrence of
the Audit Committee, is of the opinion that the Group’s internal
controls addressing financial, operational and compliance risks
were adequate as at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has held four meetings since the last
directors’ statement. In performing its functions, the Audit
Committee met with the Company’s external and internal auditors
to discuss the scope of their work, the results of their examination
and evaluation of the Company’s internal accounting control
system.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

° assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the
internal and external auditors;

° quarterly financial information and annual financial
statements of the Group and the Company prior to their
submission to the directors of the Company for adoption;
and

° interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of
the SGX Listing Manual).

The Audit Committee has full access to management and is
given the resources required for it to discharge its functions. It
has full authority and the discretion to invite any director or
executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee also
recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews
the level of audit and non-audit fees.

As part of ongoing good corporate governance initiatives, the
Audit Committee is of the view that it would be timely to effect a
change of auditors with effect from the financial year commencing
1 January 2017. KPMG LLP, the retiring auditors, will accordingly
not be seeking re-appointment at the AGM. Ernst & Young
LLP was selected for the proposed appointment after the Audit
Committee deliberated on the background and credentials of Ernst
& Young LLP and taking into consideration that Ernst & Young
is the existing auditor for China Everbright International Limited,
being the parent of the Company which is listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, and its subsidiaries (other than the Group)
(together with the Group, the “Everbright International Group”).
In recommending the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, the Audit
Committee also took into consideration various factors, such as
Ernst & Young LLP has adequate resources and experience to
handle the audit, the audit engagement partner assigned to the
audit has the appropriate level of experience and there will be an
adequate number of experienced professional staff to be assigned
to the audit, having regard to the size and complexity of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee also took into
account the Audit Quality Indicators Framework as recommended
by the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority when
considering Ernst & Young LLP for appointment. After evaluation,
the Audit Committee was satisfied with the experience and
credentials of Ernst & Young LLP and recommended that Ernst
& Young LLP be selected for the proposed appointment, which
would also enable the Everbright International Group to effectively
streamline and rationalise its audit process within the group.
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KPMG LLP has been the auditors of the Company and its
subsidiaries since 15 May 2014. The directors wish to express
their appreciation for the past services rendered by KPMG LLP.

Auditors

KPMG LLP will retire at the forthcoming AGM and will not seek for
re-appointment.

The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment of Ernst
& Young LLP as the new auditors of the Company following the
retirement of KPMG LLP and such proposed appointment is
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Wang Tianyi
Non-Executive Director and Chairman

An Xuesong
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

24 March 2017
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Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China Everbright
Water Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group and the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out
on pages 75 to 175.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) so as to
present fairly, in all material respects the consolidated financial
position of the Group and the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2016 and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct
and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities ((ACRA
Code’) together with the ethhical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements

EfRVSREUSIERERSIEEE12S - IRSIHFNEHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETS—"\FTA=1+—HLHNUBFEE

Revenue from service concession arrangements (HK$2,494,037,000 ) (Refer to Notes 3.12 and 20 to the financial

statements).

IRSEATR=HEZ N (B 2,494,037,0005T ) (BEHGE

The key audit matter
—_— Iﬁ

M43 IRARBNES. 1 2R BHE20A9STTBER ) .

The Group enters into service concession
arrangements with municipals to build and/or operate
waste water treatment plants.

REEE S BATER IR SRR RURIE R /SIEE T 3L
ARSEATINEHE.

Accounting for revenue from long-term service
concession arrangements under IFRIC12 requires
revenue to be recognised on construction, during
service delivery and as a capital return on the asset.
RIEERUSIREVSIERERRIERB12SHMEK , Ak
HARSSFATITEZN, JFTFEFEBIE | IBHRSLIRIK
VR A ARSI,

The amount of revenue recognised is dependent on
the Group’s estimate of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction
completed during the year. Significant judgement is
required in determining the fair value of construction
services which involves making estimates of the total
construction costs and the margin for each contract.
The Group engages an independent financial model
consultant to assist in the estimation of the fair value of
construction services.
FREARA S BT REFRIERSZHANMER
T OAERHE, AEEZERSNARMER , MfbitE
MEERSRERARAER , Mzt REXFIR. =&
FEEEIR N SRR BRI E RS I A TS NME.

The percentage of construction completed during
the year is estimated based on the survey of work
performed by independent surveyor with relevant
qualification and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of work done.
FRIRTTHENMGITTRUBEXRRR T EZIRHIRT
WEITRONE TIEREL, AT IDHEERELHIRT,
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We assessed whether the revenue recognition
policies adopted by the Group complied with IFRSs, in
particular the requirements of IFRIC 12.

B THERERE R ANBERE S S B SRS
)ﬂ;}g  FRIRERUSIREVMFEBRERRERE125H0E

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the Group’s independent financial model consultant
and surveyor.

A iTh 2R SRR RIS A SR B BIE) B2 U 2 PRI |

BEIREE;

We involved our valuation and model specialists
in the review of the financial model prepared by
the independent consultant. This included making
enquiries with management and discussing with the
independent consultant to assess:
HABERIHEER , ENEZRERMRIMEIR 7RI
SR, HhaimgnRfAEEENS RERAR IRz
PRSI LA TSN ¢

e The appropriateness of the methodology used.

HEGERGSM

e The reasonableness of key assumptions such as
margins used in determination of the fair value of
construction services.

HIFAFHAYRIR GIEEZIERSS 2 FMERTRAR
FER)RIGIERM

e The reasonableness of the construction costs used
in the model against the Group’s other completed
projects which have similar operating capacities.
RFhENEIERAT LR R ARMAE RS EEH
B BEERAISEMY

We reviewed the Group’s estimation process, including
approval of project budget and monitoring of project
costs and activities. We also discussed with the project
managers and the independent surveyor to get an
understanding of the activities completed to date and
checked that construction revenue was recognised
according to the stage of completion for each contract.

BAIEH T REFARTLIERE | SIENBRENE T RIE
AR AR, FA B ST R S R E ) hlEis
HEHT TS TREEIREANTET AR, R,

EZENERIVEERN S ZIZIRT THERIART,

We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in this area.
BATHMh SRS EFHARER SRR,
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Findings
BRSNS

We have no concern over the competency, capability and objectivity of the independent consultant and surveyor. We
found the methodology to be appropriate and that the key assumptions such as margins used in the determination
of the fair value of construction services in the financial model were within an acceptable range. We found that the
measurement of percentage of completion used by the Group for construction revenue recognition appropriately
reflects the progress of the contracts. We also found the disclosures over revenue recognition to be appropriate.

BASFRIZ AR UEITAIRER. BENREMELBRE. RITANEITEGENEXNRR , AINBTFYSEESETE
ERS AN ENFIFRELBATEZTE. RIIKAREARTRAZERANNTIES LR T SEHE. Sit

BE , BATAABREABNGKEE S,

Recoverability of trade and other receivables

RTHSIHE TR F At AR T Ry Ut [ 3

Trade and other receivables (HK$588,739,000) (Refer to Notes 3.3, 4 and 12 to the financial statements).

RN Bt R WKR (7 588,739,0007T ) (IB&H4E

The key audit matter
KREHITEIR

WS IRARMIES.3 | MEiEARPHET2) o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAiIRY B NIk IRiZ SRR

The Group has outstanding billed receivables of
HK$588,739,000. The recoverability assessment of
these receivables requires the Group to exercise
judgement after taking into consideration latest
developments arising from on-going negotiations with
the customers.

REREHEEN KR 588,739,0007T, MUK
MR W Rl STt S E R EEE S S FRHIR I
FETHfERE.

Findings
X RUSTETA B B At RIUSCSR IR 1T

We tested the effectiveness of the Group’s controls
over the monitoring of receivables and over the
collection process. We compared the amount of cash
received after the year end against the year end
ledger balances, as well as assessed the ageing of
the trade receivables. We also tested the adequacy
of the Group’s provisions against trade receivables
by assessing management’s assumptions in respect
of customers’ ability to pay based on the historical
experience with the relevant customers. We considered
the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about
the degree of estimation involved in arriving at the
provision.

BT T SR EE RN WA T  = K BIWGE PRI R . Fdi]
EER T A BRI SR IR AR GRRIER | 7
THEAERAIMKESIAR.  FRRRTRIBREAZFRIGSE
B, HitEEEFIAKIREAMERRIR | TGRSR
RIWKERA FROAIKIR R R R, AR T REFM
KRR T ERYRIRAVIREE R B R .

We found that the assumptions used by management in the recoverabiling assessment to be balanced. We also
found the disclosures over trade and other receivables to be appropriate.

HATANEERERTEGTEZIRIRTE. Bl 7R RIE RIS B N KR IR EEE .
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the Corporate Profile, Chairman’s
Statement, CEQO’s Statement & Business Review, Corporate
Information, Corporate Outlook, Financial Highlights, Board of
Directors and Key Management Profile, Sustainability Report,
Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Statement and Statistics
of Shareholdings.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and
fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

72  China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Eitts=R

EEREMAMEERE. Ath8EAREN. &
EREE. DEEFERUSEE. AF&EM. A
BRE. USHE EFSNEEEEN. TF
ZRERS. AERERES. EESEARRIN
FiTEH.

HAIUSRENBNANREEMES |, Tl
TR ZE R E R R TR RIS,

FERBAIIVSREFL | BIFERFE
Hit=R , EdET , ZEEMEEESEY
SREFAVEFI R T REREEE
KIFMHE U FFEERBRFARNERL. BT
HNEETHIIE , WRBAVASEMESEFE
BEAEIREFR  HNBEREZFL. £
|, BAIEEERE.

EHEEREFIN G E S IREERAENIEIE

EEEMRSEREERYSREENMIEELM
PERMSRE  FARUMRER-F2ER
IR Z AR BT EAHRK | IEFRRIR
IERR BB IS E LM SR SRR M
VR RARESERIEMRIT RERSRERIT
EHIRS.

ENEMSIRERE , EERERRITMRERREE
ZLERREN , AEERBRA MKESHFREESR
KED , LIRERFEREENSITENM | BRIF
EEEEEERERAFESEFILEE | SEITH
SIS AW EN

ESNEIEARERERNMSRETE.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=T—HINUREE

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Low Gin Cheng, Gerald.

KPMG LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
24 March 2017

74  China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

. TN S5 IRTAVEEIATIIRITEN. G570
B UERE  URUSIRERETER
BRAZZ OB,

J B R =R ASLRER L S5 BRI S5 23R
BRE. EANHEITEIE , LMENGEY
BIREREFEN. HIRSEREFHITH
73R, BT, FOIARTELEE
E ==

PREMSEIU , HIISEFDE T IHINFEITE
. ME%H. EXHEITANS  SEH(EH
THIRBI BRI HIR T E R,

BANEOESRRER , WARNEFEEXR
MHEREXEWERER , FSEBEEE
BEMBIANSHIBEA VR R X RN
b= , LIREEBNBRT  BXEFEE
b,

NEEEPEEIT , FAIHEMLSTIE
HIEEMSIRERNETRNEE | EMERKE
ISR, FEFRIHRETEAXLEDR , b
IBERENA R ATHREX LRI , SfEtRin
FRABERT , MRESEHERI RS PR
RETUERMIRERERBIERNARAE |, K
MRERRAEIR S PBIZEIL

HERRIZHITDREOFEHTTEGKRAR
XUZE,

KPMG LLP
WEDTHIERAFIFRITIT

Fhhnig
_F—tF=R_"+MH



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 MASZ S
b S S LS AV
Group Company
FEH FRH
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note —B—RE “E—hfF —S—REF —E—RF
it +=B=+—8 +—B=+—H +=B=+—H +=—B=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#BhTFrT BhmTTT BT BhmT T
Assets -
Property, plant and . TEXR
equipment RE 5 147,971 162,587 31 3
Intangible assets FoREr= 6 1,259,449 1,440,075 - -
Goodwill BE 7 1,185,478 1,268,925 - -
Interests in subsidiaries B A TN 8 - - 9,190,573 9,533,310
Interest in an associate ~ BAEATINE 9 1,327 - = -
Other receivables EAbRIKFRIT 12 9,863 39,525 = 21,120
Service concession 5RBHFEE
financial receivables BHERASR
M ISERIR 10 8,179,732 7,713,209 - -
Non-current assets ERENE~ 10,783,820 10,624,321 9,190,604 9,554,433
Inventories IS 11 14,323 10,689 = -
Trade and other RITKER B ELAth
receivables JvilENIY 12 588,739 641,525 2,096,933 1,672,655
Service concession ERSEFEE
financial receivables G EPSINEA
I EINI 10 791,609 893,423 - -
Cash and cash MeRMEE
equivalents e 13 1,902,741 1,768,990 30,716 7,248
Current assets ToNiErE 3,297,412 3,314,627 2,127,649 1,679,903
Total assets 2= 14,081,232 13,938,948 11,318,253 11,234,336
Equity N
Share capital [iEZiN 14 2,609,908 2,608,014 2,609,908 2,608,014
Reserves =3 15 4,188,279 4,452,929 6,727,106 7,406,986
Equity attributable to ~ FAFREHRR
shareholders of the (=1 8%
Company 6,798,187 7,060,943 9,337,014 10,015,000
Non-controlling JEI=ARIN R
interests 393,515 236,077 - -
Total equity Sz 7,191,702 7,297,020 9,337,014 10,015,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AZ NS For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
W5 ARIER BE—T—AE+_B=t—E LR

Group Company
AEH ¥ VNG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note —B—EF “ZhEF —B—EF “Z—hEF
¥ +=B=+—H +—B=+—H +=B=+—H +=-B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#hFr BhFIT #hFrT BhFIT
Liabilities fafR
Borrowings EREN 16 3,366,091 2,423,663 1,203,692 193,813
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A 3R 17 1,051,692 1,055,223 - -
Other payables HAth R FFRIN 18 - 240,760 - -
Non-current liabilities  JEfizfaf&k 4,417,783 3,719,646 1,203,692 193,813
Borrowings EREN 16 1,521,407 2,394,574 756,892 1,000,073
Trade and other IVERELEYNE=
payables fER{TFRIT 18 937,238 475,430 20,655 25,450
Current tax liabilities BPHATIR AR 13,102 52,278 - -
Current liabilities otk 2,471,747 2,922,282 777,547 1,025,523
Total liabilities 2RaR 6,889,530 6,641,928 1,981,239 1,219,336
Total equity and Nk AR
liabilities B& 14,081,232 13,938,948 11,318,253 11,234,336

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS 7 \Ft+-A=T—HINUREE

31 December

NS

31 December

2016 2015
Note —E—REF “E—hfF
fiE +=A=+—H +=B=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
E#hTT BhFT
Revenue W 20 2,494,037 1,815,150
Cost of sales PERA (1,588,385) (990,926)
Gross profit EF 905,652 824,224
Other income E g\ 21 127,666 103,651
Administrative and other ITRREMEE
operating expenses #H (298,250) (213,546)
Results from operating KEER
activities ka5 735,068 714,329
Finance income e ON 7,631 9,799
Finance costs 4552 A (205,223) (127,998)
Net finance costs s ER 22 (197,592) (118,199)
Profit before tax (Rl 23 537,476 596,130
Tax expense TS 24 (164,861) (172,462)
Profit for the year FEEERF 372,615 423,668
Other comprehensive income  AEEH(LH
for the year Yz
ltems that may be reclassified HEREEMDEER
subsequently to profit or loss: mARIE :
- foreign currency translation - ShIEE
differences E=01 (598,600) (337,571)
Total comprehensive income FELEKE
for the year BER (225,985) 86,097
Profit attributable to: RIEF
Shareholders of the Company AABRER 349,343 406,242
Non-controlling interests =2 e 23,272 17,426
Profit for the year TEERRN 372,615 423,668
Total comprehensive income B2 mEIESE
attributable to: 28 :
Shareholders of the Company AABRIR (228,390) 75,700
Non-controlling interests =2l 2,405 10,397
Total comprehensive income REE LA
for the year 28 (225,985) 86,097
Earnings per share SiRER
Basic earnings per share (HK$) EIREARRER (&) 25 0.134 0.158
Diluted earnings per share (HK$) SiREERF (#BMH) 25 0.134 0.158

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

= A B For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
Sellei=z ey

HE—T—\F+A=t+—HIEREFEE

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
Note —E—RF “EhF
i +=BA=+—H +=-B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
il o BHTT
Cash flows from operating activities = EEEHMMNERE
Profit before tax FRFEEIERR 537,476 596,130
Adjustments for: SR
Depreciation of property, plant and b, TERIRE
equipment tin[= 14,986 13,826
Amortisation of intangible assets TR A= e 86,290 58,001
Gain on disposal of equity interest HE—EMfEAEINEG
in a subsidiary Z W 21 (402) -
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  HEYML. T ERIRE
equipment 2SR 23 369 510
Fair value loss on cross-currency BRI MNE
swap SR 23 = 9,555
Effect of foreign exchange rates IR RIFE
changes (40,658) (33,662)
Net finance costs = 22 197,592 118,199
Operating cash flows before working BEReTRINEE
capital changes nene 795,653 762,559
Changes in working capital: EinRETHE) :
Inventories =R (5,465) 17,065
Service concession financial ERSHFRENERN
receivables ERARIKGRIT (934,982) (481,781)
Trade and other receivables TR R LAt ST TR TR 9,868 (131,371)
Trade and other payables I KRR LAt R SR I 288,913 (38,892)
Cash generated from operations FEERMFATEERNNE 153,987 127,580
Income tax paid TS (133,792) (94,975)
Net cash generated from operating FEEFAFEERNE
activities HER 20,195 32,605
Cash flows from investing activities IREBEEINMERE
Disposal of equity interest in a HE— B E SIS
subsidiary, net of cash disposed ZINEFE (1,195) -
Payment made for the acquisition XBEXKEM B EIRFER
of subsidiaries, net of cash IFTSZINE %8N
acquired 31 - (2,163,337)
Interest received BRFIER 7,631 9,799
Purchase of property, plant and masemll. TBER
equipment RE (11,864) (10,227)
Proceed from sale of property, plant HEM. | BERISEME
and equipment £ 87 314
Payment for addition of intangible XITERRETHE™
assets ENENIT (988) (14,020)
Net cash used in investing activities IR EINFAFIAAIRE R (6,329) (2,177,471)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

GZENEMER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T F+A=+—HLNVEEE

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
Note —B—REF “F—hF
i +=B=+—HB +=B=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
E#hFT BhFIT
Cash flows from financing activities BUEEHNIREHE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FSFIRN - 659,031
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 1T{EIARGIERTIS I - 732
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEIFRASENIR 4,431,374 4,218,794
Repayment of bank borrowings and SRR TR RS
notes payables =R (4,121,687) (1,310,224)
Interest paid EfFR (205,223) (127,998)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due IVARIEESR)=YN=TE AU
to fellow subsidiaries (iR ) 8,256 (1,177)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due REfF e a2 Sl FR B 0/
to intermediate holding companies () 3,71 (148,481)
Increase in restricted bank deposits SRR TS0 (94,734) (305,950)
Settlement of cross-currency swap B EiRe A E R IR = (30,644)
Payments for shares buy-back AT RRAR [ERIFRIR (22,489) -
Dividends paid to shareholders EfTIRERE (11,877) -
Dividends paid to a non-controlling Eff—EIEERRR
shareholder is (14,550) —
Contributions from non-controlling JEERAR IR
shareholders & 169,583 -
Net cash generated from RLEETES TS
financing activities HER 142,364 2,954,083
Net increase in cash and cash MEFRME SN
equivalents R 156,230 809,217
Cash and cash equivalents at FZNERMESENY
beginning of the year 1,288,550 499,331
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations IR ERIAE
on cash and cash equivalents EMIRIFN (85,379) (19,998)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZMERME
of the year =T 13 1,359,401 1,288,550

Significant non-cash transactions

EXIERERS

1)

Pursuant to the special resolution at the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium of the Company was reduced to nil and
transferred to the contributed surplus reserve. Accordingly, the Group’s share premium of HK$1,243,508,000
attributed to the Company was transferred to the contributed surplus reserve (see note 15(a)).
REANETF _F—hF T+ BTh RS THUSIRFASBERNSIINE | AATRMENNESHSTEHES |, 7€
REMNBRIES, B, AEFN SANTHRRD N 1,243,508 0007 A EMNBRIES (SFFHE15@) ) .
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has allotted and issued 10,177,139 new ordinary
shares to ordinary shareholders who had elected to participate in the scrip dividend scheme.
BEF\F+A=1t—HILFE , A FREFSSURARIT S BRI AR &1710,177,1 3985
G

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A S5 HRARMTE

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements. The
financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2017.

2.1

2.2

23

84

Domicile and activities

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempt
company with limited liability and is listed on the Mainboard
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST”). The registered address of the Company
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is at 26th
FL, Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan
Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) (FEI FR&ERYIMEAXREAE10035KA
IR IHARE261E).

The financial statements of the Group as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and
individually as “Group entities”).

The Group is primarily involved in the water treatment
business in the PRC. The principal activity of the Company
is that of an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 8.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except as otherwise described in the
notes below.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”). Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group entities are measured
using the currency of the primarily economic environment
in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s presentation currency. All
financial information presented in HK$ has been rounded to
the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

RHHEAMSBIREROANRILD. EFRET-F
—tF=RB -+ NARNTIAMSRE.
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2.2

2.3
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2.4

3.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has
made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements and
information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year are included in
note 4.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities.

Basis of consolidation
(i) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3
Business Combination as at the date of acquisition,
which is the date on which control is transferred to
the Group (see note 3.1(ii)). The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is generally measured
at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets
acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually
for impairment (see note 3.9(ii)). Any gain or bargain
purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except
if related to the issue of debt or equity securities (see
note 3.3).

2.4

3.1

E-REFERS

4S5 HRARMTE

Bt (48 )
(SRR TR fhit

EEEERAAMSIRETEFHENE
ERANSTTBERNNA |, UIREF. @A
R AR HRUIR S A B A I A F)
. i RRIR. ERERATERHTH
THEER.

EERESMERERSIMET MAEXRIZ.
AT ST EXGETHERIET ZHER
ARARZ N0 Z HB[EVEIA.

BEARI T HGREMBIRETTEERT
RIS BERM RRIFIETES. | LARIER
k—FRRR AT EE T84
BEXEBNER.

FERITBER

TS BEREAM S IREZ IR
[EERAINA | FERERATRAINA.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

(i)

China Everbright Water Limited

Business combinations (cont’d)

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date
as:

° the fair value of the consideration transferred;
plus
° the recognised amount of any non-controlling

interests in the acquiree; plus

° if the business combination is achieved in
stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity
interest in the acquiree,

over the net recognised amount (generally fair value)
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase
gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured and settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognised
in profit or loss.

If share-based payment awards (replacement
awards) are required to be exchanged for awards
held by the acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s
awards), then all or a portion of the amount of
the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in
measuring the consideration transferred in the
business combination. This determination is based
on the market-based value of the replacement
awards compared with the market-based value
of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which
the replacement awards relate to pre-combination
service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group. Losses applicable
to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are
allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing
so causes the non-controlling interests to have a
deficit balance.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies of these
entities. Significant influence is presumed to exist
when the Group holds 20% or more of the voting
power of another entity.

Interests in associates is accounted for using the
equity method. They are recognised initially at
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-
accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the
date that significant influence commences until the
date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying
amount of the investment, together with any long-
term interests that form part thereof, is reduced
to zero, and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
an obligation to fund the investee’s operations or has
made payments on behalf of the investee.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

China Everbright Water Limited

Non-controlling interests

For each business combination, the Group elects to
measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either:

° at fair value; or

° at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
and therefore no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Adjustments to non-controlling interests arising from
transactions that do not involve the loss of control
are based on a proportionate amount of the net
assets of the subsidiary.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the
Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests
and other components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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3.

3.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Foreign currency

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency differences are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into HK$ at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is allocated to
non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety
or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the
foreign currency translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling
interests. When the Group disposes of only part
of an associate or joint venture while retaining
significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Foreign currency (cont'd)

(ii)

Foreign operations (cont’d)

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, then
foreign exchange differences arising from such item
form part of a net investment in the foreign operation.
Accordingly, such differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

Financial instruments

(i)

China Everbright Water Limited

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables
on the date when they are originated. All other
financial assets are initially recognised on the trade
date.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control
over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the
Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets
into the loans and receivables category.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.3  Financial instruments (cont’d)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
financial receivables arising from service concession
arrangements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and short-term deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition that
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, restricted deposits are excluded whilst
bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and that form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from
a service concession arrangement when it has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset from or at the direction of
the grantor for the construction or upgrade services
provided. Such financial assets are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the financial assets are measured at
amortised cost.

If the Group is paid for the construction services
partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible
asset, then each component of the consideration is
accounted for separately and is recognised initially
at the fair value of the consideration (see also note
3.5(ii)).
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

China Everbright Water Limited

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued
on the date that they are originated. Financial
liabilities for contingent consideration payable in
a business combination are recognised at the
acquisition date. All other financial liabilities (including
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which
is the date that the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire.

Financial liabilities for contingent consideration
payable in a business combination are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent changes in
the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities
into the other financial liabilities category. Such
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise borrowings and
trade and other payables.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value;
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

3.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Group, and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognised. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed and if a component has a useful
life that is different from the remainder of that asset,
that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each component of an item of property,
plant and equipment, unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset. Leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term. Construction in progress is not
depreciated.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

(iii)

Depreciation (cont’d)

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the
property, plant and equipment are installed and are
ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years are as follows:

Buildings 25 years

Plant and machinery 5to 10 years

Leasehold improvements, furniture 4 to 5 years
and fixtures

Motor vehicles and office equipment 4 to 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets and goodwill

(i)

China Everbright Water Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.5 Intangible assets and goodwill (cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Goodwill (cont’d)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or
group of CGUs) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the
portion of the CGU retained.

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising
from a service concession arrangement when it
has a right to charge for usage of the concession
infrastructure. An intangible asset received as
consideration for providing construction or upgrade
services in a service concession arrangement is
measured at fair value upon initial recognition by
reference to the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset
is measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are initially
capitalised at cost which includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable cost of preparing the
asset for its intended use. Capitalised computer
software licenses are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks are measured at cost less

any accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Intangible assets and goodwill (cont'd)
(v)  Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

(vi) Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of
intangible assets less their estimated residual values
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or
loss. Goodwill is not amortised.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years are as follows:

Over the service
concession period of
20 to 32 years of the
water/ waste water
treatment plants

10 to 20 years

5 years

3 years

Concession rights

Patents and trademarks
Computer software
Backlog contracts

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted, if appropriate.

Land use rights

Land use rights are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
method over the respective lease period of the land use
rights, which range from 25 to 50 years.

Leased assets

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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3.7

3.8

3.9

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Leased assets (cont'd)

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised in
the Group’s statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and
consumables used in the repairs and maintenance of
the waste water treatment plants, are carried at cost less
provision for obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated
based on the first-in-first-out principle, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. When inventories are consumed, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense to
profit or loss.

Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through
profit or loss is assessed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event(s) has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset, and that the loss event(s) had an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that
can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
can include default or delinquency by a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on
terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor will enter bankruptcy, and
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the Group.

Loans and receivables

The Group considers evidence of impairment for
loans and receivables at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant loans and
receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All
individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified. Loans and receivables that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together loans and
receivables with similar risk characteristics.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment (cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

China Everbright Water Limited

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)
Loans and receivables (cont’d)

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses
historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues
to be recognised. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Associates

An impairment loss in respect of an associate is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 3.9(ii). An impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated each year at the same time. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
or its related CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

FENKKSERAE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

3.

3.9

FESIEER (£)

H{E (4R)

(@)

(i)

FEFTEE R (£E)
GRS (58 )

EHMLEBINREREREY |, A5EF
(EdaE YN RS SE N ETEN
TROBSIEZR B PRI ET | 1R
REEEMENZSFRERRIE
AL TR THSE
BRI\ FIRTIEHEZE,

RIS BRI SRIE T RURME
ek, RUEKEMESETRE
NEeRE (R AIRLIRFIZR
i) MERETTE. REER
PN | FHERFR RGN
RERRIR, BRESIIFIR
BN, SRERSEHSEURNE
RS ERDRS | BERERHD>

ZEEd RmiemE].
BEZE]

KE R BIRREIRK TR IEE
3.9(ii) BEHCBIRERI AL RIS ER
REKEMETLATE. BERE
FiRmiA. MABLIEEAKE
SERIETHIERZE , WiEE
MK T LA,

T~

FEFFEMAT (FEERIMNEY
WEMMETSREARETT |, LA
ERRHIMHIREDTS., NHI
(ECIEP S U S T N
WEEH. HEEREBLRER
FPRERE R AT A RRI R & T
= SEFR—EfTTREE
B, ERFHEBXONE MR
FTRKEMEETEATT T REE
BES |, ERWEARERK.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.9 Impairment (cont'd)

(ii)

Non-financial assets (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or CGUs. Subject to an operating segment ceiling
test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
aggregated so that the level at which impairment
testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate
separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than
one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs
on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for
impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which
the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs),
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.10 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

100 China Everbright Water Limited

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which related services are rendered
by employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share-based payment
awards granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that meet the related service and non-
market performance conditions at the vesting
date. For share-based payment awards with non-
vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes.
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3.1

3.12

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount
is recognised as finance cost.

Revenue

(i)

(ii)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed
in the contract plus any variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments, to the extent that
it is probable that they will result in revenue and
can be measured reliably. When the outcome of
a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the contract.
Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless
they create an asset related to future contract activity.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to survey of work performed. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to
be recoverable. An expected loss on a contract is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements

Revenue relating to construction or upgrade
services under a service concession arrangement
is recognised based on the stage of completion of
the work performed, consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy on recognising revenue on
construction contract (see above). Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which
the services are provided by the Group. When the
Group provides more than one service in a service
concession arrangement, the consideration received
is allocated by reference to the relative fair values
of the services delivered when the amounts are
separately identifiable.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Revenue (cont'd)

(iiij Operation income from service concession
arrangement
Revenue from operation services are recognised
when the related services are rendered.

(iv) Finance income from service concession
arrangement
Finance income from service concession

arrangement represents the interest income on the
financial receivable arising from a service concession
arrangement, and is recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred
income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and the Group will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant, and are then
recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised in profit or loss as other income on a
systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are
recognised.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Finance income and finance costs
Finance income comprises interest income on cash
and cash equivalents held in banks. Interest income is

recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest method.
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3.16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Finance income and finance costs (cont'd)

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings that
are recognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

° temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able
to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

° taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax
consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses,
tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax,
the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest
may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of
tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of
judgements about future events. New information may
become available that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities,
such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the
period that such a determination is made.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise warrants issued by the Company and share
options granted to employees and directors.

FENKKSERAE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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3.20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

The Group operates in a single business segment which
engages in the water and waste water treatment plant
construction and operation services in the PRC.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as
insurance contracts and treated as contingent liabilities until
such time as they become probable that the Company will
be required to make a payment under the guarantee. A
provision is recognised based on the Group’s estimate of
the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but unpaid
at the balance sheet date. The provision is assessed by
reviewing individual claims and tested for adequacy by
comparing the amount recognised and the amount that
would be required to settle the guarantee contract.

New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards
are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and earlier application is permitted; however, the
Group has not early applied the following new or amended
standards in preparing these statements.
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3.20

106 China Everbright Water Limited

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)

Applicable to 2018 financial statements
New standards

Summary of the requirements

BXIEZME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

3. EETEER (4)
3.20 ERECRAAGFTENIIZRE (42)
ERTF S —/\GFU5HkE
N

Potential impact on the financial statements

M5 IRERZ EBTERN

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
EFYSIREENSE15S [EFSLIC
Al

IFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised. It
also introduces new cost guidance
which requires certain costs of
obtaining and fulfilling contracts to be
recognised as separate assets when
specified criteria are met.

B SIREENSE15SEZAUERE
AN Z 3%, EEUNEY A2 2 HEZR
1, EHIFSIAFTRRAIES] , ESF
BREEEN , BXEERTAERN
E TR IR E =,

When effective, IFRS 15 replaces
existing revenue recognition
guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue,
IAS 11 Construction Contracts,
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements
for the Construction of Real Estate,
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue
- Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services.

HEMES |, ERRMSIREENSE15SEH
KIABRNFINES| | BFEERRITE
WEE185 [ . Efr=itENE11
S [ZiEsRE] . BiRUSREeEE
RREVE13S [EFZITE .
RS IREEBRERRIERSE15S &
wE i . B SIREIERE
RRNEEH18S [MEFEEL ] R
ERESERSEIINE WA - BR/
EIREHIZ 5355 ] -

The Group is finalising its impact assessment of the new standard.
REFIIEAE ST ENIRIRINE.

Based on its initial assessment, the Group expects the following
key changes:

IRIEETE | FETTAE FHIEESE -

Timing of revenue recognition — Over time versus point-in-
time recognition

WA\ RSB E]-BER R SHEERT A S EfIA

Currently, revenue relating to construction or upgrade services
under service concession arrangements are recognised based on
the stage of completion of the work performed.

BAl , SIRBFATEENTH FZRERARBIERSZBERZWNZRT
RS LB TR,

Under IFRS 15, where the Group does not have an alternative use
for the asset (i.e. cannot sell the same asset to another customer)
and has the right to payment for construction completed to date,
revenue may be recognised over time during the construction
phase.

RIEERUSREENE15S , EAEAAHRTIBEBIEEMMAER(
A HER—&F B —5F) REINHIES BT TIEIEEIT , N
B FTA2ME T ER IRERTTEIEIAMIN.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)

Applicable to 2018 financial statements (cont’d)

New standards (cont’d)

Summary of the requirements

BXHEZME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

4S5 HRARMTE

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

3. EERITRGR ()

3.20 HARHBERMBIFTENRIZRE (£2)
BRT-F—/\GFUSHKE (4&)
FAEN (%2)

Potential impact on the financial statements

SRR Z EBTERN

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (continued)
EfFMSIREENSE15S [EFEL4K
Al (£)

IFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early adoption
permitted. IFRS 15 offers a range
of transition options including full
retrospective adoption where an
entity can choose to apply the
standard to its historical transactions
and retrospectively adjust each
comparative period presented in its
2018 financial statements. When
applying the full retrospective
method, an entity may also elect to
use a series of practical expedients
to ease transition.
EfRUSREENE15582F—/\F
—RB—HEZEFRZFEREER ,
FeIiRRIRA. EfRSREENSE15
SRE—RIITEEEN , 8E2HE
WASREN | FEILL | SRS RN EE FRL
ZNALEN , FUEHZZ—/\FWUE
IR EIRZ Z N CRHBE(EHIE TR
B, ENALHEEWSDIE , TITrAIE
BEERA—RYIRNEME | LURREED
EEHE,

Contracts entered into by the Group usually restrict selling
the identified asset to another buyer (i.e. no alternative use
to the Group) thus meeting the first criteria. In respect of the
second criteria, contract obligations which determine the right to
payment for work completed are usually specified in the contract.
(However, in the situation where a contract is potentially cancelled
by the parties for reasons not stated in the contracts, the group
will need to determine and assess whether the right to payment
for work completed to date exists based on the relevant laws
and regulations including customary business practices in the
respective legal jurisdiction).

RERFTTSZ GRE—ARBRS HERT R R~ F B — LRI A SR+
ZHEMAR) , AMFEE—TUEN. SIUENSRIEEIES BT
BRI NABEEESRFIER. A, FSOEGUREHITASUE
ARFTFAZERFLUBEZERT , AERAGREREGXIERENE
M ( BEEXEEIRZAWSRE] ) | EERITEEEHENFETKE
125 ERRIEZERA,

Accordingly, for the construction or upgrade revenue under service
concession arrangement, the Group will continue to assess the
impact of the second criteria on the Group expects to continue to
recongnise revenue over time it is revenue recognition.

Eit , MRSFTEENLH FTZRIEFFARBETFRYANTS | £5%
EIHS TS5 —BUENST B NFIAZ 218

Transition
iTEEHE

The Group plans to adopt the standard when it becomes effective
in 2018 using the cumulative approach. The Group is currently
performing a detailed analysis under IFRS 15 to determine its
election of the practical expedients and to quantify the transition
adjustments on its financial statements.

REFAITF I —/\FHENERERALER |, FERRITS
%, AERANEREERYSIREENSE 1 5SHEATHFEDT , LIRER
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)

Applicable to 2018 financial statements (cont’d)

New standards (cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

EfFMSSIREHENEIS [2HTR/

Summary of the requirements

BXAEZME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

3.  EEBSIHBER (4)
3.20 ERBESRAAFTENRISRE (42)
ERT-E—/\GFUSRE (£)

FEN (£2)

Potential impact on the financial statements

M5 IRERZ EBTERN

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

EfFMSSIREHENEIS [2H# TR/

IFRS 9 replaces the existing
guidance in IAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and
measurement. IFRS 9 includes
revised guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit
loss model for calculating impairment
on financial assets, and new general
hedge accounting requirements. It
also carries forward the guidance
on recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments from IAS 39.
B S RS ENE ISR ERSTHE
WEE39S [2HTE - FHIARITE] .
EfRSIREENEISHESMTEY
KRITEZZEITIES|. HEERE™
IBEZ FERE S IR R TR — AR
RSt ER, HIFRERAERSIT
ENE3SHESR T EMIARLZLETRIA
1851,

Based on the assessment thus far, the Group considers the initial
application of IFRS 9 will not have a significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position.

WRIEZBRIALLEZIHME , AREIAABEXNAERMSIREENFEIS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)

Applicable to 2019 financial statements

Summary of the requirements

BXHEZIME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

EBSITBER (£)

3.20 HARHBERMBIFTENRIZRE (£2)

BRTF—NFUSIRE

Potential impact on the financial statements

SRR Z BERN

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

EfFMSIREENEIS [2H IR/ (&)

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early adoption permitted.
Retrospective application is
generally required, except for hedge
accounting. For hedge accounting,
the requirements are generally
applied retrospectively with some
limited exceptions. Restatement
of comparative information is
not mandatory. If comparative
information is not restated, the
cumulative effect is recorded in
opening equity as at 1 January 2018.
EfRUSIREENEISEZE—/\F—
B—HEZEFaZ FERREER , 7
AIiRAIRA. EXLIRBERE , B8
XHREIHRRIS. B RINS  —&
MRAEWZE  BBEETERER. L
RISRFIFRFIRAEME. WRIE
BHREHIIR , WEXRITEWTFZ
B—/\F—HB—BHZHINET IR,
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)

Applicable to 2019 financial statements (cont’d)

IFRS 16 Leases

Summary of the requirements

BXIEZME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

3. EETEER (4)
3.20 ERECRAAGFTENIIZRE (42)
EBRTE—NFUSRE (£)
EFfUSIREHNE16S [HE/

Potential impact on the financial statements

M5 IRERZ EBTERN

IFRS 16 /eases
EffSIRS ENE16S [fHE/

IFRS 16 eliminates the lessee’s
classification of leases as either
operating leases or finance leases
and introduces a single lessee
accounting model. Applying the
new model, a lessee is required to
recognise right-of-use (ROU) assets
and lease liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low
value.

EfR SR EENE16SEGE THEEA
BHEESEAEEREFIMBEEZM
% FSINBR—EEARITEER,
FENEIERE | ABEARHOEED
1249 BRFr B S ERNE = R E
&Rk BRIFMBEXEF HEINMER.

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements
in IAS 17 Leases. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for these two
types of leases using the IAS 17
operating lease and finance lease
accounting models respectively.
However, IFRS 16 requires more
extensive disclosures to be provided
by a lessor.
EfrMSIREENE16SLFE EnAT
EfRRITENE17S [FAE] ZHEA
2iHE. Bt , HEARSEHBER
DRANEZEEERYMAFEE , HERE
freitENSE17SEEEERMEHEE
SRR DB ANKIZAIPEE Z FHE.
2, EfRVSREENE16SHED
AATURMET IZARE RN

The Group has performed a preliminary high-level assessment
of the new standard on its existing operating lease arrangements
as a lessee (refer to note 27(b)). Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group expects the application of the new
accounting model to lead to an increase in ROU assets with
corresponding lease liabilities. The operating lease commitments
on an undiscounted basis amount to approximately 0.09% of the
consolidated total assets and 0.2% of consolidated total liabilities
as at 31 December 2016.
AEFACHRETNENNERNELEERELHAENEBAN) (SREMIE
27 (b)) HATHILHERR AL, RIBVILS G | AEEREN A ITHEL
~SHEANEERENEERREN, F-FE—"F+A=1t—
B, f@EHEKEZRIFTNEMINGEERETH0.09% R GG R Rk
#90.2%.

The Group plans to adopt the standard when it becomes effective
in 2019. The Group will perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amount of ROU assets and liabilities arising from
adoption of IFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of
practical expedients and transition options in 2017.

ARERMTUNTF _IS—NFAWENERERALEN, —F—EF , K
SERBRELMNEMERITEISENAER | S TEFMIDT , LA
EERRERY SRS ENE 16542 FRNE -5 RE.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
New standards and interpretations not adopted (cont’d)
Applicable to 2019 financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of the requirements

BXHEZIME

4S5 HRARMTE

EBSITBER (£)

3.20 HARHBERMBIFTENRIZRE (£2)

BRTF—NFUSRE (&)

Potential impact on the financial statements

SRR Z BERN

IFRS 16 leases (cont’d)
EfFMSiRSENE16S [FHE] (£)

When effective, IFRS 16 replaces
existing lease accounting
guidance, including IAS 17,
IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-
15 Operating Leases - Incentives,
and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease.

LA, EfRMSIREENE16SE
RABERERIHES| , BEEREITE
WE175. ERUSREERERRIE
BHAS [Ex—NLHESEESHEE

. BRESERRBISS [FEHE-
Zy] ReBRESERRFE2TS [iFlE
SRR ATER IR ZHIAE]

IFRS 16 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019, with early adoption
permitted if IFRS 15 is also applied.

ERMESREENE16SB-F—NF
—B—HEZEHRZFERRERY
FRRRIR A NERY SR SHENSE15
STFERIRIA).

Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and
assumptions

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.
They are assessed on an ongoing basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. However, actual results may ultimately differ
from these estimates.
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Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and
assumptions (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Financial receivables and/or intangible assets under IFRIC
12 Service Concession Arrangements

The Group recognises the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial receivable and/or an intangible asset under a
service concession arrangement. However, if the Group
is paid for the construction services partly by a financial
asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to
account separately for each component of the operator’s
consideration. The consideration received or receivable
for both components shall be recognised initially at the fair
value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service
concession arrangement between the financial asset
component and the intangible asset component, if any,
requires the Group to make an estimate of a number
of factors, which include, inter alia, fair value of the
construction services, expected future water treatment
volume of the relevant water treatment plant over its
service concession period, future guaranteed receipts
and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. These estimates, including revenue recognition
under the financial asset and intangible asset components
are determined by the Group’s management based on their
experience and assessment on current and future market
conditions. The carrying amounts of the intangible assets
(“concession rights”) and service concession financial
receivables at the end of the financial year are disclosed in
notes 6 and 10 respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than interests in
subsidiaries and goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and
assumptions (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than interests in
subsidiaries and goodwill (cont’d)

Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and intangibles assets (other than goodwill and concession
rights) are disclosed in notes 5 and 6.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based
on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
loans and receivables are disclosed in notes 10, 12 and 13.

Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the interest in a
subsidiary is impaired. To determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment, the Company
considers factors such as the industry performance,
technology changes, operational and financing cash flows.
Management will also consider the financial conditions and
business prospects of the interest.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based
on the forecasted performance of the subsidiary. The
carrying amounts of the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
at the reporting date are disclosed in note 8.

Percentage of completion of construction work

The Group recognises the contract revenue by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of reporting period. Significant assumptions are required
to estimate the recoverable variation works that will affect
the stage of completion. The Group reviews and revises
the estimates in each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

4.
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M55 HRaRMTIE
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EREEREERE (4)
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5.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

Property, plant and equipment 5. ok, I'BRigsE
Interest in
leasehold
land held
for own
use under
Leasehold Motor operating
improvements, vehicles leases
furniture and  and office iRREEE
Plant and fixtures  equipment Construction EEEE
Buildings machinery FEE¥MIERIE, RERMAZE inprogress Sub-total ARG+ Total
#F TBENE ZLREE ’& HETE it Rz B8
Group FEH HK$000  HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
Bghtr Ehfrx ilitawan #htr #EFFx EhFfz #EFFr EHTR
Cost 773
At 1 January TE-REF
2015 —B—H 101,933 49,826 4,296 54,628 9,395 220,078 8,153 228,231
Exchange
adjustments Lo (4,092) (2,002) (193) (2,679) (605) (9,571) (327) (9,898)
Additions from KR
acquisition of NETEE
subsidiaries - - - 380 - 380 - 380
Additions e - - 761 5,300 4,166 10,227 - 10,227
Disposals W& - (34) (62) (5,027) - (5,123) - (5129
At 31 December ~ F_ZF—HF
2015 and +-B=+—H
1 January 2016 B-E—E
—B—H 97,841 47,790 4,802 52,602 12,956 215,991 7,826 223,817
Exchange
adjustments AR (6,613) (3,353) (410) (4,027) (316) (14,719) (528)  (15,247)
Additions e - 4 3,044 7,816 785 11,649 215 11,864
Disposal of interest ~ HE—(aJH/E
inasubsidiary /B - (18) (64) (389) - @71) -
Disposals W& - - (441) (5,231) - (5,672) - (5,672)
Transferred from
construction in BRI
progress 778 4,269 - 6,300 (13,347) - - -
At31 December ~ FB—NE
2016 +ZB=1+—H 94,006 48,692 6,931 57,071 78 206,778 7513 214,291
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

5. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

5 Wk, TBRI&H (£)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
for own
use under
_ Leasehold Mo_tor operating
improvements, vehicles Feees
furniture and  and office RIEZER
Plant and fixtures equipment  Construction EHEEEHE
Buildings machinery FEEYMLRE, RERMDAE inprogress Sub-total pgFRELyH  Total
#BF TERIE FWRES 8& HEETE vt i S8
Group FEHE HK$000  HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
#hfr #EhFr BT #htrx #EhFx EdHFx #EHFx EdFrn
Accumulated ZitiRlAR
depreciation and {4
amortisation
At 1 January “E-hE
2015 —B—H 10,910 7,651 2,714 32,308 - 53,583 1,089 54,672
Exchange
adjustments LR (489) (430) (195) (1,802) - (2,916) (53)  (2,969)
Disposals U= - - (61 (4,238) - (4,299) - (4,299
Charge for the FEESIA
year Podicai 4,314 2,241 721 6,227 - 13,503 323 13,826
At 31 December “3-1E
2015 and +—-A=+—H
1 January 2016 BoE—AE
—B—H 14,735 9,462 3,179 32,495 - 59,871 1,359 61,230
Exchange
adjustments SCouiEEE (1,157) (716) (226) (2,292) - (4,391) (106)  (4,497)
Disposal of interest  HE&E—(ANE
in a subsidiary NEE - (17) (20) (146) - (183) - (183)
Disposals QHE - - (424) (4,792) - (5,216) - (5,216)
Charge for the KEFERIH
year et 4,685 2,055 803 7,137 - 14,680 306 14,986
At31December  FZE—NE
2016 +ZB=+—H 18263 10,784 3,312 32,402 - 64,761 1,559 66,320
Carrying amounts  W¥EH{E
At 31 December ~ F_ZF—HE
2015 +-A=t—H 83106 38,328 1,623 20,107 12,956 156,120 6,467 162,587
At31December  F-E—AE
2016 +ZB=+—H 75743 37,908 3,619 24,669 78 142,017 5954 147,971

CE-AEERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 5. ok, TEBRIgE (8)

Motor
vehicles
and office
equipment

RERDAE
4=

Company P /NG HK$°000

EmhFT
Cost 2% 3
At 1 January 2015, 31 December F-ZF—HF—F—H.

2015 and 1 January 2016 “F-RF+"B=1+—H
;RZF—7F—HF—H 24
Additions BE 34
Exchange adjustments CoeiaEE )
At 31 December 2016 FEREF+B=1+—H 56
Accumulated depreciation FitirlA
At 1 January 2015 F-F—HR5—HB—H 14
Charge for the year AEEIRIR 7
At 31 December 2015 and FE—REFE+"B=1+—H
1 January 2016 ;_F—7F—H—H 21

Charge for the year KEFEHTIH 5
Exchange adjustments CoeaEe ()
At 31 December 2016 FF—E+"B=1t—H 25
Carrying amounts MREHE
At 31 December 2015 FE2—AF+"A=1t—H 3
At 31 December 2016 FFREF+R=1+—H 31

The analysis of carrying amounts of properties is as follows:

PV AIRKEN ME DTN T

Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
- a2 —F—hF
+=B=1+—H +-A=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BhTFIT
In the PRC (outside Hong Kong): "HE (&FELUIMES ) -
- medium-term leases - RHAFEE 81,697 89,573
Representing: & -
Buildings ®F 75,743 83,106
Interest in leasehold land held RIEEEREREER
for own use under operating e
leases 5,954 6,467
81,697 89,573
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6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o e e WSS IRARMNE
Intangible assets 6. FTRE=
Patents
Concession and Computer  Backlog
rights trademarks software  contracts Total
FEEN SRREIE BERG  #ESE ISt
Group A HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
#hTr -1 e #hFtr #EhFr EPFr
Cost [5%:3
At 1 January 2015 FE—HRF—B—H 905,440 27,521 1,100 31,896 965,957
Exchange adjustments CoiEE (40,803) (1,102) (98) (1,277) (43,280)
Additions 1EE 12,604 - 1,416 - 14,020
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHIEAT 574,252 - - - 574,252
At 31 December 2015 FEHR5+"H
and 1 January 2016 =+—HBRZF—R
F—H—H 1,451,493 26,419 2,418 30,619 1,510,949
Exchange adjustments HILTIEE (96,046) (2,098) (203) (2,029)  (100,376)
Additions 1BE - - 988 - 988
Disposal of a subsidiary  HE—EEAR (3,385) - - - (3,385)
At 31 December 2016 FE%tZA
=+—H 1,352,062 24,321 3,203 28,590 1,408,176
Accumulated it
amortisation
At 1 January 2015 FE—HRF—B—H 14,025 376 78 884 15,363
Exchange adjustments CGoiEE (1,989) (149) (4) (348) (2,490)
Amortisation for the year — AEFEREH 41,789 4,460 1,231 10,521 58,001
At 31 December 2015 FE-RF+ZA
and 1 January 2016 =H—HRZEF—R
F—RB—H 53,825 4,687 1,305 11,057 70,874
Exchange adjustments LR (6,675) (494) (102) (1,166) (8,437)
Amortisation for the year — AEFEREH 71,750 4,224 353 9,963 86,290
At 31 December 2016 FEFt+ZA
=+—H 118,900 8,417 1,556 19,854 148,727
Carrying amounts WKEHE
At 31 December 2015 FE-RF+ZA
=+—H 1,397,668 21,732 1,113 19,562 1,440,075
At 31 December 2016 FE%tZA
=+—H 1,233,162 15,904 1,647 8,736 1,259,449
Service concession arrangements IBSISrE=gHE

Concession rights relate to the Group’s service concession
arrangements. The significant aspects of the service
concession arrangements are summarised as follows:

(@) The arrangements are concession arrangements
for waste water treatment plants with various local
government authorities in the PRC under IFRIC 12
Service Concession Arrangements.

CE-AEERE

HFRENERXTAEANRSIHFEE
WNLHE., REFFEENTHINERSTE
BRI :

@@ BXRTHERREERYSREIEE
ERRERE128 [REFIFE
EWNKHAE SZA P E =SB
RIS FAFEENR
HF.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

6. Intangible assets (cont’d)

Service concession arrangements (cont’d)

(b)

118 China Everbright Water Limited

The intangible assets of concession rights arose
from waste water treatment plants located in different
cities in the PRC. For these arrangements with
concession periods ranging between 20 years to 32
years, the Group (the operator) receives the right to
charge users a fee for using the services which the
grantor collects and pays to the operator.

All the water/waste water treatment arrangements
state the rights and obligations for the grantor and
operator as follows:

(i) The operator has the obligation to treat the
required amount of water/waste water and
also to ensure the treated water fulfills the
standard quality requirements of the grantor.

(ii) The infrastructure including the plant and
equipment, “know-how”, operations manual,
hand-over report, design of infrastructure
and related documents, for the waste water
treatment plant will be transferred to the
grantor or any grantor appointed agencies at
the end of the concession period.

(i)  The arrangement is terminated only when
a party breaches the contract or due to
unforeseeable circumstances.

(iv)  The operator has the obligation to maintain
and restore the water/waste water plant to its
operational condition upon transferring to the
grantor at the end of the concession period.

Waste water treatment plants with intangible assets
amounting to nil (2015: HK$312,223,000) as at 31
December 2016 were pledged to secure the loans
taken up by the Group (note 16).

FENKKSERAE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

FREr~
PESSHFITEENEHE (£)

(b) FRFRERRER S KRBT

(@]

(d)

EAREMTHAGSKGER, #iiA
FFEESRN T —tFE=1=
FHLZHMS  A%HF (EEH)
SRR AT B E B KRGS TR
HiHEER | ZFERBRENAK
BHXMFIZESE.

FTBIK/ISIKE R L HE AR B
ASSEEBRRFRERELT ¢

() EEEERELEREN
K/SEKE , ARFBRES
SRR FFERNARR
BiNEEK.,

(i) TSKEETHOEMIRIE (
BEMTERRE. Tl
R, BEREE. RER
&, EMiRMEAIRTT R
KM) BTHRATEERS
RESEAE T IR INATRN
NEEREEHCEA.

(i) BRXRHERBE—HEY
ZBRTEETA AT
BRI | TRMARLL,

(iv)  TERAFEEHRIERATERIN
NEERBIK/BAE /Y | i&
EEGREHEHIRIREINIS
E EEEEINR.

FE—RE+B=+—H . #
BAYBHETNELET (CF
—R4 : #M312,223,0005T) K
iS7KELIE BRI AR SR EIREL
EYERAOHEIR (BHiET16) .



7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

4S5 HRARMTE

Goodwill S

HK$°000
Group 354 BT
Cost |57
At 1 January 2015 F-F—ARF—H—H 1,043,545
Exchange adjustments CoeiERE (46,442)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AT 271,822
At 31 December 2015 F_E—FHRF+"B=1+—H 1,268,925
At 1 January 2016 FE—7"EF—HB—H 1,268,925
Exchange adjustments LR (83,447)
At 31 December 2016 FE—REFT+"B=1—H 1,185,478

The Group completed the acquisition of Dalian Dongda (as
defined in note 31) on 4 November 2015. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition has been recognised as follows:

AERT -F—AF+—RBNBMAAE
RiA (EXUHHE3T) HOKIER S, LI
MR BF-EREECHANT

HK$’000
BhFT
Total cash consideration MEXFN SER 2,238,866
Fair value of identifiable net assets ~ ATEHAEEFTHINMNE (1,967,044)
Goodwill BaE 271,822

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable
mainly to the expected synergies from combining operations
of the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired
is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the waste water treatment segment.

The recoverable amount of the waste water treatment
segment was based on fair value less costs of disposal
which was determined using share price of the Company
quoted on the Singapore Exchange Limited. Based on the
inputs used in the valuation, the fair value measurement
was categorised as level 1. No impairment was necessary
as at reporting date. The recoverable amount could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions in
the future.

Wz BRI E EER T RIS R
W75 EF LSS ROTRERD B E. FREA
MRS AR B A BT 1R,

P ERIENiX
MRENLTNS  BECDEEIT/KE

PAN::
paN=1o0

SRS R W RIS SEE T R 7
BERHERATITE | BERFINRZS
FTERATFRA A BRENTETEE.
RIELEFERNMANGIE , 2ehErt
BRXAFE—ER. #ERSH , T
INRE. REETHIMERIZ AT S AR
AJREHINE A,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WISSIRERMIE e e reeos B o

8. Interests in subsidiaries 8.

B AR E
Company
b /NG|
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—BF—RF “E=—hE
+=BA=1+—H +-HA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
EmhFr BhFIT

Unquoted equity instruments, ELEHRATER,
at cost KRR

Impairment losses IR{BEIRK

Amounts due from subsidiaries  RIUHIE A EIERIR

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur in the foreseeable future. As the amounts are in
substance a part of the Company’s net investments in
subsidiaries, they are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

The changes in impairment losses in respect of interests in
subsidiaries during the year are as follows:

10,985,487 11,455,593
(4,220,965)  (4,520,491)

6,764,522 6,935,102
2,426,051 2,598,208
9,190,573 9,533,310

MW ATHIERA. RRETAIN
REATUHRTFAKRTELEH. BTHEX
SHLR LRARNTTHRATMFRE
B—E0 , SRR AR A RITRIEIRK

FI.

B A BN EMERETERZZNU
T

Company
ARE

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—T—EF —FhRF

+=B=+—H +-B=1+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

EhTT BhTIT

At the beginning of the year == 4,520,491 4,709,092
Exchange adjustments CeEEE (299,526) (188,601)
At the end of the year Fk 4,220,965 4,520,491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

B RN (£2)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8.

TUWREER , EXMEARRIFED

Details of the significant subsidiaries at the end of the

financial year are as follows: T
Proportion of
Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*itbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FEEE/ —E—REE SR
A= FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H +—A=1+—H
% %
Held by the Company
HA LSRR
China Everbright Water Investment holding British Virgin 100 100
Investments Limited (“CEWIL”) R Islands (“BVI”)
REEAKSIREBIRAE] g N )
( “KSBIZE" )
Ocean Force International Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited REER REHERTED
Joyer International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
R REBH/RRED
Aqua Shine Group Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
RRER REH/RRED
China Everbright Water Investment holding, Singapore 100 100
International Pte. Ltd. technology R&D, o
(former name: HanKore business development
International Pte. Ltd.) and management
PREFEAKSERRFAABIRAT services
(BAE  XRERAABIRAE)  REER. RHHA.
WS RN EEIRSS
Everbright Sponge City Sponge City PRC 70 -
Development (Zhenjiang) construction, operation FE

Limited #

SRR AR (121) BIR

AT

and R&D
BEERHEIR. EEX
A

CE-AEERE
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Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

8. MEARREH (£)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbw
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
ACE FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+-B=+—H
% %
Held by China Everbright Water Investments Limited
Everbright Water (Qingdao) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited (“‘EW 1R &5
Qingdao Holdings”)
(former name: EB-VW HK
Holding Company Limited
(“EB-VW))
FHRKS (BB ) ERERAT
( "KRKSESER" )(ER
B NS ESERLN
8 ( "FeKREIZHEKS" )
Everbright Water (Zibo) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited R e
FEAKSS (ElE) RERAE]
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited SRR 't
FEAKSS (58 ) ERBRAT
Everbright Water (Wuxi) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited SRR )
FRIKS (55 ) ERBIRAT
Everbright Water (Dezhou) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited AR &5
FERIKSS (M) =RERAE]
Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited SRR '

FERIKSS (1M ERBIRAE]

12 China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial ded 31 December 2016 A2 N
R R WIS TRARMIIE

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8. ME BN (4E)
Proportion of

Principal ownership interest

place of held by the Group

business/ *%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*itbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FEEE/ —B—RFE “E—RF
A FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+—-A=1+—H
% %

Held by Chlna Everbrlght Water Investments Limited (cont’d)

China Everbright Water Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Management Limited R &8

FENEAKSEEBIRAE

CEW Corporate Services Corporate Services Hong Kong 100 -
Limited WBIRS 3

PENERKSIRSBIRAT

Held by Everbright Water (Qingdao) Holdings Limited

Everbright Water (Qingdao) Waste water treatment PRC 60 60
Limited (‘EB Water Qingdao”)  j57K4ME FE

(former name: Qingdao
EB-VW Waste Water Treatment
Co. Ltd.) #
FHAKSE (B ) BRRE ("%
KKSES" ) (BAES . 55K%

BLSIKAMERIRAE]) *
Held by Everbright Water (Zibo) Holdings Limited
sle v, 648, I\E
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited *  Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
FEAKSS (EE ) BRAR* iS7KAbEER FE
Everbright Water (Zibo Zhoucun)  Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Purification Co., Ltd. * 57K FE
FERIKSS (EIEEN) $KEIR
/\—J*
Everbright Water (Boxing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * SRR FE

FERIKSS (18%) BRAE*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WISSIRERMIE e e reeos B o

8. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8. MiIB RS (££)
Proportion of
Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbw
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
RERIR N e kit +=B=+—B+=-B=+—H
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited (cont’d)
sle 7 Py (<4 /\E
Zibo Everbright Water Energy Waste water source PRC 100 100
Development Company Limited  heat pump ==]E5]
BN KSR RBIRAT TSIKIERER
Held by Everbright Water (Ji’nan) Holdings Limited
sl 7 3 txy: e} A b ixd:
Everbright Water (Zhangqiu) Waste water treatment PRC 95 -
Operating Limited * and operation services FE
HRKS (BEER) iZEBRAT SR ERIZERSS
Everbright Water (Ji'nan Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Licheng) Limited * T57KAbIE FE
FARIKSS (FFrahtk) BRAE*
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * T57KAbEER FE
HAIKSS (FFE8) BRAE*
Everbright Water (Zhanggqiu) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * 57KAb TR hE
HARKS (ER) BRAE*
Everbright Water (Juxian) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * T57K4ME FE

FARKS (BR ) BRAF*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

8. ME2ER:H

4S5 HRARMTE

(88)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ $$Eﬁﬁﬁ;mﬁ*ytbgu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities EEizE/ —E—F —E—hF
LEBIR FEIS Mgzt +"BA=+—H +-B=+—H
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Wuxi) Holdings Limited
Ry 7 Ta3 [\E 1al
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Waste water treatment PRC 70 70
Limited (‘EB Water Jianyin”) *  ;57k4bE FE
FEAIKSS (VIFR ) BRAE]
( "FeARKSIIIR" )"
Everbright Reusable Water Reusable water PRC 100 100
(Jiangyin) Limited * Fh7KEFI B FE
FERFUKFIA (7P ) BRAT *
Held by Everbright Water (Dezhou) Holdings Limited
Ml 7 l_‘_ 1xy:[a} PASY— [1x]:Ia]
Everbright Water (Dezhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * SR FE
HARIKSS (M) BIRAT *
Everbright Water (Lingxian) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited * SRR FE
FERKS (BBRR ) BRAE *
Held by Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Holdings Limited
s 7 2 4 1xy: s} [\E 1xy:Ia}
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited *  Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
FERIKS () BRRAE * i57KAbEER hE
Everbright Water Operating Waste water treatment PRC 51 -
(Xinyi) Limited * and reusable water s
HARIKFIEE (Fifr ) BRAE" 57K K FK BRI A
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Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

8. MEARREH (£)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ ZF%EIFﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities EEEE/ —E—RF —E—ThF
AR FEWS Mzt +°BA=+—H +—B=1+—H
% %
Held by China Everbright Water Management Limited
Everbright Reusable Water Reusable water PRC 100 -
(Nanjing) Limited * FRKERIA HE
FRFKFIA (FER ) BRAF
Everbright Water (Shenzhen) R&D and consultation PRC 100 100
Limited * on water treatment FE
HARKSE (R BRAR * technology
IKGM BRI AR AR R A1)
RS
Held by Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited
2l 7 z= | UAS— kixy: (4]
Beijing Hankesen Environmental ~ R&D and consultation PRC 100 100
Technology Co., Ltd. * on water treatment FR[E
IERIFRMERE AR AT * technology
IR I 58
RS
Held by Beijing Hankesen Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
—25 i* N I\E
Beijing Everbright Water Investment and PRC 100 100
Investment Management Co., investment fhE
Ltd. (former name: Beijing management
Hankelin Environmental IREBENRIGEREE
Technology Co., Ltd)
AR BIRREERRAT
(BAR IR ERE
FRAE)
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For the financial ded 31 December 2016 A2 N
R R WIS TRARMIIE

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8. MEARNEE (£8)
Proportion of

Principal ownership interest

place of held by the Group

business/ ZF%ElFﬁﬁFﬁﬁﬂtbﬁﬂ
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
rEEMm FEWS Mgzt +-B=+—H +—-B=1+—H
% %

Held by Beijing Everbright Water Investment Management Co., Ltd.

= 7 35 NG [l
Everbright Water (Beijing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: Beijing S7K4bTE FE

Bio-Treat Water Co., Ltd.) #
FeARIKSE (bR ) BIRAE
(BRE  It=RSEKSERA

) #
Everbright Water Purification Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Nanjing Limited (former TSR FE

name: Nanjing Jin Huan Water

Development Co., Ltd.)
FHRKERRUERERAT

(BAE . ERSIKESRESR

27)

Everbright Water (Binzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: Binzhou SKEME ==]E3|
Jin Di Co., Ltd.)

FERIKS GEM ) BIRAE]
(BRE  ENSEKSERAT)

Sanmenxia Everbright Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Limited (former name: SRR FE
Sanmenxia HanKore Co., Ltd.)
=T AKS IR
(A% : = IERRKEHER
27)
Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd Waste water treatment PRC 90 90
RERKKSBERAE 757K HE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

8. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

8. MEARREH (£)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbw
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
ACE FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+-B=+—H
% %
Held by Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd
3 ‘*7 I\E I
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Malanhe Waste Water T57KAbER FE
Treatment Co., Ltd
KEFRAMEERFSI=EEK
QIEBIRAE]
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Chunliuhe Waste Water J5IKENE thE
Treatment Co., Ltd
REFRENEERFFNEISX
IEBIRAE]
Dalian Siergou Water Co., Ltd Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
KIESF) LAKSERAE 57K hE
Dalian Lvshun City Waste Water ~ Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd JSKEME hE
KT S K EBRAE]
Dalian Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Treatment Co., Ltd T57KAbIE FE
RIERIR=AESKEEERAE
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Pulandian Water Co., TSIKALTE HE
Ltd
RNERIXIMEERE =R
BIRAT]
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Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

4S5 HRARMTE

8. MBI (48)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*itbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FEEE/ —E—REE SR
A FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+—-A=1+—H
% %
Held by Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd (cont’d)
MEZes NS
[=]
Dongda Group Zhuanghe Water ~ Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd SRR FE
RIAEREKSBIRAR
Panjin City Waste Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd SIKAbIE FE
RIS K EBIRAE]
Anshan City Water Operating Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd S7KALIE FE
BIHKSIEERRAT
Dongda Group (Shenyang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Hunnan Water Co., Ltd 57K FE
RIKER (PR ) FrakBSHE
R
Dandong Dongda Waste Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd S7KAbIE FE
FRRIASKGEBRAT]
Dongda Group Tongliao Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd S7KALIE FE
RILERBITKSBIRAT
Dalian Puwan New District Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Dongda Waste Water 757K R ==]E3)|
Treatment Co., Ltd
KEESHXRATKLGIES
FRAE]
Dalian Bonded Area Dongda Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Waste Water Treatment SIKAbIE FE

Co., Ltd
KEFRBRXRASKEIEEGRAE

CE-AEERE
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WISSIRERMIE e e reeos B o

8. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8. MiIB RS (££)
Proportion of
Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbw
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
ACE FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+-B=+—H
% %
Held by Ocean Force International Limited
EHOcean Force International Limited{z=ig
Newsussex International Limited  Investment holding BVI 100 100
T ERRE R AT R B N )
Biopower International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
EEERERAE QR REH RIS
New Efficient Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
IANEBEIRAE "REER KBRS
Bio-Treat Resources Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
REER KBRS
Sky Billion Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
KIZBIRAE] R REH RIS
Ocean Master International Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited REER B4R
Bio-Treat International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
SHERGRAT R RELE/RRRD
Held by Newsussex International Limited
Sugian City Cheng Bei Water Industrial waste water PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd. * treatment thE
BEHEALKSREERAT* TulisKaEE
Held by Biopower International Limited
i peE|FRE PR 2 SRS
Sugian City Cheng Bei Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Wastewater Treatment T57K4ME FE

Co., Ltd. *
BEEmEAL S KM EAEERAT*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

4S5 HRARMTE

8. MBI (48)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*itbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities EE; =S/ —B—REF —E—RF
A FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+—-A=1+—H
% %
Held by New Efficient Limited
BT EEIRA SR
Everbright Water (Yangzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: T57KENE thE
Yangzhou HanKore Water
Development Co., Ltd) *
FERIKS (M) BIRAE
(BAR  BMNIXEIKEIER R
BIRAE)) *
Held by Bio-Treat Resources Limited
EBio-Treat Resources Limitedizig
True Global Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
FXERABRAT SRR RBY/RRRD
Held by True Global Limited
HRAXERBRARIER
Everbright Water (Xianyang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: TS7KRbER FE
Xianyang Bai Sheng Shui
Purifying Co., Ltd.) *
FERIKSS (FFR ) BIRAE]
(BAE : BEBERXNSFERLS
B)*
Held by Sky Billion Limited
BEZERARIER
Everbright River Basin River basin ecological PRC 100 -
Remediation (Nanjing) repair F[E
Limited * EER
FERTERE (R ) BRAF*
Everbright Water (Nanjing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: TS7KAbER FE

Nanjing Golden Idea Water
Development Co., Ltd.)*

FEARIKS (B ) BIRAFE]
(LT mRSEKSEES
PRAT)*
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8. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 8. MiIBATIMNES (4E)
Proportion of
Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ *%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂtbw
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FETE/ —E—RF —EF—hF
RERIR N e kit +=B=+—B+=-B=+—H
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited
Sk = I\E
Everbright Industrial Waste Waste water treatment PRC 60 -
Water Treatment Nanjing TSR FE
Limited
KA RKMIEEFRERAE
Held by Ocean Master International Limited
B Ocean Master International Limitedizig
Oriental Fortune International Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Limited R Bt
RIEREIRAT
World Pioneer Investments Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited "R REBHRARD
Everbright Water (Lianyungang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: J57KANE ==]E3]
Lianyungang King Fortune
Water Co., Ltd.) *
KKK (1E=E ) BIRAT
(BHE  EoBIKkESEIR
nAE)*
Everbright Water (Suzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: Suzhou TSI FE

Jin Di Water Co., Ltd.) #
FERIKS (M) BIRAF]

(BT : DNESEKSBERR
i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BE_E—7\F1+=

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

4S5 HRARMTE

B=1+—HIHNVBEFEE

8. MBI (48)

Proportion of

Principal ownership interest
place of held by the Group
business/ ZF%EFﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁWtbﬁu
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FEEE/ —E—REE SR
A FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+"A=+—H
% %
Held by World Pioneer Investments Limited
EHWorld Pioneer Investments Limited{=i%
Everbright Water (Kunshan) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited (former name: T57KEME ==]E3]
Kunshan Gang Dong
Wastewater Treatment Co.,
Ltd.) *
FARIKS (B ) BRAE]
(BAE : BUBRSKEESR
23] *
Held by Aqua Shine Group Limited
BAqua Shine Group Limited 58%
Victor Best Holdings Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
SRR RBS/RRRD
Held by Victor Best Holdings Limited
HVictor Best Holdings Limited{Z=hg
Tianjin Hanquan Environment R&D and consultation PRC 100 100
Technology Limited * on water treatment FE
REXRIMRARHBIRAT* technology
IR AT AR &1
RS
Held by Tianjin Hanquan Environment Technology Limited
b= N /\E la}
Jiangsu Tongyong Environment Construction PRC 100 100
Engineering Co., Ltd engineering FE
BRI TIEBRAT BIETE
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment * IRIE A [FEE L L7 P E IR E L

enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of the PRC as Sino-foreign co-
operation joint ventures.

* REEEARERAT A A
A
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Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Notes:

(a)  All significant subsidiaries are audited by KPMG Hong Kong for
group consolidation purpose. For this purpose, a subsidiary is
considered significant as defined under the Singapore Exchange
Limited Listing Manual if its net tangible assets represent 20%
or more of the Group’s consolidated net tangible assets, or
if its pre-tax profits account for 20% or more of the Group’s
consolidated pre-tax profits.

(b) EW (Qingdao), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company is
committed to contribute 60% of EB Water Qingdao’s registered
capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by
the PRC non-controlling interest stakeholder. EW (Qingdao)
Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of EB Water Qingdao for
the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year
of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water
Qingdao is to be shared by EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC
non-controlling interest stakeholder on a 98:2 basis.

Interest in an associate

MiIBATIMNES (4E)
B -

(@) FBEXERREASIIREDHEBME
FGEHRBRIMEETHEI. SIS
RANFT AN A S AT LT FEMATRE |, U0
RBEARNER A FROFERLSR
BEREFESFEMAI20%0 |, skans
BABRREIRF S A SR LGS IREE
BAIBI20%ELLE , MIZMEA TS
MAEK,

(b) FEARKSE (BB) BREEENICAIKS
BB60%EMELR., HRA0%BHGEMSR
FEPEIFERN@REHE. JeAK
E (FR) FRTEEHETUFTLE
EENAKZEEZFEF]. MHAS+
hEGERIE , XAKESETRZ 2R
BEYEAKS (BS) ERMTPEIRER
RERIRARIZ98:2Z LU BN =,

BKEATNES
Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

—B—RE —F—hF
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000

B BmTIT

Interest in an associate BEATNG

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
disposed of its partial equity interest in Qingdao Haibohe
Water Operating Limited (formerly named as Qingdao
Everbright Water Operating Limited)(“Qingdao Haibohe”)
to Qingdao Water Group Co., Ltd (the “Transfer”). Upon
completion of the Transfer, the Group’s equity interest in
Qingdao Haibohe was reduced from 99% to 49%. After the
Transfer, the Group has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over Qingdao Haibohe ’'s management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions, pursuant to the Articles of Association of Qingdao
Haibohe. Accordingly, Qingdao Haibohe is classified as
an associate of the Group after the Transfer. The Group
recognised a gain of HK$402,000 in other income.

Qingdao Haibohe provides services to the Maidao
Waste Water Treatment Plant and Haibohe Waste Water
Treatment Plant in Qingdao.

As at 31 December 2016, the above investment is held by
the Company’s subsidiary.
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1,327 —

BE_TS—"FT"A=+—HLFE,
FERHERETERBAMKSEERR
RE (AIRABBHRKSZIEERRA
8) ( "EREHT ) PINETE
SKFSERABRAR (| "HLRB" ).

TR Z5eE  AERATE B EEN
AORLEREH99% R D E49%, TESERkERIERE
7l RESSEEUZARER , &%
FaESERINER (BES5MS
RIEERFAIFNT ) FEEATE , Mk
fEHEEtEES. B, RS
& EREHARDSENFERAZEKER
8. AERAEEMIIA MA T KT
m402,0007t.

BRI TERRESSKEE
NEHRE AR IR AHARSS.

FE—FFt+A=1T—H K b&&KH
HAAATZMEATNTFE.



10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Interest in an associate (cont’d)

Details of the associate at the end of the financial year is as
follows:

4S5 HRARMTE

9. HEXEME (4)

TFHMBEER  REATZFBINT

Proportion of
ownership interest

Principal
place of held by the Group
business/ ZF%ElFﬁﬁFﬁﬁﬂtbﬁﬂ
Country of 31 December 31 December
incorporation 2016 2015
Name of company Principal activities FEEE/ —T—RE —E—RF
A FEWS Mkt +=B=+—H+"A=+—H
% %
Qingdao Haibohe Water Waste water treatment PRC 49 99
Operating Limited TSIKRbER FE

BREHIKSIZERRAE

Service concession financial receivables

10. SERSFHTFEERHEXHERMIIERER

Group
@
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—S—REF TR
+=B=+-H +=A=+-H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BhF T BmTIT
Non-current IEREN 8,179,732 7,713,209
Current bie)| 791,609 893,423
8,971,341 8,606,632

The significant aspects of the service concession
arrangements are summarised as follows:

(@)  The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the local government
authorities (the “grantors”) for water/waste water
treatment plants which are located in the PRC
for concession periods ranging between 16 years
to 32 years. Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain water/waste
water treatment plants in the PRC. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste water treatment
plants in good condition. The grantors guarantee
the Group will receive minimum annual payments
in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry
of the concession periods, the water/waste water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be
transferred to the grantors.

REFTFEENZHNERSE BRI

T:

(a)

CE-AEERE

RERAZHBA TS HHBURFL
B ( "ERA" ) T RENE
FK/EKEIRT AT FRFEEN
THE  FIFEEIN T HAEE=
&, RIEZFRSFTEEN
T, AERMRT. BER/E
FHERSUE. IEER4EHPNTHER
IK/TEIKEEERT . AEABRESE
FREKAME HIRIFIRR. ZIA
fRIE , IEXLHMS | AEER
A EFREERRRIERIL. T
ZEHEHE  KASKEE R
BRIRIEFEEIRIAFE.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

10. Service concession financial receivables (cont’d) 10.

(@)  (contd)

The service concession arrangements do not contain
renewal options. The standard rights of the grantors
to terminate include failure of the Group to construct,
upgrade or operate the waste water treatment plants
and in the event of a material breach of the terms of
the agreements. The standards rights of the Group
to terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for water/waste water treatment service
from the grantors and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements.

(b)  Water/waste water treatment plants with service
concession financial receivables amounting to
HK$2,979,921,000 (2015: HK$3,997,606,000) as
at 31 December 2016 are pledged to secure loans
taken up by the Group (note 16).

Service concession financial receivables totalling
HK$8,971,341,000 (2015: HK$8,606,632,000) bear
interest at rates ranging from 4.90% to 7.83% (2015:
5.65% to 7.83%) per annum, of which HK$402,996,000
(2015: HK$363,816,000) are due from a non-controlling
shareholder and HK$593,009,000 (2015: HK$647,007,000)
are due from a related company as at 31 December
2016. The amounts are not yet due for payment and will
be settled by proceeds of water treatment to be generated
during the operating periods of the service concession
arrangements. Amounts billed will be transferred to trade
receivables (note 12). No impairment loss was recognised
by the Group at 31 December 2016 and 2015 in respect of
the service concession financial receivables.

SRS TFEEREXH R RITRIT
()

@ (&)

IRSBEATFEENZ AR S LHR%
#. BRARIEFEENTH
TEERFI BT - RERFIREERIE.
FHRBUEEEESKIE | LR
N EREF EER. FAEALLE
FRFEENZHHIY AR ERFIE
1E - REEMIRIRAMERK /757K 4L
EIRSSEE  LARIMNEEF &S
2.

by FIE—ARF+ZBE=+—H,
A SRSEFEENEXNSR
RITER I T 2,979,921,0007T (
—ZT—HRF : #™3,997,606,000
70 ) BOK/iS7KAb IR EAERIRA
REEFFRENEIFRAOHER (BHiE16) .

FE—RE+"B=1—H K 5k
FEENEXN SN KRN B
M8,971,341,0007T ( —F—FR4F : &M
8,606,632,0007c ) , HIRERZFR4L90%
ZE7.83% ( ZF—FHF : 5.65%%7.83%
) itE , 402,996,000 (=&
—F 4 ; #H363,816,0007T ) FmiUMIE
R R I A 78 593,009,0007T ( =
TR - #MH647,007,0007T ) SR
KENEIFM, ZERIMEREIERZAT |
FELRSFRFEENZHINEE AT
FAERKIBIRANZ T, BRESETUGEE
ERER (HE12) . FIE—NER
“E—RFETR=1—H A *EFHE
S RSIFFFEERHE XIS BN KGRI
HARERSL.

11.  Inventories 11. =&
Group
&R
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RE “E—hEF
+=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BhTIT
At cost: A
Raw materials and consumables BB SR 14,323 10,689
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12.

Trade and other receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

12 RrHMGR R EL ftRHERIR

Group Company
FEHE ¥ /NG
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—BF—RF —E—htF —BF—RF TR
+=-B=+—H +=B=+—H +=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFr BhFIT EhFr BhFIT
Non-current E| 3700
Other receivables Bt R IKERIR 9,863 18,405 = -
Prepayments SN = 21,120 = 21,120
9,863 39,525 - 21,120
Current s
Trade receivables NTHEER 429,595 464,440 - -
Amounts due from YN
subsidiaries IR - - 2,096,933 1,672,655
Other receivables ELAthR IR £
and sundry deposits IR & 84,301 122,552 - -
Prepayments SUNEZNIY 74,843 54,533 - -
588,739 641,525 2,096,933 1,672,655
Total SER 598,602 681,050 2,096,933 1,693,775

Trade receivables represent revenue from operation
services and the billed amounts of the service concession
financial receivables. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days credit terms.
Included in trade receivables of the Group, HK$19,600,000
(2015: HK$13,312,000) are due from a non-controlling
shareholder and HK$10,546,000 (2015: HK$8,628,000) are
due from a related company as at 31 December 2016.

The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or realised within one year.

As at 31 December 2016, included in other receivables of
the Group is a consideration receivable of HK$29,790,000
(2015: HK$33,609,000) due from third parties arising from
disposals of service concession rights held by the Sugian
plants and included in prepayments are a prepayment of
HK$33,504,000 (2015: HK$7,644,000) to a non-controlling
shareholder for construction works.

The Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk are
disclosed in note 29(c).

R IKFRRIE R EIZE RS MR SRS T
LERMEXNSRIN KN E R ERTA, MK
WHRAITFIR , EEHER—A%930ZF90H.
HE_F—7"FT+-A=1+—H, FEtAKEH
RTKERAOFR I |, #119,600,0007T ( —F—
T4 #mM13,312,0005T ) SR AEIRER R IR
I #EM10,546,00070 ( —BS—RF : B
8,628,0007T ) IRIYIKER N EIFRIR,

RREZ N EATRIALHER. RERIMR
RESKIERT T,

ERREP RS T A TSR EE
T,

TEF"F+IR=1+—H , AEFEMNK
RINEERI S =75 R T HEBIEK AR
RFE BN ERIXIMN 29,790,000 (
ZE—HF : #M33,609,00055 ) , LARFMT
MBI EEIE TR FIERRRZ
IR ™ 33,504,000 7T ( ZF—HRF : B
7,644,0007T ) .

RERARKR LB ATEEZEBXETHHE29(c)
KEE .
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

13. Cash and cash equivalents 13. MEFIESNMY
Group Company
AEEH ¥ /NG
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—F—F “F—ht —B—F —E—hRF
+=B=+-B +=B=+-8 +=B=+-H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
EmhFr BhFIT EmhFr BhFIT
Cash on hand and FHUEREBRT
bank balances RET 1,359,401 1,288,550 30,716 7,248
Short-term deposits FEEAERR 543,340 480,440 = -
1,902,741 1,768,990 30,716 7,248

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprised:

HGaRNERERNS  RERASFMN
YIEsE

Group
AEEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RF “E—hF
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
BhF BhTIT
Cash and cash equivalents MEeEMEEMN 1,902,741 1,768,990
Less: Restricted bank deposits W SZIRERITER (543,340) (480,440)
1,359,401 1,288,550

The restricted bank deposits are pledged to banks for
borrowings (note 16).
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14.

Share capital

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T—\F+A=+—HLNVEREE

14. BBF

Group and Company

EERAREFLE
2016 2015
—B—RE —EF—hF
No. of No. of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
(000) (000)
ZiEiREE HK$’000 EBRREE HK$°000
(FB%) B (FHR) BmHT T
Authorised share EERRA:
capital:
At the beginning of the ~ &E4]]
year 10,000,000 10,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Increase in authorised  JEERRAIEIN
share capital - - 8,500,000 8,500,000
At the end of the year FXR 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares of SizmEsm
HK$1.00 each, issued 1.005t¢ , B&1T
and fully paid: REE
At the beginning of the 5]
year 2,608,014 2,608,014 2,487,261 2,487,261
Issue of ordinary shares &1TEEBIR - - 120,691 120,691
Issue of ordinary shares E{TEIARRBIETA
for exercise of warrants ~ {TiEE@A% - - 62 62
Issue of shares TRIELABAC R
pursuant to scrip KATERAD
dividend scheme 10,177 10,177 - -
Shares buy-back BREN (8,283) (8,283) - -
At the end of the year R 2,609,908 2,609,908 2,608,014 2,608,014

On 21 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued
49,696,276 shares to International Finance Corporation
and 70,994,681 shares to Dalvey Asset Holding Ltd, at an
issue price of SGD0.94 per share pursuant to subscriptions
agreements entered into on 19 February 2015. Proceeds
from such issue of ordinary shares amounted to
HK$659,031,000, out of which HK$120,691,000 and
HK$538,340,000 were recorded in share capital and share
premium of the Company respectively.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per ordinary share at meetings. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

CE-AEERE

FIE—HRFEUBZ+—H , ARXER
BETF-E—AFZHB+hBiITZAE
i, MEREAE (International
Finance Corporation)E &R &{T
49,696,276f2R% K EDalvey Asset
Holding LtdEg/&}&1770,994,681R%A%
9, BRETMNA0.945 0K TT. &1T
R BTSN 659,031,000
T, HiEm 120,691,000t kB
538,340,0005cE D BNCAAF A ERIBRAE
KRz migati

HERIRFAENEEANEIRIRR | 7
BEENERFRS LIRREFE—RITR
—ENLRISERE. MERMHES AR
NERRE HEZERFNE.
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15.

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Reserves 15. (@&
Group Company
AEEHE ¥ /NG
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
- a2 “ZhEF —T—REF —F—hEF
+=-B=+—H8 +-A=+—H +=B=+—H +=B=t+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
#hFrT BhFIT E#mhFr BhFIT
Share premium BRAD SN 1,240,300 1,210,050 30,250 -
Foreign currency AL
translation reserve figs (579,620) (1,887) (1,084,703) (424,795)
Statutory reserve EEiES 155,635 121,317 - -
Contributed surplus S ANBRIES
reserve 1,229,302 1,243,508 7,639,082 7,653,288
Other reserves HithfEs (2,181) (2,181) 64,953 64,953
Retained earnings {REBEF 2,144,843 1,882,122 77,524 113,540
4,188,279 4,452,929 6,727,106 7,406,986
(a) Share premium (@)  BziiEfh

140 China Everbright Water Limited

The share premium account may be applied only for
the purposes specified in the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

During the year, the Company allotted and issued
10,177,139 new ordinary shares to ordinary
shareholders who had elected to participate in the
scrip dividend scheme. The total scrip dividend paid
was HK$40,427,000. Accordingly, the Company
recognised a share premium of HK$30,250,000
arising from the issuance of such shares.

Pursuant to the special resolution at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 15
December 2015, the entire amount standing to the
credit of the Company’s share premium was reduced
to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus
reserve. On the same date, contributed surplus
reserve of HK$4,470,556,000 was utilised to offset
against the accumulated losses of the Company as
of that date.

Accordingly, the Group’s share premium of
HK$1,243,508,000 attributed to the Company was
transferred to the contributed surplus reserve. The
share premium of the Group includes CEWIL’s share
premium of HK$1,210,050,000 arising from the
issue of share for the capitalisation of the CEWIL’s
indebtedness of HK$1,210,050,000 owing to the
intermediate holding company in June 2014.

FENKKSERAE

RADBINTKFXATRT (B5A—
NIN\—FREE) KIEERE.

ARNBDTFEARAMEEERSSUURAK
BitkzEEREREEER KT
10,177,139 #E @, 2317
AR EREFI&1T#E 40,427,000
7T. Bt , AT EWMIAKRT
FARRDIFEEZRDENED
30,250,0007T,

RE-FE—AF+"B+HA%
THARNBRBIRERSFTBEE
BIRBIRINE , AR SN
N HKLSTRES RIEKRE
MANBRES. BE , AEED
4,470,556,000THII N B RIEE
BRTFREA N TEEZANERLT
SiR.

Hit , KRB SAERANRD S
N 1,243,508,000TE L E
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IKSIREXFPENERATZ RS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Reserves (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

(c) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Foreign Enterprise
Law applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC,
wholly-owned subsidiaries are required to make
appropriation to a statutory reserve. At least 10%
of the statutory after tax profits as determined in
accordance with the applicable PRC accounting
standards and regulations must be allocated to the
statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the
reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, the statutory reserve may be used
to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

(d)  Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction
of share premium as disclosed in note 15(a).

15. & (&)
(b) HMRICSAES

SR aEREEI NS
BIRERATERFTEIL R ER.

(c) iEREfEE

RIEERTHEMRATR (FNE
®AE) | 2BMEATIRSEE
tEEEhikE. REERNTES
THENRME , ZD10%R9EE
BRSO EEEEMS B
ERIHERSIIAEMBLEIEM
BARS0%AIE. FHEXFEN
REHE | AEEETRATIREE
AR SIREEINM R A SRYEM
‘R, EEMHEMEATRTENR
BABRFRIRTIRE.

(d) HABRRES

HNBRESEMNE5 () FiKEE
Z BBy SRR A

(e)  Other reserves (e) Hithigs
Other reserves comprise share option reserve, HibESOEENES. BAES
capital reserve and other reserves. pra=cili=n
Borrowings 16. &
Group Company
FEH ¥ /NG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—§—% C"T-EF C—S—F _"TBF
+=-A=+—H +—B=+—H8 +=BA=+—H8 +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bh BmTIT BhF BmHT T
Non-current JEimzh
Bank borrowings RITEIFR 3,366,091 2,423,663 1,203,692 193,813
Current iwan
Bank borrowings RITERR 1,521,407 2,394,574 756,892 1,000,073
Total & 4,887,498 4,818,237 1,960,584 1,193,886
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A&z N For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
WA5s =i BE_F—AE+_B=t+—RIHMBEE
16. Borrowings (cont’d) 16. HEER (%)
Group Company
AEEH ¥ VNG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—T—EFE —F—hF —T—EFE —F—hF
+=-B=+—-H +=B=+—H +=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EmhFr BhFIT EhFr BhFIT
Repayable: VAN
- within 1 year - —FLA 1,521,407 2,394,574 756,892 1,000,073
- after 1 year but - —FLEE
within 5 years RELRA 2,736,178 2,273,953 674,421 193,813
- after 5 years - 5FLE 629,913 149,710 529,271 -
4,887,498 4,818,237 1,960,584 1,193,886
Terms and debt repayment schedule SR IZS 1200 EIZ
Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as REREATHIEANR SN T -
follows:
Year of Nominal interest Face Carrying
Currency  maturity rate per annum value amount
&M SURBEF(R BXERE [:]1= EEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BhTr it
Group AEH
31 December 2016 —=F—7E+=H
=+—H
Secured bank BHRRT
borrowings B
- floating interest - FaF=E usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,086,680 1,068,827
rate EyI
- floating interest - FoRER RMB 2019-2023  90% to 100% of 834,994 830,034
rate ARM PBOC rate*
PEARRTRE
AY990% = 100%*
- fixed interest rate - EIEFI=R RMB 2019 2.88% to 2.90% 498,920 498,920
ARM 2.88% Z 2.90%
Unsecured bank FHEIRERTT
borrowings (G
- floating interest - FEIF=R RMB 2017-2026  90% to 120% of 1,597,960 1,597,960
rate AR PBOC rate*
PEARRITRZE
A990% = 120% *
- floating interest - FaFE usD 2017-2018 1.20% + LIBOR to 892,630 891,757
rate ESyI 1.90% + LIBOR
1.20% + LIBOR &
1.90% + LIBOR
4,911,184 4,887,498
142  China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS
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Borrowings (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Terms and debt repayment schedule (cont’d)

16. f&ER (4E)

FARNGES 1A (4E)

Year of Nominal interest Face Carrying
Currency  maturity rate per annum value amount
&g SIHALE(R BNEFFE [i:]I=1 KE S
HK$°000 HK$°000
#hFrx #EhFrm
Group AR
31 December 2015 —ZF—hAF+=H
=+-8
Secured bank BHRRT
borrowings 5K
- floating interest - SEOR=R RMB 2016-2023 90% to 120% 724,609 709,414
rate AEM of PBOC rate*
FEARRITRER
#990% Z 120% *
- fixed interest rate - EIEFE RMB 2016-2017  1.58% to 5.02% 1,529,864 1,529,864
AE® 1.58% & 5.02%
Unsecured bank FoHCRERTT
borrowings 53R
- floating interest - F ol RMB  2016-2023  95% to 120% 733,226 733,226
rate AEM of PBOC rate*
FEARRITAER
#995% Z 120% *
- floating interest - FEhRIE usD 2016-2018  1.55% + LIBOR to 814,013 814,013
rate e 1.90% + LIBOR
1.55% + LIBOR &
1.90% + LIBOR
- floating interest - FEhRE HK$ 2016 1.65% + HIBOR 379,873 379,873
rate Bmh
- fixed interest rate - EEFIZR RMB  2016-2017  4.60% to 5.37% 651,847 651,847
AEM 4.60% & 5.37%
4,833,432 4,818,237

CE-AEERE
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16.

144 China Everbright Water Limited

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

Borrowings (cont’d)

Terms and debt repayment schedule (cont’d)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

16. (&8 (4£8)

FHRES 1A (4E)

Year of Nominal interest Face Carrying
Currency  maturity rate per annum value amount
& FHASFE (R BYER= [i:]1= EEE
HK$000 HK$’000
EhTT BhTT
Company F: /N
31 December 2016 —F—F+_-H
=+—H
Secured bank BHRRT
borrowing B
- floating interest - FEhFE usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,086,680 1,068,827
rate e
Unsecured bank FoHEIRERTT
borrowings B
- floating interest - FaFE usD 2017-2018 1.20% + LIBOR to 892,630 891,757
rate ETT 1.90% + LIBOR
1.20% + LIBOR
1.90% + LIBOR
1,979,310 1,960,584
31 December 2015 —F—hHF+-H
=+—H
Unsecured bank FARIRRIT
borrowings R
- floating interest - FEIF=R usD 2016 -2018  1.55% + LIBOR to 814,013 814,013
rate E 1.90% + LIBOR
1.55% + LIBOR £
1.90% + LIBOR
- floating interest - FEIFER HK$ 2016 1.65% + HIBOR 379,873 379,873
rate Bmh
1,193,886 1,193,886
* PBOC rate denotes the People’s Bank of China base lending : ;ég;ﬁgﬂg%ﬁqﬂ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂg

rates.
HIBOR denotes the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.
LIBOR denotes the London Interbank Offered Rate.

Secured banking facilities of the Group are secured
by certain revenue, receivables and intangible assets
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, bank deposits and property, plant and
equipment of the Group. Such banking facilities, amounting
to HK$2,554,133,000 (2015: HK$2,358,883,000), were
utilised to the extent of HK$2,397,781,000 (2015:
HK$2,239,278,000). Among the secured banking facilities,
HK$522,662,000 (2015: HK$1,034,580,000) are guaranteed
by the Company with such facilities of HK$522,662,000
(2015: HK$1,034,580,000) were utilised at 31 December
2016.

FENKKSERAE

HIBORZIEEBIRITRIAREFIE,
LIBOR Z2HsCBURITRIMIFEFZL,

AEFZ ERPRTRERUE TS RERR
SRR ENTHEXABN ., MKRIANR T
&=, BITERURY. TERIRSIER
1, ZERITISEE™2,554,133,0005T ( =
T—RF : #B2,358,883,0005T ) , HhEF
F#mM2,397,781,0005C ( —E—H4F : 8™
2,239,278,0005T ) . EBERIBRITIRESF |
HehisM522,662,0007T ( —F—FHE : B
1,034,580,0007T ) HALATIRMIER, F=F
—NE+ZHA=1+—8 , tREBEhETRE
i AEMH522,662,0007T ( —E—FE : B
1,034,580,0007¢ ) .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Borrowings (cont’d)

At 31 December 2016, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to HK$4,398,347,000 (2015: HK$2,776,612,000),
were utilised to the extent of HK$2,489,717,000 (2015:
HK$2,578,959,000). All of the non-current interest-bearing
borrowings are carried at amortised costs. None of the
non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be
settled within one year. Among the unsecured banking
facilities, HK$1,536,736,000 (2015: HK$478,420,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and such facilities of
HK$915,776,000 (2015: HK$478,420,000) were utilised at
31 December 2016.

Banking facilities of HK$3,237,392,000 (2015:
HK$1,540,248,000) are subject to the fulfiiment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios
as at 31 December 2016. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. At 31 December 2016, such facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$2,616,432,000 (2015:
HK$1,342,596,000). The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
29(d). As at 31 December 2016, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2015:
nil). Certain banking facilities also restrict some of the
Company’s subsidiaries from declaring or paying dividends
to shareholders without obtaining the banks prior written
approval or require the Group to process waste water
treatment operating fees via respective financial institutions.

Included in “Bank borrowings” are the following loans from a
related party bank:

16.

4S5 HRARMTE

£S5 (£8)

FE—ARE+A=+—H , LKA
RITIE9/#™4,398,347,0007T ( =&
—FR4F  #BM2,776,612,0007T ) , ek
EEhFE™M2,489,717,0007 ( —&—Hh
£ : #702,578,959,0005T ) . FAEIER
T ERFIRMEREAANK, FRIHER
tEERERST—FERBEE. LK
FRITIRES , H4#m1,536,736,000
7t ( ZF—HF : #m478,420,0007T )
HAATRMER, FTE—XRE+Z
B=+—H , LR EFEsASTEN
#mM915,776,0007T ( —_Z—HhAF : #Bm
478,420,0007T ) .

FE—ARE+ZA=+—H ., £FH
#3,237,392,0007 ( —F—hE : 8
M1,540,248,0007T ) HIRITIZIEATE
ETEXAERAM S RIH DR,

EXRERBERBXFIAER , NEIRE
B EHRNERER, TE—NE
+ZB=+—8 . K BXEECsABm
2,616,432,0005T ( —_F—HF : 8™
1,342,596,0007c ) . AEFASERGE
BXEARTHBEREBER. AEFASIER
NS — B THE29(d). F
“EARF+RA=1+—H  AERAHEL
EREXREIRENHARR (ZF—h
F: %) . ETRTEETRIEATE
T BABAMEERFKIRTEPEIUE
T, BAREERESZTRE  siEREAE
BT e SR IR S K R

=
=N

RITIABE T HEREKIRITIRMHEA

.
7N -

Group
AEEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—T—EF “E—hE
+=-B=1+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Loans from a related party bank FKERRITIR AR 32,499 57,769

The loans from a related party bank as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are unsecured, bear interest at rate
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by annual equal instalment until 2018.

E-REFERS

FT2—"FR—F-RhFt+t-RB=1—
B RERRITIRMEAI T TR EIX
BRHEARRTERNANERILR , ABE
FEOOHEE  BEEZFT—/\FALL,
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16.

17.

Borrowings (cont’d)
Company

The Company provided guarantees to banks to secure
banking facilities provided to certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries. These financial guarantee contracts are
accounted for as insurance contracts.

Intra-group financial guarantees comprise guarantees
granted by the Company to banks in respect of banking
facilities amounting to HK$2,059,398,000 (2015:
HK$1,513,000,000), which include HK$1,438,438,000
(2015: HK$1,513,000,000) drawn down as at 31 December
2016. The periods in which the financial guarantees expire
are as follows:

16.

fats (&8)
Fua

AREERTIREER | (FAETHRER
BEBRSIRITIREIER, EAUSERE
EIRRIEERIAIK.

SRR QA RNV SIEREEHELT
HMEesNEm2,059,398,0005T ( —F—
R : #1,513,000,0007T ) HOSRITIS
EmERITIRENIEREFEEEET
FE—AFt+B=1+—HERHWED
1,438,438,0005¢ ( —F—FHE : 8™
1,513,000,0005T ) . MSSHERAEHH
W :

Company
b /N
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

—B—RE “ZhF
+=RA=+—H +—RA=1t—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
BhFr BmhFT

- within 1 year - —HFLA
- after 1 year but within 5 years - —FELUSEERELR

Deferred tax liabilities

17.

490,275 488,193
948,163 1,024,807
1,438,438 1,513,000

BBIERIR A (R
Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

—8—xE C"T-EF
+=R=+-A +-BA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT  BHTR

A

Deferred tax liabilities RFERTIN S

146 China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS

1,051,692 1,055,223
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For the financial ded 31 December 2016 A2 N
R R WIS TRARMIIE

Deferred tax liabilities (cont’d) 17.  EBFEFRIRGR (££)
Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year FREIEfR I RN T
Service
concession L
arrangements Undlst.rlbuted
and intangible  Profits of
assets subsidiaries
Group Note [RSHFRZEIR MEBARF Others Total
AEEHE i HHERERE~ BiREF Hifth 28
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
EhTT EhTT E#hTrx EhTrw
At 1 January 2015 FTF—AF
—B—H 753,946 75,031 - 828,977
Exchange Lo
adjustments (35,455) (4,150) 269  (39,336)
Recognised in profit  FR&EHHEIA
or loss 24 52,522 18,352 - 70,874
Acquisition of K ap B AT
subsidiaries 31 185,105 24,131 (14,528) 194,708
At 31 December 2015 FEFE—HAF+T
and 1 January 2016 B=1+—HR—F
—NE—B—H 956,118 113,364 (14,259) 1,055,223
Exchange CeAEE
adjustments (66,053) (8,782) 1,275  (73,560)
Recognised in profit ~ FiRZEHHEIA
or loss 24 48,376 21,653 - 70,029
At 31 December FE—E
2016 +=—B=+—H 938,441 126,235 (12,984) 1,051,692
Unrecognised deferred tax assets R ARIERL ST

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the following items, because it is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can

use the benefits therefrom.

RERAFRH N7 B HHIABETR IR
7 RRATAREAKATBEBRIG NN R
I SEC e R e T

ﬁﬁ.o
Group
FEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

—E—RE —“E—hEF
+=A=+—H +—B=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$’'000

BT T Bh T

Tax losses expiring within 1 year S F—FREIEIFHRS SR
Tax losses expiring after 1 year T —FRERFERZEIN

but within 5 years B SR

13,396 7,686
52,149 47,164
65,545 54,850
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

18 Trade and other payables 18 RIS B ELfth Ri{FRIR
Group Company
&R ¥ /N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B—RE —F—htF —B—RE —EFE—hF
+=-B=+—H +=BA=+—H +=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EBhT T Bh T BT BhTiT
Non-current E| 737
Amounts due to NSRZRMEAE
fellow subsidiaries IR = 160,839 = -
Amounts due to NAFHIENEEE AN E]
intermediate holding XX
companies - 79,921 - -
- 240,760 - -
Current iwa
Trade payables NI{THRER 499,315 276,555 = -
Amounts due to NSRZRMEAE
fellow subsidiaries EI] 150,182 - = -
Amounts due to VAR EVANETENI
subsidiaries - - 345 16,967
Amounts due to N FIENERR A E]
intermediate holding X
companies 78,336 - - -
Amount due to an NAT—BEXENE]
associate EI] 1,555 - = -
Other creditors and EABRTFRITR
accrued expenses TRERF 207,850 198,875 20,310 8,483
937,238 475,430 20,655 25,450
937,238 716,190 20,655 25,450
As at 31 December 2016, other creditors include F_E—NEFE+-_BA=1+—8 , Efthrfs
a guarantee deposit of HK$14,249,000 (2015: HInEiERNE AT —B =2 Maia
HK$21,034,000) by a former director of a subsidiary. Rige#E™m 14,249,000t (ZF—HF :
#©mM21,034,0005% ) .
Trade payables totalling HK$411,797,000 (2015: TZE2E—ARFFZA=1T—H  HitB

M411,797,0005¢ ( —F—hF : Bm

148 China Everbright Water Limited

HK$240,110,000) represent construction payables for the
Group’s Build-Transfer, Build-Operate-Transfer and certain
Build-Own-Operate arrangements as at 31 December 2016.

Included in the amounts due to the intermediate
holding companies are balances of HK$56,000,000
(2015: HK$56,000,000) and HK$22,336,000 (2015:
HK$23,921,000) which are repayable by 2017 and bear
interest at HIBOR+2.5%, which is equivalent to 3.52%
(2015: 2.89%), and 93% of the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China, which is equivalent to 4.56%
(2015: 4.56%), respectively as at 31 December 2016.

FENKKSERAE

240,110,0007T ) FIR{TKER DA EEHzE
E-E. BE-mE-ERRETRIEH
BTN TR FIT,

FEFT+B=1+—H, Nfd4iE
BRI A BN EE £ /9/#E™m 56,000,000
7T ( —ZF—F4F : #56,000,000T ) &
#M22,336,0005c ( —F—HF : &M
23,921,0007T ) HURER , BRREMT_
T—EFRHER , FHBEZHIBORIN2.5%
(BP3.52% (—F—FHF : 2.89% ) )it
BRIRPEARRITEMA0FIZRAY93% (B
4.56% ( —FE—HRF : 456% ) itR.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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4S5 HRARMTE

Trade and other payables (cont’d) 18  RMfIMkshA ELfthRi{IFRIA ( £E)
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the FE2E—FRFt+_A=1+—HBAK"F—FH
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest FH"A=1+—H ., NMIRERMEATK
bearing at 100% of the rates announced by the People’s AT |, IRPEARRTAHIFZR
Bank of China which is equivalent to 4.90% (2015: 4.90%) f9100%(BP4.90% ( —=FE—HTF : 4.90%
and repayable by 2017. ) IR FRTF _E—tEFIER.
The amount due to an associate of the Group and RERBN{F—RFE AR A AT
the amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are MM B ATNEIR AL, B8, 3
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. THEEKPERHER,
Share-based payment arrangements 19  PABRIDAEMAIERZHE
Employee share option scheme RTHIRGTR
On 27 October 2011, the Company established an F_E2E—F+B"+tH , ATEZ
employee share option scheme (the “Scheme”) that entitles T—IRITEBGTRI( itk ) | #1%
key management personnel and controlling shareholders FTEEBARREREREREBATER
to purchase shares in the Company at an exercise price WEIRGHRIMRSIER S ( "HIRLTHRY
determined by the committee established to administer this RE" ) MEEMTENEIAATR
share option scheme (‘ESOS Committee”). .
No share options were granted or outstanding during the BE_ZE—REN_EFE—FRF+"_H=1+
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. —HULEFE , BLEHHERITEE
™,
Revenue 20  JaA
Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RE “F—ht
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFT BhFIT
Construction services from service  IRBEAFERENLHI
concession arrangement HEIRS 1,133,784 586,788
Finance income from service IRSBFEATEENTHRY
concession arrangement MASSWIN 538,775 467,895
Operation income from service RSB FATFEENLHRY
concession arrangement EEWAN 811,830 755,365
Construction contract revenue and ~ EESRENRIEA
technical services income RSN 9,648 5,102
2,494,037 1,815,150

E-REFERS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

Other income 21 EfthgA
Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—T—EF “E—hE
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BhF BmTFIT
Government grant* BURF#NE* 6,491 31,868
VAT refund E(EFUER 106,834 60,296
Gain on disposal of equity interest HE—EIEARRINGH
in a subsidiary (note 9) Wz (BHE 9) 402 -
Sundry income ZETIIN 13,939 11,487
127,666 103,651

* Government grant of HK$6,491

,000 (2015: HK$31,868,000)

was granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 to
subsidise certain water/waste water treatment plants of the

Group in the PRC. There were no

unfulfilled conditions and other

contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants. There is
no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grant

in the future.

* HE_E—AR"E+“HB=+—HL
FE , ANERAFERBFHNEIBT
6,491,000 ( —E—HA&E : B
31,868,0005T ) , LARMEAERATEFE
HIETK/EKIRT, A XIEIZ
SN Z RIA RS S B BE B B,
BRIABERIEASER T B S £33k
RIZEHN.

Net finance costs 22 WMSSERAFH
Group
A5HE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RfF “F—htF
+=-B=+—H +—BA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
i1l BhFIT
Finance income TSN
Interest income on bank WITEFAFIE
deposits W (7,631) (3,400)
Other interest income HfthF SN = (6,399)
(7,631) (9,799)
Finance costs 1532
Interest expense on: FEZH :
- bank borrowings - fRITEK 194,689 102,591
- notes payable - BT ESR - 12,299
- amounts due to intermediate - NI EER A e
holding company ES4Iil 2,977 3,836
- amounts due to fellow - RfYEZRMEAT
subsidiary FRIA 7,557 9,272
205,223 127,998
Net finance costs 455 %5 Pl 18 197,592 118,199
150 China Everbright Water Limited FEAKSERAT
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T—\F+A=+—HLNVEREE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS5 HRFRMSIE

Profit before tax 23 [RIREIER
Group
P 3-55
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
- A —FhEF
+=-B=1+—H +-A=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
E#hFr BhFIT
Included in cost of sales: TEABEEMA
- amortisation of intangible assets - TR 85,937 56,770
Included in administrative TTAITEER :
expenses:
- amortisation of intangible assets TR AT 353 1,231
- depreciation on property, plant -l TRERIES
and equipment iR 14,986 13,826
- loss on disposal of property, - AEYNL. TERIRE
plant and equipment 2SR 369 510
- operating lease charges: - FEHEESWH
minimum lease payments — hire E{RFREAIFR — R
of premises 8,340 2,746
Included in other operating ITAEMREZER
expenses:
- fair value loss on cross-currency - SR BRI AR
swap IREERES - 9,555
- foreign exchange loss/(gain), net - JC5aR5/ (&S ) 185 55,887 (340)
Staff costs: RTRA :
- wages and salaries - T&ENFE 175,807 161,027
- defined contribution plans - ERHFR R 46,219 34,741
- welfare and other benefits - R R E RIS 21,451 17,066
Fees paid to auditor of the BN ALTEHITHITEY
Company #%H
- audit fees - Bt EHA 696 822
- non-audit fees - JEEHIHERR - 339
Fees paid to other auditors EfTEAMRERIHTRYZEA
- audit fees - BHitEEH 2,763 2,628
- non-audit fees - IEERITERF = 220

CE-AEERE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A S5 HRARMTE

Tax expense 24 FRIEsZH
Group
AEEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—BF—RF —E—hEF
+=BA=+—H +-RA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BhFr BHTIT
Current tax expense: BOHBTRIRSZH :
Current year REE 96,212 99,095
(Over)/under-provision in prior  1IEFE (BEULS ) /
years REARRE (1,380) 2,493
94,832 101,588
Deferred tax expense: BEIERIRT
Movements in temporary B ERTE)
differences 61,304 70,874
Under-provision in prior years  iSFEEKRERE 8,725 -
Total tax expense FrIsz HH SR 164,861 172,462

The Group’s tax assessable profits were entirely derived
from the operations of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

No provision for Singapore and Hong Kong income tax
were made as the Group did not earn any income subject
to Singapore and Hong Kong income tax during 2016 and
2015.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory
rate of 25% of the assessable profits under taxation
ruling of the PRC. During 2016 and 2015, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard rates
or fully exempt from income tax under the relevant tax rules
and regulations.

FENKKSERAE

REFRN AR SR T ASERTE
MEARRILSS.

FTF—"ER—F—HhTF A BTFEL
F AR R IR ST N B
FUSHRIBIAN | B RTINS
BBFISHIELHILE.

RIEFERRSAE . PE SR
MRIEN AT B AR 25 %R EERRITE.
FTFE—"ER"F—HTF , REEXN
MBSMNEER , ETHEMBELTIRR
TRERERRI50%IHEIERTSH |, BlEREAREN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

4S5 HRARMTE

Tax expense (cont’d) 24 FRIESZH (£8)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate BHXHERET :
Group
AEEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—BF—RF —E—hEF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFr BhFIT
Profit before tax FRFEIZF 537,476 596,130
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25%  $%25% i+ ERIFIR
(2015: 25%) (ZF—FhRF:25%) 134,369 149,033
Effect of tax rates in foreign HMNE RN ER X ATRER
jurisdictions =] 5,466 13,877
Tax concession G ) (14,124) (7,108)
Non-taxable income E|IVERTTIVON (12,559) (8,540)
Non-deductible expenses AEHEOSZ 17,090 7,571
Current year losses for which no  HIHIARIER A AT
deferred tax is recognised SR 6,564 1,645
Utilisation of tax losses not IR ERFBIARIFLIT
recognised in prior years SR (943) (4,861)
Under-provision in prior years HEFERERE 7,345 2,493
Withholding tax on undistributed HEMEATRS BRI
profits of PRC subsidiaries FsOfR 21,653 18,352
164,861 172,462

E-REFERS
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HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

25 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

154 China Everbright Water Limited

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated on
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25

SRR

(a)

SIRESRER

BREABNEFERATRRN
AAERABRMRUMBEERER
ITEERAIIM AT A,

Group
AEEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
a3 “E—hF
+=RB=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$ 000
EhT T BhTT
Profit for the year attributable to ~ FEARNTIREM LT
shareholders of the Company 349,343 406,242
Weighted average number of FRABRITEERRAINNN
ordinary shares outstanding S (ERR)
during the year (million shares) 2,606 2,571
Basic earnings per share (HK$)  SREARA (BM) 0.134 0.158
(b) CRMEEERF

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is the
same as the basic earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary shares which were outstanding for both
financial years.

FENKKSERAE

#E—F—AEt-A=+—AR
—F-RE+-A=+—ALE
B, BT ARAHEERTAR
EREERIATSER | B AR
MY R SR RRI 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Related party transactions 26

During the financial year, other than those disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
significant transactions with related parties on terms agreed
between the parties as follows:

4S5 HRARMTE

ES R

TAMBEFE | BT AMSIREEMMEBD
FTiREERIRZ 251 |, ERE SRERTTIEN
T hERISFFREH T FIIEXRRES

Compensation of directors and key management BEERLEEETEASIRH
personnel
Group
FEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—BF—RF —E—hEF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFr BhFIT
Salaries, bonus and related benefits e, LARERETR 12,420 14,962
Directors’ fees EEES 1,071 1,143
Defined contribution plans TERUHERT R 175 187
13,666 16,292
Comprised amounts paid/payable to: SIES{I/MITTFHEHEE :
Directors of the Company ANBES 8,313 10,377
Other key management personnel HittFZEEAR 5,353 5,915
13,666 16,292

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

(@) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related party bank which is under
the common control of its ultimate controlling party:

PR T A SRR E AR AR EERISZ 2
REGh | AERNTI T THIERKETR

.

(a) FEASRAZEREERGEHX
BRERATHIT T THIXREXTT32 5

Interest expense

Group
AEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
ST —Z—hEF
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFT BhFIT
AR 2,362 3,984
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A S5 HRARMTE

26 Related party transactions (cont’d) 26

(b)

(d)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

The Group entered into the following related party (b)
transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group:

KEAHRS (£2)

RERASHIHERBRARRHT T T
KEKFR25

Group

FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RE _EF—hF
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BhHFr BmTFIT

Revenue from operation  I=EIREZUIN

services 47,668 70,271
Finance income AW 24,809 25,197
The Group entered into the following related party (c) AERSEXBATHTT TR

transactions with a related company of the Group:

BRARES

Group

&R
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RE —FhtF
+=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
{3 AT BhTIT

Revenue from operating  IZEIRSHA

services 39,773 52,400
Finance income IE=ON 47,157 50,687
The Group entered into the following related d) AERAS—ERRMEATIN—IE

party transactions with a fellow subsidiary and an
intermediate holding company:

FRIEER N BT T TIIRERT R

20 .

Group

AEEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B—RE —F—hE
+-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BhTrT BhTIT
Rental expenses AL 3,804 1,111
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

26 Related party transactions (cont’d)

(e)

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is a
PRC state-owned entity. The Group operates
in an economic regime currently dominated by
entities directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC
government through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliations and other organisations
(collectively “other government-related entities”).
The Group engages in a wide variety of transactions
with the other government-related entities including,
but not limited to the provision of water/waste water
treatment and construction services, bank deposits
and borrowings, and utilities consumptions. Such
transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business and having due regard to the
substance of the relationships, the directors are of
the opinion that there are no other material related
party transactions that require separate disclosure
other than the transactions and balances disclosed in
these financial statements.

27 Commitments

(@)

Capital commitments

The Group has the following commitments as at the
reporting date:

26

27

4S5 HRARMTE

KEXHRS (£2)

(e)

i |
(a)

FEFAREERGATEEE. &
EHBRE— MNABRBUTEHISE
REESHURIZFRRETEE
BXEZEHSL R ERAFET
ETBAIE, RN, FE
HEE I ERSIEEES (R
R EBAERSES ) . K%
F S BB R SEAR BT R 5!
ITiZR9% % BIE(EARRT)RM
IK/TEIKAE R IERSS . RITF
AN, ~ARBEWHEE, 12F32
ZRAREANE R SIRE i
17. ERDESAERASZFLN
WXERE  EFAN , BRTAYS
IREFTIKEAIRZ RAREG  FE
HAth R R BRIRIFRRIE A KENTT32

o

BEiE
TIREBH , FAEFARFRNT

Group
FEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—T—EF “E—hF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFr BhFIT
Capital expenditure on purchase wselk, TERIRESE
of property, plant and equipment B BRNEAFXT
and construction of plants:
- contracted but not provided for in - BITAEERAEMSRER
the financial statements Rk 857,124 202,987
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

27  Commitments (cont’d) 27 B (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) SEHEESKIE
At the reporting date, the Group had entered into FiREHE , AEFACHDANEY
several operating lease commitments for office VR R TESIT M EIRESFEER
premises and staff accommodation. These leases H, BXEEFESEEHIEEN ,
do not contain renewal options and there were TNEBETIT M B HEMmMIAE
no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering BEINEEFRE], FIRSEHE , 1R
into these leases. At the reporting date, the BRI RS EREER RN
future minimum lease payables under these non- KR ENTFIEENT -
cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Group
AEEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20165E128 2015512H
31H 31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTIT
Within 1 year —FELIA 6,807 3,688
After 1 year but within 5 years —FLSERELUR 5,239 1,984
After 5 years hFLUE 544 -
12,590 5,672
28  Segment information 28 HEMER

158 China Everbright Water Limited

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Board
of Directors for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
disclosed in note 3.18. Segment results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and
expense, interest-bearing borrowings and related expenses
and income and deferred taxes. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
operating segments.

Business segments

There is only one reportable segment as the Group’s
operations relate to water treatment business for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

° Waste water treatment — Design, engineering,
construction, operation and maintenance of local
government authorities’ water and waste water
treatment plants.

FENKKSERAE

ZREDEPRIRIEAERBNRERD IR
SHE. MTERENESSSTEHHET
ZERE | IMEDEEIFAITAERI.

MTREDEBAISTTBERETHTIES. 18,

PERER, B RAGREEERRETE
—DERRIIRE |, LAUNBESB A SIRENRL Fit
1THBECRIINE. ROEHNIEEERER
AP ERF R 2R, TR SR,

N RGBIERI, HEGH EAIEEDH
VIR PR TFIREZZEDER.

WEDE

BHE_TFR"TAFt+A=1
—BIEFE , AEFARWSES S RIKIIEFF
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Segment information (cont’d)
Geographical segments

All of the Group’s revenue are derived from the Group’s
operations in the PRC. All non-current assets are located in
the PRC.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
transactions with two local government authorities in the
PRC (2015: three) which individually exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue. The revenue from these customers
during the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to a
total of HK$966,103,000 (2015: HK$769,140,000).

The aggregated revenue from construction services,
finance income and operation income derived from
local government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$2,387,031,000 (2015: HK$1,731,260,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in note
29(c).

Financial management

The Group’s and the Company’s activities exposed to a
variety of financial risks such as market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s and the Company’s overall risk
management strategy, which remain unchanged from
prior year, seeks to minimise adverse effects from the
unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group and the Company continually
monitor the risk management process to ensure that an
appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s and Company’s activities.

The Board is responsible for setting the objectives and
underlying principles of financial risk management for the
Group and the Company. The Board will review and agree
on policies for managing each of these risks as summarised
below.

28

29

E-REFERS

4S5 HRARMTE

FEMER (£2)
WX 758

RERARFERNTIRE AR FE
5. FrBIERMEF T HERA.

FEEF

HE_F—F"Ft+"A=1t—HL=FE,
AEFAG SN (ZF—HF : =1)
FESBBETAHRTRS M5
BN G AEFAKAN10%
Uk, #E—F—FAF+-B=+—H
IEFE |, X8 EREPHKRNSE NG
M966,103,0007T ( —_F—HF : B
769,140,0005C ) »

BE_ZF—A"E+-B=+—HL=E
B, kEHELABEFIENEERS
KN, BSBBWAREZERNEITHBT
2,387,031,0005T ( —_E—HF : #&™
1,731,260,0005T ) . BXREFPHNEHESE
XS B TR E29(0).

M55 EE

REARFRATHWFZEREZIMMS X
fe  PlanmizNpe (BEFRRERED
M) . ERRERREINE. AERAR
RABREARGERRE TIEFEFF
TER  ASKRER SN
RS AL BRI AFIRNE, &
EARS NN EERER | LA
HRERTEXBG S i 2 RIESIE A 1.
REARA N EIERERNE ETRBER N
BR , LRI R AR R AR E]
AVSSHIZEH.

ERRRRNFEARARENREMFZ X
[EEBRNRESREN, EERHETR
INEISTUXBEEIRBER , MZFBERITR
.
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29
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HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

Financial management

(a)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

29 WSS (4R)

Interest rate risk (a) FU=RPE
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value FMEXEERIEEMTENARNE
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will BRI ERERTIAFZERTMm
fluctuate because of changes in market interest EEIIRIXEG ., AEERAATIRIR]
rates. The Group’s and the Company’s exposures X EBESAERAMNTERERKR
to interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s EEX, AERAFRRAN=ER
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The Group B SR ERRX .,
does not enter into interest rate swaps to manage its
interest rate risk.
The table below sets out the Group’s and Company’s TFREHINTAERARANTTIRS
exposure to interest rate risks at the reporting date. HERRESZRIRIZRXS,
The Group Company
FEH ¥ /NG
2016 2015 2016 2015
—T—RF “EF—hF —F—RF _F—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EhFr BhFIT EhFr BhFIT
Fixed rate EEFZEIH
instruments
Cash and cash mekis
equivalents EMH 543,340 480,440 = -
Borrowings e (498,920) (2,181,711) - -
44,420 (1,701,271) — —
Variable rate ZFHFETIR
instruments
Cash and cash nekise
equivalents EMY 1,359,401 1,288,550 30,716 7,248
Borrowings EYER (4,388,578)  (2,636,526)  (1,960,584)  (1,193,886)
Trade and other  RIfFUKFREfh
payables IVZNENNI (228,518) (240,760) - -
(3,257,695)  (1,588,736)  (1,929,868)  (1,186,638)
Sensitivity analysis BUFEIEDHT

A change of 100 basis points in interest rate for the
Group’s and the Company’s variable borrowings
rate would (decrease)/increase the Group’s and
the Company’s profit before tax by the amounts as
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular foreign currency and tax rates,
remain constant.

FENKKSERAE

ARERAR A AT FE FRATFIZR
HR—BTERNED , AEER
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

29 Financial management (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

4S5 HRARMTE

29 SEIE (4R)

Interest rate risk (cont’d) (@) FU=ERPE (£8)
Sensitivity analysis (cont'd) BOREIEDHT (42)
Group Company
AEH b /NG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B—RF “E—hF —S—EE —E—hF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H +=B=+—H +—B=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EhTT BhTIT EhT T BhHTIT
Floating rate FEIR:
instruments:
- 100 basis points - EF—E1
increase HN (32,578) (15,887) (19,299) (11,866)
- 100 basis points - FE—E1
decrease HN 32,578 15,887 19,299 11,866
Foreign currency risk (b) HPBRBE

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group and the Company is
exposed to foreign currency risk when transactions
such as expenses and borrowings are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Singapore dollar (“SGD”), Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”) and United States dollar (“USD”).

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables indicate the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the USD would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the USD against
other currencies. The impact of foreign exchange
rate fluctuations with respect to the assets and
liabilities denominated in USD is insignificant as HKD
is pegged to the USD.

CE-AEERE

SrENE RIS T RIRRNME
BRI E R E R RN
RIMBE., 5325 (MNZEARER)
VASERSLORRITIRE BT LA S
THIEY , REFARARENEEZ
SrRMEE. SEZKBEREXEET
FEHFIST. BHRET.

Vi =gyl

TRENMRIRTIREHARNAER
BEABZCRTIAHRE
# , MATEEAXE A E R KL%
FAE | BRI ASEE ZRIRIRT)
FIREF-AEZ RIRT 3R], LTS |
RERRIRETTREMEEHZHE
LRI HBITTSSTTZ ERYER
SRR EARE, #IASETIT
MZE=RAKRMS , BTETS
ETHER |, BUICRRSZmE
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AZ N For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
m\j 73 }E%Bﬁ'i HE—F\Ft+-B=1+—HINUBEE
29  Financial management (cont’d) 29 SEME (4£)
(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (b) SHhBREE (&)

Exposure to currency risk (cont’d)

TFREZLELHNE (42)

RMB SGD HK$ uUsD
Group XEH ARD Fhhnigrc Bm E 7
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EhFT BT BT E#hFT
31 December 2016 =ZB—F+=H8
=+—H
Financial assets RIS~
Cash and cash nNeknse
equivalents ZN 91,969 2,511 149 127,106
Amounts due from  RIKERANEIFRIN
group companies (%8 )
(net) 226,724 10,267 35,703 2,202,240
318,693 12,778 35,852 2,329,346
Financial liabilities ~ERIfAfR
Borrowings 5K - - - (1,960,584)
Trade and other NI HER R ELA
payables RIS ERIR (6,981) (1,675) (10,924) (7,710)
(6,981) (1,675) (10,924)  (1,968,294)
Net exposure XIS %5 311,712 11,103 24,928 361,052
31 December 2015 —Z—A&+-H
=+—H
Financial assets RIS
Cash and cash merkiie
equivalents ZEM 553,974 2,649 7,409 36,601
Amounts due from R EE A RIS
group companies (&Em)
(net) (147,883) (52) (15,544) 1,508,442
406,091 2,597 (8,135) 1,545,043
Financial liabilities &R
Borrowings B - - (379,873) (814,013)
Trade and other RN EAth
payables IVANEAND (23,921) - = -
(23,921) _  (379,873)  (814,013)
Net exposure XS8R 382,170 2,597 (388,008) 731,030
FEYERKEZERAE
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For the financial ded 31 December 2016 A2 N
R R WIS TRARMIIE

29  Financial management (cont’d) 29 SSEIE (4£)
(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (b) SHPBRBE (&)
Exposure to currency risk (cont’d) HFAHEZ LM (4E)
RMB SGD HK$ uUsD
Company b /NG| ARM Fhnigc &h E

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i i e i 2 e i 2 e i1 e e

—s—%+=RH
31 December 2016 =+—H
Financial assets RIS
Cash and cash mekis
equivalents ZN - 1,299 149 23,038
Amounts due from N EER A EIFRIN
group companies (15E0)
(net) — 32,692 185,350 2,202,240
- 33,991 185,499 2,225,278
Financial liabilities £RIfAfE
Borrowings IR - - - (1,960,584)
Trade and other ST RREOR Efth
payables RI{SERIR - (1,675) (10,924) (7,710)
- (1,675) (10,924)  (1,968,294)
Net exposure XS &R - 32,316 174,575 256,984
—“E-h%+—"R
31 December 2015 =+—H
Financial assets ERbEF
Cash and cash merkilse
equivalents EMe - 992 1,074 5,182
Amounts due from N EER A EIFRIA
group companies (E)
(net) - 38,438 138,756 1,422,614
— 39,430 139,830 1,427,796
Financial liabilities ~£RifafE
Borrowings RN - - (379,873) (814,013)
- _ (379,873)  (814,013)
Net exposure XUFGIEER - 39,430 (240,043) 613,783
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BECS—\FTA=1+—HLHNUBFEE
29  Financial management (cont’d) 29 SEME (4£)
(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (b) SMBRRE (£2)
Sensitivity analysis BRI HT
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of F+—B=+—8 . AE®.
RMB, SGD, HK$ and USD against the respective T, BhNEETERLATINAE
entity’s functional currency at 31 December EMARERERE (RE) B
would have affected the measurement of financial E?[l[‘]L)\’;“'hFﬁrI-{uE’J@wﬂIEE’Jﬁ-
instruments denominated in a foreign currency and , FEEND/ (RY) BRTRBIRFIAY
increased/(decreased) profit before taxation by the @%JJIEI'F, IHERBED T RIZFE
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that HihZr s (S5RIERRNHR ) R
all other variables, in particular interest and tax rates, BAT
remain constant.
Group Company
AEEH ¥ /NG
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—REF “F—ht —B—F TR
+=-B=+—H8 +—A=+—H +=BA=1+—H +—BA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EmhFr BhFIT EhFr BhFIT
RMB against HK$ ~ ARM#EM
- strengthened 10% - FHE10% 31,171 38,217 - -
- weakened 10% - Ie{E10% (31,171) (38,217) - -
SGD against HK$  FTlIcreE™
- strengthened 10% - FHE10% 1,110 260 3,232 3,943
- weakened 10% - I5{&10% (1,110) (260) (3,232) (3,943)
HK$ against RMB  #BHRARD
- strengthened 10% - FHEI10% 2,493 (38,801) 17,458 (24,004)
- weakened 10% - IZ{E10% (2,493) 38,801 (17,458) 24,004
USD against RMB =TT ARM
- strengthened 10% - FHE10% 36,105 73,103 25,698 61,378
- weakened 10% - B{&10% (36,105) (73,103) (25,698) (61,378)
(c) Credit risk (o) (SHERE
Credit risk refers to the risk that the customer or SRHNBGRIEE FEF S AREE
counterparty failed to discharge an obligation and ﬁAE#X]‘ZK’EI&ZK’\TLESZM
resulted in a financial loss to the Group and the SRKBIKE,
Company.
As the Group does not hold any collateral, the BT AEFAH BT EHRRE |
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying AERH G RSERXE AT

amounts of the related financial assets presented on
the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

29 Financial management (cont’d)

(c)

Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
service concession financial receivables and trade
and other receivables. The Group establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of service concession
financial receivables and trade and other receivables.
This allowance account in respect of service
concession financial receivables and trade and other
receivables is used to record impairment losses
unless the Group are satisfied that no recovery of the
amount owing is possible. At that point, the financial
asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount
charged to the allowance account is written off
against the carrying amount of the impaired financial
asset.

For service concession financial receivables, the
counterparties are local government authorities
in different provinces in the PRC. The service
concession financial receivables are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade and other receivables balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and whether the trade and other
receivables are recoverable are estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and
the current economic environment.

Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions which are regulated. For
other financial assets, the Group minimise credit
risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

Significant concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exist when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate
credit exposure is significant in relation to the
Group’s total credit exposure. The Group’s credit
exposure is concentrated mainly in the PRC, where
its operations are based.

4S5 HRARMTE

29 SEIE (4R)

(c)

CE-AEERE

(SRR (48)

REFAR SRR EERB SRS
R ERRXAY SRR KGRI
YRR B R IKGRIR, A5
R TIR{ERE , HASRSRHT
ZERBRAY RN RIS S
KRR LAt R W TR T = AE RIHREE T
. SRSHTFEENEXNE
EAVEVENTISIVES G SIS ES LI
SUMER AR E P RLACRRE
K | (BRI AR KATRE
EEX SRS, LRI
ERETSBIARAEE |, it
NEEWFPRSIISITKEERES
BB RORKTE /M.

MERSBFEAFEENIERAIERINT
KIS | MFAATEREE
IPRSHBUTHG, REEREE
= SIRSBETEERERAESRIN
KGRI,

FEFNERRSFHRIR RN TK
SR E AN WERTIRIARER , LAKAR
BRI R SRR R
YRR Bt M KR IR A =T LA
LETR

e R ERER IR TZmEN
RITRERTE, MEMSEE
s | AEFARSHERPRERY
Fralr, BLBERRIEHER
EE.

EXEHEEFNL

ez, AT ERHIR R ALY
RRRBINRZ IS F T F LRI
i, MESRSERBXYFHRIER
RS AR RRIETS
BEXH , EHHRERANKE
. AEFARNERXRESET
, BIEEEA.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v N For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
Jn\j 73 }E%Bﬁ/f BEF—F+-B=1—HLIHNBFE
29 Financial management (cont’d) 29

(c)

Credit risk (cont’d)
Significant concentration of credit risk (cont’d)

The ageing of trade receivables that were past due
at the reporting date is as follows:

TSSERE (£2)
() (SHME ()
BAISHEEFN (££)

FRE HHAC B HAR R KPR AT
BT

Group
AEEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
a3 “E—hF
+=-B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Not past due S 183,956 212,845
Past due: SEHA :
- 1 to 30 days -—Z=++H 54,864 36,099
- 31 to 90 days - =+—ZN+H 35,520 45,895
- 91 days to 180 days - t+—=—8/\+H 43,749 43,807
- 181 days to 365 days -—B/\+—Z=//x1thH 54,314 76,598
- more than 1 year but within - —FLA HEBEZFLUR
2 years 48,800 49,196
- over 2 years - “HFLE 8,392 -
429,595 464,440

As disclosed in note 12, the Group has a
consideration receivable of HK$29,790,000 (2015:
HK$33,609,000) due from third parties arising from
disposal of service concession rights, the ageing of
which is as follows:

IRANMHE1 2FFIRE | AEHFA

BE=ZFERAEERSE
FRENMIE RN KRS B
29,790,00050 ( —F—HF : &
M33,609,00055 ) , kot
W

Group
AEEHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—T—EF “FhF
+=B=1+—H +=B=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
EmhF BhFIT
Current Bip] 21,637 20,333
Past due: EiEHs :
- within 1 year - —FLIA 2,010 6,219
- more than 1 year but within - —FLI HBZFLR
2 years 2,010 5,143
- over 2 years - ZHELE 4,133 1,914
29,790 33,609
166 China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

29 Financial management (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

4S5 HRARMTE

29 SEIE (4R)

Credit risk (cont’d) (o) (SHRE (48)
Significant concentration of credit risk (cont’d) EXAEHEFNEG (£E)
Based on historical default rates and customers’ RBIESARREZEFPHEAR
credit quality, the Group believes that no impairment B, NEFAN TR (
allowance is necessary in respect of trade BIE BRI R KR) TR IRE
receivables, including those which are past due, as RE  FREANFESAEEXEFE
the counterparties are local government authorities AREXPSBFFK.
with insignificant credit risk.
Liquidity risk (d) FEzhRpE
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group and RENIX G EIE A ER N AN TREE
the Company will not be able to meet its financial BITEZIHMSE N ESHXE, A&
obligations as they fall due. The Group monitors its BSEASRIRMKG , FAERFE
liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash BEIAAEBHIERINEENY
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by RIEEEE , LMEARER TSR
management to finance the Group’s operations and HEE NS REREIEmN,
to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
TREGULITLORIFTNAERED
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the WAERRAATRISRIGRRIER
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities based 1B,
on contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Cash flows
MERE
Contractual
Carrying cash flows Within Between 2 After
amount TEmME 1 year to5years 5 years
MKEEE e —FELIR —Ehf AFLAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
b e e EhTr EhTr EhTr il e
Group AEE
31 December Z—ZT—F+=H
2016 =+—A
Borrowings RGN 4,887,498 5,527,833 1,722,863 3,102,516 702,454
Trade and other  RI{FKER Efth
payables VAN 937,238 947,468 947,468 - -
5,824,736 6,475,301 2,670,331 3,102,516 702,454
31 December —ZF—HF+"H
2015 =+—A
Borrowings eI 4,818,237 5,248,456 2,595,316 2,488,068 165,072
Trade and other  RIFMKER Efth
payables IVZRENT 716,190 742,999 488,028 254,971 -
5,634,427 5,991,455 3,083,344 2,743,039 165,072

CE-AEERE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

29  Financial management (cont’d) 29 SEME (4£)
(d)  Liquidity risk (cont’d) (d) RzhRpE (£8)
Cash flows
mMERE
Contractual
Carrying cash flows Within Between 2 After
amount TEamME 1 year to 5years 5 years
MKEE & =1 —ELAN “ERF AELLLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
E#mhFr EmhFr E#mhFr E#hFr #hFT
Company F: /NG
31 December Z=F—"&+=H
2016 =+—H
Borrowings e 1,960,584 2,232,417 824,031 817,906 590,480
Trade and other  R{FFUR Efh
payables RATFRIA 20,655 20,655 20,655 - -
1,981,239 2,253,072 844,686 817,906 590,480
31 December —S—-hF+"H
2015 =+—H
Borrowings e 1,193,886 1,235,915 1,029,001 206,914 -
Trade and other R{FFEUR Efth
payables RATFRIA 25,450 25,450 25,450 - -
1,219,336 1,261,365 1,054,451 206,914 -
(e) Capital management (e) HAREHE

168 China Everbright Water Limited

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to maximise shareholders’ value. In order to
maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment,
issue new shares or obtain new borrowings. There is
no change in capital management policies during the
year.

The Group’s and Company’s strategies are to
maintain a prudent balance between the advantage
and flexibility afforded by a sound capital position
and the higher return on equity that are possible with
greater leverage.

FENKKSERAE

AEREERFNEEBRIRRE
RER AR ERIRE I R 4R
BRGNS | DRARREIER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

29 Financial management (cont’d)

(e)

Capital management (cont’d)

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a
net debt against equity ratio. The net debt against
equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities
(as shown in the statement of financial position,
excluding current tax liabilities and deferred tax
liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprises share capital, reserves and non-
controlling interests.

4S5 HRARMTE

29 SEIE (4R)

(e)

BAEE (&)

Bt | AERFI SRS NG
RINIEEA, #EREINGLRZ
RS IRLASNEITE., 1HMRS
BRGR AIMSIKRERR ,
15 BPRARE I £ 3R B IS AE R T R
%) BRERAEFMIHE. 2
N BIERE. HEERIFERN

=<
Imo

Group
AEEH
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
i
+=B=+-B +=B=t+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Net debt #RS 3,921,995 3,765,437
Total equity RS ER 7,191,702 7,297,020
Net debt against equity ratio RS IINESLLR 0.55 0.52

The Group is in compliance with all externally
imposed capital requirements for the financial years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to contribute to and maintain a non-distributable
statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is subject to
approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This has
been complied with by the relevant subsidiaries for
the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

CE-AEERE

BE—F—\F+RA=1t—H~K
RS+ R=1T—HIMK
FE , FERAFSHEINEINR

FERATHERMEATINER R
BRI DIRRGEEMER. 1%
IEEMEERERIGATFEEXER
AU, BE—FT—NFt+"RB=
+—HR=_F—AF+-RA=1—
AIEMEEE , SEXMELTHY
BT T ZIE.
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170 China Everbright Water Limited

HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

Fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair
values have been determined for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes based on the following method. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability.

Determination of fair values
(a)  Non-current borrowings

Fair value is calculated based on discounted
expected future principal and interest cash flows.
The discount rates used are based on market rates
for similar instruments at the reporting date.

(b) Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
(including trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
the short period to maturity. All other financial assets
and liabilities are discounted at the market rate to
determine their fair values.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount rate
is a market-related rate for a similar instrument at the
reporting date.

Accounting classifications and fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The carrying amount of the non-current portion of loans
and receivables, interest-bearing borrowings and other
payables approximate their fair values as the interest rates

approximate the market rate of interest at the reporting
date.

FENKKSERAE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

4S5 HRARMTE

Fair values (cont’d) 30 QARME (L)
Accounting classifications and fair values (cont’d) RITDERIANME (£ )
Fair values versus carrying amounts (cont’d) ZNTOMEXTIKETIME (%)
Other
financial
liabilities
within the
scope of
IAS 39
EERFSIT
Loans and #5395 Carrying
Note receivables BEINAIEL amount  Fair value
it SRR iRt KENE - ARME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it it #hFrx  EhTw
Group FEE
31 December 2016 - S ) = |
=+—8
Assets T
Service concession 5iRSHFEERE
financial receivables KEERARIUFRIR 10 8,971,341 - 8,971,341 8,971,341
Trade and other R R ELA
receivables* ZWERT 12 523,759 - 523,759 523,759
Cash and cash equivalents ERIMESE N 13 1,902,741 — 1,902,741 1,902,741
11,397,841 — 11,397,841 11,397,841
Liabilities R
Borrowings BREN 16 — 4,887,498 4,887,498 4,887,498
Trade and other BT IRFR Efh
payables IVARENDT 18 - 937,238 937,238 937,238
— 5,824,736 5,824,736 5,824,736
31 December 2015 “E-h&1+"R
=+—8
Assets M
Service concession S5RSERFEENE
financial receivables KAVE RN 10 8,606,632 - 8,606,632 8,606,632
Trade and other R R ELAt
receivables* JVE SN 12 605,397 - 605,397 605,397
Cash and cash equivalents IERIMEE N 13 1,768,990 — 1,768,990 1,768,990
10,981,019 - 10,981,019 10,981,019
Liabilities fafR
Borrowings B 16 - 4,818,237 4,818,237 4,818,237
Trade and other payables  Rrf3MERREAt
RATFRIR 18 - 716,190 716,190 716,190
- 5,634,427 5,534,427 5,534,427

* Excludes prepayments A~EFETRTFIR

Annual Report 2016

171



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A S5 HRARMTE

30

Fair values (cont’d)

Accounting classifications and fair values (cont’d)

Fair values versus carrying amounts (cont’d)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
BETE—\FT+-A=1T—HLIHNUBFE

30

K7HE (£2)
RIIDERLIANME (£)
LIOTEXTIRREIME (4E)

Other
financial
liabilities
within the
scope of
IAS 39
EBEFE&T
Loans and #5395 Carrying
Note receivables SEERAIE amount Fair value
i SREEEFER SRR KEaME - I/nE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT #hFfr EhTrx
Company ¥ /N
31 December 2016 —E-R"F+=-H
=+—H
Assets &
Trade and other NISURERR ELAh
receivables* MR 12 2,096,933 - 2,096,933 2,096,933
Cash and cash equivalents WERIMESZHNY) 13 30,716 - 30,716 30,716
2,127,649 - 2,127,649 2,127,649
Liabilities fafs
Borrowings BREIN 16 - 1,960,584 1,960,584 1,960,584
Trade and other payables — RI{JHGERUREfb
JVEREINN 18 - 20,655 20,655 20,655
- 1,981,239 1,981,239 1,981,239
31 December 2015 “E-hR&1"RH
=+—H
Assets &~
Trade and other MR A Efit
receivables* NHTERIT 12 1,672,655 - 1,672,655 1,672,655
Cash and cash equivalents WERMESZHNY 13 7,248 - 7,248 7,248
1,679,903 - 1,679,903 1,679,903
Liabilities il
Borrowings e 16 - 1,193,886 1,193,886 1,193,886
Trade and other payables — R{JIKFURED
RIFRIT 18 - 25,450 25,450 25,450
- 1,219,336 1,219,336 1,219,336

* Excludes prepayments AEIEFR{TERTR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T T\ F+A=t+—HLIRNVEFE

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of Dalian Donga Water Co., Ltd (“Dalian
Dongda”)

On 28 August 2015, the Company and Beijing Everbright
Water Investment Management Co., Ltd (‘BEWTI”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement (“the Agreement”) with Dongda Group
Co., Ltd (“Dongda Group”) and Mr. Liu Yubao (together
“the Sellers”), pursuant to which BEWI agreed to acquire
the entire equity interest in Dalian Dongda and provide
new shareholder’s loan to Dalian Dongda as it retires all
outstanding debts due by the Dalian Dongda Group to
one of the Sellers, Dongda Group, at a total consideration
of RMB1,843,978,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$2,238,866,000).

At the date of acquisition, the Dalian Dongda Group and
certain of its subsidiaries had claims against relevant PRC
government authorities for RMB203 million (HK$246 million
or SGD45 million) under certain SCAs. Any claim amounts
recovered from the relevant PRC government authorities
within three years from completion of acquisition of 90%
equity interest in Dalian Dongda Group by BEWI on 4
November 2015 will be payable to Dongda Group. Dalian
Dongda Group will also bear taxes, if any, arising from
the actual receipt of these claims. Having considered all
currently available information, the directors are of the view
that the recovery of the claims is not probable and that
any tax liability in relation to the receipt of these claims is
remote.

The remaining 10% equity interest (‘Remaining Interest”)
will be transferred to BEWI over a three-year period based
on the proportion of the claims recovered. All of the
Remaining Interest will be transferred to BEWI regardless
of how much these claims are recovered at the end of the
three-year period.

Pursuant to the Agreement, upon the completion of
acquisition of the 90% equity interest in Dalian Dongda,
BEWI is entitled to the share of profits or loss, assets and
liabilities of Dalian Dongda in respect of the Remaining
Interest, even though the Remaining Interest will be
transferred to BEWI over the three-year period.

31
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4S5 HRARMTE
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HE_F\F+-A=1T—HINVBFE

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)

Acquisition of Dalian Donga Water Co., Ltd (“Dalian
Dongda”) (cont’d)

The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising from the
acquisition are as follows:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

aEAR (48)

WBRXEFREKSBRAE ( "KEFR
&) (8)

K FES Y S A = RIKW R S =80
ET

Fair value
on date of
acquisition
FUEBakY
KfNE
HK$°000
E#hFr
Property, plant and equipment  #ll. TERIRS 380
Intangible assets Toh& = 574,252
Service concession financial SiRS4FHFELEEFR
receivables ERURIUGRIT 1,558,620
Trade and other receivables ISR % Lt ST WK I 216,318
Cash and cash equivalents MERMESENT 75,529
Borrowings e (161,282)
Deferred tax liabilities EBFER IR A R (194,708)
Trade and other payables A SRR =LAt Sz SR I (75,182)
Current tax liabilities BPHARC IR fR (26,883)
Net assets acquired WA SRS R 1,967,044
Goodwill on consolidation EBHFENRE 271,822
Purchase consideration W REH 7 2,238,866
Cash consideration MEIIHN 2,238,866
Cash acquired WAl E (75,529)
Net cash outflow ME R IFER 2,163,337

174  China Everbright Water Limited

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2015, Dalian
Dongda contributed revenue of HK$34,264,000 and profit of
HK$7,534,000 to the Group’s net profit for the year ended
31 December 2015. Had the acquisition taken place on 1
January 2015, the consolidated revenue and profit for the
year of the Group would have been HK$2,055,125,000
and HK$462,014,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that arose
on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2015.

FENKKSERAE
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B KEFREAFERHE—FT—RHF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
HETS—\Ft+-A=1T—HINUWRFE

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)

Acquisition of Dalian Donga Water Co., Ltd (“Dalian
Dongda”) (cont’d)

Measurement of fair values

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value
of material assets and liabilities acquired are as follows:

Assets required

e T H(ERAR

31

4S5 HRARMTE

WEMEAR (4)

WUKXEFRXKSBRAE ( "KE&EF
&) (8)

LRAHHERTITE

T EBWWFTSEARR R AR RIS
ERANT

Valuation technique

Property, plant and equipment

b, TERIESE analysis

Fair value less cost of disposal using discount cash flow

BRSMERHERE , FHERRSREITNOHT

Intangible assets

TR = analysis

Fair value less cost of disposal using discount cash flow

BASMERLERS , FHERRSRETNIHT

Service concession financial receivables

SIRBHFBRA RN IERTR

analysis

Fair value less cost of disposal using discount cash flow

BRARMEREERS , FERNESRETMOHT

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be China Everbright Water
Holdings Limited and China Investment Corporation, which
are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the PRC
respectively. China Everbright International Limited, the
intermediate holding company, produces consolidated
financial statements available for public use.

Subsequent events

Dividends

After the reporting date, the following exempt (one-tier)
dividends were proposed by the directors. These exempt

(one-tier) dividends have not been provided for.

For the year ended 31 December

32

33

EiERREERS

EENNFEANEREATIRREER
VakakslpoLas Yt AN e g AvA Sl
EEAKSERBRATRETE MK
MHFERERREEAE. EEERR
BFEYKERERA w7 A AR

BRGEWSRE.
HARRERIR
iz=

TiIREAHE  EFEWNRKTIERR
—%) RE. ZFHR (—FR) REHEKR
k&,

#E=E+"HA=1t—HLFE

Group and Company

SGDO0.0037 (2015: SGD0.0035)  EAEEAZ0.003 75 INMETT
per ordinary share

(ZZF—H5F : 0.003550ETT)

E-REFERS

FEREARFAH
2016 2015
R _ThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
i1 wa BhHFT
52,344 52,304

Annual Report 2016 175



STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Y5 g SRR A

Authorised share capital : HKD 10,000,000,000

EERRA 7™ 10,000,000,0007%

Issued and fully paid-up capital : HKD 2,609,908,001
BERITHESIEENRAE #m™2,609,908,0015g

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of HKD 1.00 each
BRERFE ZER  BREEMNEST1.00 5T
Number of shares : 2,609,908,001

RinEE

Voting rights : One vote per ordinary share
REN R

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

RN S e
NO. OF NO. OF

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
BREHUR BRFHE B3t BRnEE Bt
1~99 415 7.19 10,590 0.00
100 ~ 1,000 1,257 21.77 644,488 0.03
1,001 ~ 10,000 2,427 42.04 11,804,151 0.45
10,001 ~ 1,000,000 1,649 28.57 102,266,750 3.92
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 25 0.43 2,495,182,022 95.60
TOTAL 5,773 100.00 2,609,908,001 100.00

As at 21 March 2017, no shares issued in the share capital of the Company (“Shares“) were held as treasury
shares or by any of the Company’s subsidiary.

HET—tEF=B"+—H A BARERAPRITHRG (| "FRERA" ) RUFAEFRESE | BREA2THET
MEABRFE.

Based on the information available to the Company, approximately 25.19% of the equity securities of the Company
are held in the hands of the public. This is in compliance with Rule 723 of the Listing Rules of the SGX-ST, which
requires at least 10% of a listed issuer’s equity securities to be held by the public.

EFARNTMERENENE | ART£925.19%IRD ARG, ZEIBRAFEM EHMNET7235%0EK , BIAREDMR
e LA e E eSS A9 10%LA L.,
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

me—t iamaon  BRARGET AR

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

BI=+XBRER
NAME NO. OF SHARES %
2 HiRyE Bastt
1. CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED 1,950,154,229 74.72
REERIKSFIERBIRAT
2 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 197,473,579 7.57
3 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE) LIMITED 127,406,485 4.88
4 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 108,334,887 4.15
5. PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 21,604,061 0.83
6 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 20,469,443 0.78
7 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 16,577,036 0.64
8 MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 9,286,008 0.36
9. UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 5,511,286 0.21
10. DB NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 5,459,810 0.21
11. CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 4,559,414 0.17
12. ABN AMRO CLEARING BANK N.V. 4,454,945 0.17
13. DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 3,600,605 0.14
14. DBSN SERVICES PTE. LTD. 3,263,226 0.13
15. CHIEW CARLTON 2,800,000 0.11
16. PU WEIDONG 2,751,500 0.11
17. UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 1,675,922 0.06
18. CITIBANK CONSUMER NOMINEES PTE LTD 1,548,000 0.06
19. CHEONG SAE PENG 1,500,000 0.06
20. LIN CHING-FENG 1,210,700 0.05
TOTAL &1t 2,489,641,136 95.41
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AR Gt

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

EERHR
DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST
BEiEflE (B
NO. OF NO. OF
NAME OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER SHARES HELD % SHARES HELD %
EERFEMR ISIRME Bt ISiRME Bt
China Everbright Water Holdings Limited 1,950,154,229 74.72 - -
FENERKSIEIRERAT
China Everbright Environmental Protection - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
Holdings Limited®
FREYEAIMAEIREIRAE
China Everbright International Limited® - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
FENKERERAE
Guildford Limited® - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
Datten Investments Limited® - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited® - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
FENCKEAGRAE
China Everbright Group Ltd.® - - 1,950,154,229 74.72
FENCKRERARD AT
Central Huijin Investment Ltd." - - 1,950,154,229 74.72

PRCERBBREIAT

Notes:

iR

(1)  China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited, which is the holding company of China Everbright Water Holdings
Limited, is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by China Everbright Water Holdings Limited. o
PENAMRERERABATEN KB ZERERATZERAT | FHENAKSZERERATHENAL RN ZHIEEN

=5
Imo

(2)  China Everbright International Limited is the holding company of China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited and is
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited has an interest.

FENAERBRADATENAMMZRERATDIHERAT | ANPENAMRERERATFENAATRN =6 EENE.

(3) Guildford Limited holds more than 20 per cent. but not more than 50 per cent. of the total issued shares of China Everbright
International Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright International Limited has an
interest.

Guildford Limited FEHENCAEIRERABSIRDEAEI20%LAE (EREZ50% ) BIRRE , FAXNFENAERERABEFENA
AERIDZEEENE.

(4) Datten Investments Limited is the holding company of Guildford Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Guildford Limited has an interest.
Datten Investments Limited JGuildford Limitedf93=AE A E] , FXFGuildford LimitediFEHIA N TN =B EHENE.

(5) China Everbright Holdings Company Limited is the holding company of Datten Investments Limited and is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Datten Investments Limited has an interest.
FENAERBR AT ADatten Investments Limited AJEEEAE] , FXIDatten Investments LimitediFE AN BN Z B B,

(6) China Everbright Group Ltd. is the holding company of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Holdings Company Limited has an interest.

FESERERRO N B AFENRERGRASAHER AT, FPENAERAEGRASFENALNBRO =R N,
(7)  Central Huijin Investment Ltd. holds 55.67 per cent. of the shares in China Everbright Group Ltd. and is deemed to have an interest

in the Shares in which China Everbright Group Ltd. has an interest.
PRICERFBRFEATNFEFENCAERARND AN EAI55.67% , FIPENAEFARMD N EIFENALNTRMOZHIFZN
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 21 March 2017 HQ*R@E-L—I—%*SI_

BE_E—tHF=R"1+—H

(i) Relationship between the Company and each of China
Investment Corporation and Central Huijin Investment
Limited

Each of China Investment Corporation (“CIC”) and Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”), which are each ultimately owned
by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (“State
Council”), is deemed to have a controlling interest (via Everbright
International) in the issued share capital of the Company.

State Council

() FRESHEREEREELRMRRIC

SIRERRFELTXER

PEREBREELE (LITER "R ) #
PRICERJBREAENTE (LAITEHR CE"
) WRAZYHRBPEARLNERS (LATE
wESR ) 58, PRIMCEETCAER

MARBNERITREEBERERN R,

ESiR
[ 100%
China Investment Corporation
HEHRSERSEAT
|1m%
Ministry of Finance Central Huijin Investment Limited
TAEER hRCE£IGERRRELT
44.33% 55.67%
China Everbright Group Ltd.
HEY K EEEIRRIB A F)
100%
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
PEXRKEBRRAE
100%
Datten Investments Limited 45% 100%
55%

Guildford Limited

Everbright Investment & Management Limited

RRIREEEGRAT

39.22%

2.18%

China Everbright International Limited

PENKERFERAE

100%

China Everbright Environmental Protection
Holdings Limited

PEXARMFEREIRAE

100%

China Everbright Water Holdings Limited
HhES KK SBIZIRBR A

74.72%

China Everbright Water Limited
HENKKSHERAE
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
NG SR

As at 21 March 2017
BETEF—tF=A"1+—H

Management Philosophy of Huijin and CIC

Article 11 of the Law on State-Owned Assets provides that
the State Council and the local people’s governments may, if
necessary, authorise other departments or bodies (“Authorised
Bodies”) to perform the function of an investor in respect of
state-owned enterprises on behalf of such government. Article
14 of the Law on State-Owned Assets further provides that such
authorised bodies shall not intervene in the business activities of
the enterprises in which it invests except to legally perform the
function of an investor.

Huijin

Huijin was established in December 2003. The members of
Huijin’s Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors are appointed
by and are accountable to the State Council. Huijin, in accordance
with authorisation by the State Council, makes equity investments
in major state-owned financial enterprises and shall, to the extent
of its capital contribution, exercise the rights and perform the
obligations as an investor on behalf of the State in accordance
with applicable laws, to achieve the goal of preserving and
enhancing the value of state-owned financial assets. It does not
conduct any other business or commercial activity, except for its
equity investments in the state-owned enterprises, and does not
intervene in the day-to-day business operations of the firms in
which it invests.

ciCc

CIC holds the shares of Huijin in accordance with a directive
issued by the State Council. However, the investment business
of CIC and the share management function conducted on behalf
of the State Council by Huijin are completely separated. CIC is a
financial investor and does not seek control of the companies in its
portfolio.

Laws setting out the duties of Huijin and CIC in relation to their
portfolio companies

The articles of association of each of Huijin and CIC provide
that each of Huijin and CIC “shall not interfere in the day-to-day
business operations of the state-owned major financial enterprises
it controls”. The articles of association of CIC further provide that
“as a matter of principle, CIC shall not actively seek investment in
domestic non-financial enterprises, except for purchasing overseas
listed stocks, passive shareholdings and other circumstances as
approved by the relevant governmental authorities”.

Under Article 11 of the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the articles of association of a company are binding
on the company and its shareholders, directors, supervisors and
senior management. Accordingly, the provisions of the articles of
association of each of Huijin and CIC as set out above are binding
on each of Huijin and CIC and their respective shareholders,
directors, supervisors and senior management.

180 China Everbright Water Limited FENAKSERAS
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

BE_E—tHF=R"1+—H

Board of Directors of Everbright International and the Company

In addition, neither CIC nor Huijin has any nominees sitting on the
board of Everbright International. Similarly, neither CIC nor Huijin
has any nominees sitting on the board of the Company.

(ii) Not regarded as “controlling shareholders”

On the basis that each of Huijin and CIC does not in fact, and
is unable, under the laws of PRC, to, exercise control over the
Company, the SGX-ST has confirmed that each of Huijin and CIC
will not be regarded as “controlling shareholders” of the Company
for the purposes of the Listing Rules of the SGX-ST (the “Listing
Rules”).

Accordingly, each of the State Council, Huijin and CIC and their
respective associates (other than Everbright Group and its
associates) will not be regarded as “interested persons” of the
Company and consequently, will not be subject to the rules and
requirements under Chapter 9 of the Listing Rules governing
interested person transactions. For the avoidance of doubt,
Everbright Group is regarded as a “controlling shareholder” of the
Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules and accordingly,
Everbright Group and its associates are subject to the rules and
requirements under Chapter 9 of the Listing Rules governing
interested person transactions.

As at 21 March 2017

BRI 2

tAh , pRAICEIRREREES S KERRRY
BER. @, PRITCEHURREBRESFSSS
NEWNEER.

(i) ICEMRERET "ERIRE"

RIEPEERINE | ICEMPRAENERAT
St , BB EICEMPIRREEN A AT
EfEh , ELHRAEAERE LR | T
ENPRARTALETN "ERIRE" .

ELt , ICEMPREEZENXREKTT ( FEEE
REBAREXET ) IRETAATR "KEAA
T B ARZHZA LRSS NERTR
AL ZACEHEREINE. SHRgEX , ##r
R EHHNME , SREABRANERF)
B "EERERE" | B, SEREERREXEKTY
B EMRNBENERTRERALRZZM
SEAIZERATARE.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

= [ AN For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
FERRARBA] e e o o e

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting ZEH , PENCAKESERATEERFRSE
of China Everbright Water Limited will be held at The Ritz-Carlton, F-EE—tEFNB-+HRBAEH= EFN=1
Millenia Singapore, Chihuly Room, Level 3, 7 Raffles Avenue, S 7EFINEEHETKE 7S5 INKIIE /RIS
Singapore 039799 on Tuesday, 25 April 2017 at 9.30 am to  &EE=#Chihuly Room ( #if4% : 039799 ) &
transact the following businesses: FF ., LATiSEE ARSI

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS i

1.

To receive and consider the Directors’ Statement and Audited Financial Statements of (Resolution 1)
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and the Auditors’ Report ( SB1LRIY )
thereon.

BEHFNEERREUREBE T\ F+ B =1T—HLINVEFELHITNaUFIRERE

HIHMRE.

2. To declare a final tax exempt 1-Tier dividend of S$0.0037 per ordinary share for the (Resolution 2)
financial year ended 31 December 2016 as recommended by the Directors. (SB2ImARY )
REEFESEN  ERRRBE_S—\F+ B =1—HINMBFENSKREIBER0.003 75N
TR —RRR.

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$200,000/- for the financial year ended 31 (Resolution 3)
December 2016. (2015 : $$207,500/-) ( SB3LTRIN )
MEXMHEHEZZT—R"F+_A=1+T—HLENURFENEE®EE200,000F N TE,

( ZF—H5F : 207,5005N0pITEE )

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the following Company’s Bye-laws,

and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election:

BUEL MREASEENEBEENES | BEREERISET !

(@) Mr. Wang Tianyi [Bye-law 86(1)]; (Resolution 4a)
FRNSFTE [ARIEESES6 (1) K] (EB4aliTRIY )

(b) Mr. An Xuesong [Bye-law 86(1)]; (Resolution 4b)
RENTE [AEIERESES6 (1) K] ( SBAbIRIY )

(c) Mr. Cai Shuguang [Bye-law 85(6)]; and (Resolution 4c)
EREE [ARFEES85 (6) &) ; ( SBACTITRIY )

(d) Ms. Xu Nailing [Bye-law 85(6)]. (Resolution 4d)
R et (AEIEEHE85 (6) £] . ( SBAdIRRIY )

5. To appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company in place of the retiring Auditor, (Resolution 5)
KPMG LLP, to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to ( SE5IARIN )
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Z{EErnst & Young LLPARLATRIHBLAABEMESRIEITHTKPMG LLP , (FREE T FE
RERSERALL , HENESEHEEH .

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS FRISIR

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary — SFHEE (AWARIES ) LIFEBRIY (&2

resolutions with or without modifications: BEHALEER) :

6.  Authority to allot and issue shares 6. SEFIRITRRIDZINA
(@)  That, pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, and the (a) *ETEZS’AEEEW%EBHWQ%FEEE

listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities #f&@ﬁlﬁi\\ﬁ ( Li\'Ff”aﬁ%/J"( #has
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), approval be and is Fi” ) £ ,JQTR\ZK’AETEE
hereby given to the Directors of the Company at any Bﬁﬂjﬁﬂé*gm'[ﬁ}*?ﬂﬁﬁﬂgﬁi
time to such persons and upon such terms and for PAGIEBRIEEIAE SIS

such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute
discretion deem fit, to:
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(iif)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_T—\F+A=+—HINVEFEE

issue shares in the capital of the Company
(“Shares”) whether by way of right, bonus or
otherwise;

make or grant offers, agreements or options
that might or would require Shares to
be issued or other transferable rights to
subscribe for or purchase Shares (collectively,
“Instruments”) including but not limited to the
creation and issue of warrants, debentures or
other instruments convertible into Shares;

issue additional instruments arising from
adjustments made to the number of
Instruments previously issued in the event of
rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(notwithstanding THAT the authority conferred by
the shareholders may have ceased to be in force)
issue Shares in pursuance of any Instrument made
or granted by the Directors while the authority was in

force.

provided always that:

(i)

the aggregate number of Shares to be issued
pursuant to this resolution (including Shares
to be issued in pursuance of Instruments
made or granted pursuant to this resolution)
does not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the
total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company, of which the
aggregate number of Shares (including Shares
to be issued in pursuance of Instruments
made or granted pursuant to this resolution)
to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company does
not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the total
number of issued Shares excluding treasury
shares of the Company, and for the purpose
of this resolution, the issued share capital
shall be the Company’s total number of issued
Shares excluding treasury shares at the time
this resolution is passed, after adjusting for;

a) new Shares arising from the conversion
or exercise of any convertible
securities, or

(i)

(i)

(iii)

FERFERSEAN

‘i AteR. AFIEEMIT
XRITATRS (LATE
R RERRET )

EHEEFIREBEE
REITRIDOELD. Y
EHAIY , BRE AT 45 1ERY
TN B M SE 22 B B D IR
(&M "XE" ) 8
FBERRTEIRFFRITN
IE. REFEEMATHEIRMN
NERIDHISE ;

XTFHER. ARHZERL
K17, HAZEZRIRITH
XIEHBmATEINIX
&

(b) (RERFENATEESAEEN)
SIEINENET | RIEESAEHE
BFRSERITATRMD.

MFFETHIER :

(i)

CE-AEERE

RIBARNETF RITHOL
EIRM B ( BERER
PRI H 3% F IR
B EITHRG ) AL
BERITABRMDEE (&
SREEFR ) B950% ,
HdERlRA AT
BERERITHATRMDE
# ( BIEREARRINETE
HEEFRXIES T R1T
HEH ) FEBEERTA
BARDEE (FAEREE
88 ) B920% , BfiAR
Wms , BRITAFREK
NABIE A RIYER, &
UTFERAEENERT
NERDEE (FEER
B -

a)  EBREITEEAR
HIRIE S R
NERD | B
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

= [ AN For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
FERRARBA] e e o o e

b) new Shares arising from exercising
share options or vesting of share
awards outstanding or subsisting at the
time this resolution is passed provided
the options or awards were granted in
compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8
of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST
(the “Listing Manual’); and

c) any subsequent bonus issue,
consolidation or subdivision of Shares,
and

(ii) such authority shall, unless revoked or
varied by the Company at a general meeting,
continue in force until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting or the date by
which the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is the earlier. (Resolution 6)

(See Explanatory Note i)

Authority to allot and issue shares under the China
Everbright Water Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to
allot and issue from time to time such number of Shares as
may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the
Scrip Dividend Scheme. (Resolution 7)

(See Explanatory Note ii)

Authority to grant options and issue Shares under the China
Everbright Water Limited Employee Share Option Scheme
(the “ESOS”).

That, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
empowered to offer and grant options, and to allot and
issue from time to time such number of Shares as may be
required to be issued or transferred pursuant to the exercise
of options granted under the ESOS provided always that
the aggregate number of Shares in respect of which such
options may be granted and which may be issued pursuant
to the Scheme shall not exceed fifteen per cent. (15%) of
the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares
of the Company from time to time. (Resolution 8)

(See Explanatory Note iii)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 = [ AN
HES—\F+-A=1T—HUINURFEE Egﬂx’?kﬁﬁﬂj

9. Renewal of the share buy-back mandate
That:

(@) the Directors be and are hereby authorised to
exercise all the powers of the Company to purchase
or otherwise acquire issued Shares not exceeding
in aggregate the Maximum Limit (as hereinafter
defined), at such price or prices as may be
determined by the Directors from time to time up to
the Maximum Price (as hereinafter defined), whether
by way of:

(i) market purchase(s) on the SGX-ST; and/or

(ii) off-market purchase(s) (if effected otherwise
than on the SGX-ST) in accordance with
any equal access scheme(s) as may be
determined or formulated by the Directors as
they consider fit, which scheme(s) shall, as
required under the Listing Manual, satisfy all
the conditions prescribed by section 76C of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore,

in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) and all other laws and regulations and rules of
the SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable (the
“Share Buy-back Mandate”);

(b)  unless varied or revoked by the Company in general
meeting, the authority conferred on the Directors
pursuant to the Share Buy-back Mandate may be
exercised by the Directors at any time and from time
to time during the period commencing from the date
of the passing of this Resolution and expiring on the
earliest of:

(i) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is held;

(ii) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to
be held; and

(i)  the date on which purchases and acquisitions
of Shares pursuant to the Share Buy-back
Mandate are carried out to the full extent
mandated;
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in this Resolution:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the
closing market prices of the Shares over the last five
market days on which the Shares were transacted on
the SGX-ST, before the date of the market purchase
by the Company, or as the case may be, the date
of the making of the offer pursuant to the off-market
purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance
with the listing rules of the SGX-ST for any corporate
action which occurs after the relevant five-day period;

“‘date of the making of the offer” means the date
on which the Company makes an offer for the
purchase or acquisition of Shares from shareholders,
stating therein the purchase price (which shall not be
more than the Maximum Price) for each Share and
the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for
effecting the off-market purchase;

‘“Maximum Limit” means that number of Shares
representing 10 per cent. of the total number of
issued Shares as at the date of the passing of this
Resolution (excluding any treasury shares); and

‘“Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be
purchased or acquired, means the purchase price
(excluding brokerage, commission, applicable goods
and services tax and other related expenses), which
shall not exceed:

(i) in the case of a market purchase of a Share,
five per cent. above the Average Closing
Price; and

(ii) in the case of an off-market purchase of
a Share, five per cent. above the Average
Closing Price; and

the Directors and each of them be hereby authorised
to complete and do all such acts and things
(including, but not limited to, executing all such
agreements and documents as may be required in
connection with this Resolution and the Share Buy-
back Mandate) as they or he/she may consider
necessary, desirable or expedient or in the interests
of the Company to give effect to this Resolution and
the Share Buy-back Mandate. (Resolution 9)

(See Explanatory Note iv)
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10.  To transact any other ordinary business which may be
properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

WANG TIANYI
Non-Executive Director and Chairman

6 April 2017
Singapore

Notes:

1. A member of the Company (other than The Central Depository (Pte)
Limited) entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and
who holds two or more Shares shall be entitled to appoint not more than
two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

2. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion
of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be
represented by each proxy respectively.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand
of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation,
it must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of its
attorney or duly authorised officer.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or notarially
certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s office
at 50 Raffles Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623
not later than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General
Meeting.

Explanatory Notes:

i The ordinary resolution 5 proposed in item 5 is to approve the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s Auditor in place
of the retiring Auditor, KPMG LLP, to hold office until the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors of the
Company to fix their remuneration. Please refer to the Company’s Letter
to Shareholders dated 6 April 2017 (the “Letter”) for more details.

ii. The ordinary resolution 6 proposed in item 6 is to authorise the Directors
of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the next
Annual General Meeting to issue Shares and convertible securities in
the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50 per cent.
of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the
Company, of which the total number of Shares and convertible securities
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall not
exceed 20 per cent. of the total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company at the time the resolution is passed,
for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the
Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general
meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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iii. Pursuant to the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 28
October 2005, the shareholders of the Company approved the passing
of the ordinary resolution relating to the Scrip Dividend Scheme. In the
circular dated 11 October 2005, the Scrip Dividend Scheme provides
members with the option to elect to receive Shares in lieu of the cash
amount of any dividend declared on their holding of Shares. The
Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 7, if passed, will empower the
Directors of the Company to allot and issue Shares in the Company
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Scrip Dividend Scheme.

iv. The ordinary resolution 8 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will
empower the Directors of the Company, to offer and grant options and
to allot and issue or transfer Shares upon the exercise of such options
in accordance with the Scheme not exceeding 15% of the total number
of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to
time.

V. The Company intends to use internal sources of funds, external
borrowings or a combination of internal resources and external
borrowings, to finance the purchases or acquisitions of its Shares. The
amount of financing required for the Company to purchase or acquire
its Shares, and the impact on the Company’s financial position, cannot
be ascertained as at the date of this Notice as these will depend on,
inter alia, the manner in which the purchase or acquisition is funded,
the aggregate number of Shares purchased or acquired, and the
consideration paid at the relevant time. For illustrative purposes only, the
financial effects of an assumed purchase or acquisition by the Company
of 10 per cent. of its issued Shares as at 22 March 2017, at a purchase
price equivalent to the Maximum Price per Share, based on the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 and certain assumptions, are set out in
paragraph 3.8 of the Company’s Letter.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting a proxy form appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to
attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment
thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and
disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents)
for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its
agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating
to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and
in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws,
listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”),
(ii) warrants that where the shareholder discloses the personal data of the
shareholder’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its
agents), the shareholder has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/
or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or
its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for
the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in
respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a
result of the shareholder’s breach of warranty.
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In the event of any conflict between the English and Chinese versions in this Annual Report, the English version shall prevail
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